
 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
Meeting 
 

Regulatory Committee 
 

Date and Time Wednesday 20th April, 2022 at 10.00 am 
  
Place Ashburton Hall - HCC 
  
Enquiries to members.services@hants.gov.uk 
  
Carolyn Williamson FCPFA 
Chief Executive 
The Castle, Winchester SO23 8UJ 
 

FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION 
This meeting may be recorded and broadcast live on the County Council’s website and 

available for repeat viewing, it may also be recorded and filmed by the press and 
public. Filming or recording is only permitted in the meeting room whilst the meeting is 
taking place so must stop when the meeting is either adjourned or closed.  Filming is 
not permitted elsewhere in the building at any time. Please see the Filming Protocol 

available on the County Council’s website. 
 

AGENDA 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence received. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 All Members who believe they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in 

any matter to be considered at the meeting must declare that interest 
and, having regard to Part 3 Paragraph 1.5 of the County Council's 
Members’ Code of Conduct, leave the meeting while the matter is 
discussed, save for exercising any right to speak in accordance with 
Paragraph 1.6 of the Code.  Furthermore all Members with a Personal 
Interest in a matter being considered at the meeting should consider, 
having regard to Part 5, Paragraph 4 of the Code, whether such interest 
should be declared, and having regard to Part 5, Paragraph 5 of the 
Code, consider whether it is appropriate to leave the meeting while the 
matter is discussed, save for exercising any right to speak in accordance 
with the Code. 
 

3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 5 - 8) 
 
 To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting 

 

Public Document Pack



4. DEPUTATIONS   
 
 To receive any deputations notified under Standing Order 12. 

 
5. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS   
 
 To receive any announcements the Chairman may wish to make. 

 
6. GRUNDON SAND AND GRAVEL LTD FRITH END SAND QUARRY 

GROOMS FARM LANE FRITH END BORDON  (Pages 9 - 96) 
 
 To consider a report of the Director of Economy, Transport and 

Environment regarding two planning applications.  
 
1. Extension to the quarry extraction area to the South-West with 
associated modifications to the approved quarry schemes (Application 
No. 30633/041)  
 
2. Variation of Conditions 1 (Timescale), 4 (Phasing) and 10 
(Landscaping) of Planning Permission 30633/039 (Application No. 
30633/040) at Grundon Sand and Gravel Ltd, Frith End Sand Quarry, 
Grooms Farm Lane, Frith End, Bordon (Site Ref: EH121). 
 

7. BLACKBUSHES ROAD REALIGNMENT WORKS HARTFORDBRIDGE 
FLATS JUNCTION HARTLEY WINTNEY  (Pages 97 - 130) 

 
 To consider a report of the Director of Economy, Transport and 

Environment regarding Realignment works and alterations to the 
northerly section of Blackbushes Road including the addition of a fourth 
arm on the A30/A327 Hartford Bridge Flats junction roundabout, plus 
changes to street lighting, road lining, road signing and drainage and new 
boundary fencing alongside the western and eastern boundaries at 
Blackbushes Road, Hartley Wintney and land to the west of Blackbushes 
Road (Application No. 22/00214/HCC) (Site Ref: HRH003). 
 

8. MONITORING AND ENFORCEMENT UPDATE  (Pages 131 - 142) 
 
 To consider a report of the Director of Economy, Transport and 

Environment regarding the Monitoring and Enforcement work undertaken 
by Strategic Planning during the period November 2021 – April 2022. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ABOUT THIS AGENDA: 

On request, this agenda can be provided in alternative versions (such as 
large print, Braille or audio) and in alternative languages. 
 
ABOUT THIS MEETING: 

The press and public are welcome to attend the public sessions of the 
meeting. If you have any particular requirements, for example if you require 
wheelchair access, please contact members.services@hants.gov.uk for 
assistance. 
 
 
County Councillors attending as appointed members of this Committee or by 
virtue of Standing Order 18.5; or with the concurrence of the Chairman in 
connection with their duties as members of the Council or as a local County 
Councillor qualify for travelling expenses. 

mailto:members.services@hants.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

AT A MEETING of the Regulatory Committee of HAMPSHIRE COUNTY 
COUNCIL held at the castle, Winchester on Wednesday 23rd February, 2022 

 
Chairman: 

* Councillor Peter Latham 
 

* Councillor Lance Quantrill 
  Councillor Lulu Bowerman 
  Councillor Steven Broomfield 
* Councillor Mark Cooper 
* Councillor Rod Cooper 
  Councillor Michael Ford 
* Councillor Keith House 
  Councillor Gary Hughes 
* Councillor Adam Jackman 
* Councillor Alexis McEvoy 
* Councillor Stephen Parker 
 

*  Councillor Alexis McEvoy 
*  Councillor Stephen Parker 
* Councillor Louise Parker-Jones 
* Councillor Stephen Philpott 
* Councillor Roger Price 
* Councillor Kim Taylor 
* Councillor Sarah Pankhurst 
* Councillor Hugh Lumby 
   
* Present 

 

295.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies were received from Councillors Mike Ford, Gary Hughes and Lulu 
Bowerman. Councillor Sarah Pankhurst and Hugh Lumby were in attendance as 
deputies. 
 

296.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Members were mindful that where they believed they had a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest in any matter considered at the meeting they must declare 
that interest at the time of the relevant debate and, having regard to the 
circumstances described in Part 3, Paragraph 1.5 of the County Council's 
Members' Code of Conduct, leave the meeting while the matter was discussed, 
save for exercising any right to speak in accordance with Paragraph 1.6 of the 
Code. Furthermore Members were mindful that where they believed they had a 
Non-Pecuniary interest in a matter being considered at the meeting they 
considered whether such interest should be declared, and having regard to Part 
5, Paragraph 2 of the Code, considered whether it was appropriate to leave the 
meeting whilst the matter was discussed, save for exercising any right to speak 
in accordance with the Code. 
 

297.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the last meeting were reviewed and agreed. 
 

298.   DEPUTATIONS  
 
The Chairman confirmed that due to the number of deputations received, 
Section 9 of the Planning Code of Conduct had been waivered to extend the 
hour for deputations and allow 7 minutes per deputation. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

 
 

299.   CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
The Chairman confirmed that due to the amount of interest in the item, the 
meeting would be web streamed into the Mitchell room as well as on YouTube 
via the Hampshire County Council website. 
 

300.   DEVELOPMENT OF AN ENERGY RECOVERY FACILITY AND ASSOCIATED 
INFRASTRUCTURE AT ALTON MATERIALS RECOVERY FACILITY, A31, 
ALTON GU34 4JD (NO. 33619/007) (SITE REF: EH141)  
 
Development of an Energy Recovery Facility and Associated Infrastructure 
at Alton Materials Recovery Facility, A31, Alton GU34 4JD (No. 33619/007) 
(Site Ref: EH141) 
 
The Committee considered a report from the Assistant Director of Waste, 
Planning and Environment (item 6 in the minute book) regarding an application 
for an Energy Recovery Facility (ERF) at the Alton Materials Recovery Facility 
(MRF). 
 
The Chairman introduced the item, highlighting the significance of the application 
and the two update reports that had been circulated with some minor 
amendments.  
 
The officer gave a detailed presentation on the application, and the Committee 
was shown aerial plans and photographs of the site and surrounding area, as 
well as the importance of the proposed site and how it would operate. 5,598 
representations had been received from 4,049 individuals and the key issues 
were summarised. 
 
The Committee received deputations from Emma Barnett - No Wey Incinerator 
Action Group, Christopher Napier – CPRE Hampshire, Alison Melvin - Binsted 
Eco Network, William Butler – West End Flower Farm, Dr Alexandra Roberts – 
Froyle Parish Council, Councillor Mark Merryweather, Farnham Town Council, 
Councillor Adam Carew - East Hants District Council, Councillor Rob Mocatta – 
South Downs National Park and Councillor Martin Tod – Hampshire County 
Council, who all spoke against the proposals. 
 
The main reasons for objecting were: 

 The location was not suitable for such a big development; 

 There was no need for an ERF; 

 The visual impact of the site on the landscape, walkers and local 
residents as well as visitors to the South Downs National Park; 

 A devastating impact on local businesses and potential tourism; 

 The impacts on the local road network; 

 Emissions and plumes from the chimney stacks; and 

 Finding an alternative to incinerating and shifting focus to increasing and 
improving recycling. 

 

Page 6



3 
 

The applicant spoke to support the application, stating how the County was 
running out of landfill, exports commercial and industrial (C&I) wastes the 
importance of finding an alternative for businesses to manage C&I waste. It was 
confirmed that 365,000 tonnes was currently being exported or going to landfill 
each year. The ERF is a well-established technology. Carbon Capture Storage 
(CCS) technology would be implemented once the technology was available and 
regulated. The ERF was focussed on C&I waste rather than municipal solid 
wastes . The emissions would also be safe and closely monitoring by an 
Environmental Permit regulated by the Environment Agency. 
 
County Councillors Jackie Porter, Andrew Joy and Mark Kemp-Gee also spoke 
as local Members. Councillor Jackie Porter and Mark Kemp-Gee shared their 
objections of the proposal and Councillor Andrew Joy read a statement of 
objection on behalf of Rt Hon Damian Hinds MP who felt that the benefits did not 
outweigh the negative aspects of the application.  
 
During questions of the officer, the following points were clarified: 

 Assessment work included in the Environment Statement on the emissions 
and potential health effects and it concluded that there would be no risk to 
human health.  Public Health England, the Public Health team at Hampshire 
County Council and the Environmental Health Officer were consulted on this 
assessment; 

 Heat transfer would offer benefit in the longer term once potential customers 
had been sought; 

 Alternative sites had been investigated and contained within Appendix I to the 
report; 

 Existing Traffic Regulation Orders were in place to protect more rural routes 
from HGV’s, but a lorry routing set out in the proposed section 106 would be 
monitored by the Monitoring and Enforcement Team. 

 
During debate, some Members agreed that there was a need to focus more on 
recycling and were against a market-led approach to incineration, whilst others 
highlighted the need to have an alternative to landfill and exports. 
 
Whilst the importance of recycling was acknowledged, some Members felt that 
the focus on residential recycling mentioned by some of the deputations caused 
confusion as the proposal was for a merchant facility with a focus on C&I waste 
and not related MSW.  
 
It was highlighted that the ERF would only be used for ‘residual’ waste that had 
no other option but to go to landfill and export and an Environmental Permit 
would be in place to monitor odour, light and noise from the site. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
The application was REFUSED. 
 
Notwithstanding the proposed mitigation, it was considered that the proposal: 
 
a) Would result in significant adverse impact on the character of the area, the 

wider landscape, and the visual amenity contrary to Policies 10 (Protecting 

Page 7



4 
 

public, health, safety and amenity) and 13 (High -quality design of minerals 
and waste development) of the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (2013), 
paragraphs 130 and 174, 176 and 177 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework (2021); 
 

b) Did not demonstrate a special need for its location and the suitability of the 
site could not be adequately justified and therefore is contrary to Policies 27 
(Capacity for waste management development) and 29 (Locations and sites 
for waste management) of the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 
 
Vote 
Favour: 3 
Against: 12 

 
 
 
 
  

 Chairman,  
 

Page 8



HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

Decision Report 

 

Decision Maker: Regulatory Committee 

Date: 20 April 2022 

Title: Extension to the quarry extraction area to the South-West with 

associated modifications to the approved quarry schemes (No. 

30633/041)  

 

And 

 

Variation of Conditions 1 (Timescale), 4 (Phasing) and 10 

(Landscaping) of Planning Permission 30633/039 (No. 

30633/040) 

 

at Grundon Sand and Gravel Ltd, Frith End Sand Quarry, 

Grooms Farm Lane, Frith End, Bordon GU35 0QR 

(Site Ref: EH121) 

Report From: Assistant Director for Waste, Planning and Environment 

 

Contact name: 

 

Tim Felstead 

Tel:    07761 330557 Email:    tim.felstead@hants.gov.uk    

 

Recommendation 

 

1. It is recommended that planning permission be GRANTED for planning 

application, 30633/041 subject to the conditions listed in Appendix A 

(30633/041). 

 

2. It is recommended that planning permission be granted for planning 

application 30633/040, subject to the conditions listed in Appendix B. 

 

Executive Summary  

 

3. Two planning applications have been submitted: 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6

mailto:tim.felstead@hants.gov.uk


 Planning application 30633/041 – Seeks permission for a 2.1 hectare 

extension to the south-west of the existing extraction area at Frith End 

Quarry on an area known as Ranks Hill. This proposed extension site 

will be known throughout this report as the ‘Hill Extension’. This is for the 

extraction of approximately 100,000 tonnes of soft sand and for the 

restoration of the extension site. This is an Environmental Impact 

Assessment (EIA) application; and 

 Planning application 30633/040 – Seeks Variation of Conditions 1 

(Timescale), 4 (Phasing) and 10 (Landscaping) of Planning Permission 

30633/039 to enable the proposed extension sought in application 

30633/041 by adopting revised phasing for extraction and restoration 

and to allow the existing site facilities to accommodate the proposed 

extension. 

 

4. A committee site visit by Members took place on 8 November 2021 in 

advance of the proposal being considered by the Regulatory Committee. 

 

5. Key issues raised are: 

 Need for minerals; 

 Flood management and hydrology; 

 Restoration; 

 Ecology; 

 Landscape and visual impact; 

 Arboriculture; and 

 Cumulative impact on residential amenity. 

 

6. The existing quarry is currently permitted by Planning Permission 30633/039 

to extract sand until 31 December 2022 and to complete restoration by 31 

December 2024. It is proposed that this proposed extension will be extracted 

and restored within the current agreed restoration deadline for the quarry, 31 

December 2024. The lifespan of the quarry will remain unchanged.  

 

7. The existing site is stated to have approximately 120,000 tonnes of soft sand 

left to be extracted (as of the submission date of April 2021). A portion of the 

mineral extracted at the quarry is also classified as silica sand as it can be 

used for silica uses such as horticulture and recreational uses. 

 

8. The applications seek to allow the extraction of the proposed Ranks Hill area 

once extraction of minerals on the existing site is completed on or before the 

existing deadline of 31 December 2022. The proposed extension will provide 

approximately 100,000 tonnes of soft sand. The timing of the potential 

extraction of Ranks Hill before the remaining reserves in existing quarry and 

Page 10

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/041
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/040
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=21325
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=21325


the site closes, would ensure that as much of the safeguarded mineral at the 

quarry site is extracted. The Rank Hill area would be too small an area to be 

viably extracted as a stand-alone site once the quarry has closed.  The 

extraction of this area would take place over 15-18 months during the 24-

month period currently conditioned for the restoration of Frith End Quarry. 

The proposal would see the completion of the restoration for the entire site 

completed within the existing deadline of 31 December 2024.  

 

9. Planning application 30633/040 is directly linked to planning application 

30633/041 and are essentially dependant on each other. They are being 

considered by the Regulatory Committee as application 30633/041 is a 

major extension of an existing minerals site which is an Environmental 

Impact Assessment (EIA) development under the Town & Country Planning 

(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 (EIA Regulations). 

Councillor Kemp-Gee also requested that the application be considered by 

the Regulatory Committee.  

 

10. As both applications have been processed alongside each other, both 

applications were subject to a formal re-consultation following submission of 

further information (in response to EIA Request 1) as set out in the EIA 

Regulations 2017 between 4 October 2021 and 8 November 2021. A further 

stage of consultation on hydrological information (in response to EIA 

Request 2)  also took place between 18 February 2022 and 28 March 2022. 

 

11. On balance, it is considered that the proposals would be in accordance with 

the relevant policies of the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (2013) 

(HMWP). It is considered that the benefits of the proposed developments 

outweigh the impacts to amenity, ecology and the surrounding countryside 

landscape. The development provides an additional 100,000 tonnes of soft 

sand mineral resource incidental to the 120,000 tonnes that are currently 

due for permitted extraction at the existing Frith End Quarry. It is considered 

that the proposal will provide and additional contribution to Hampshire’s soft 

sand landbank (currently approximately 0.72 years based on the 2021 Local 

Aggregate Assessment (LAA)) and this contribution does not cause, on 

balance, any significant additional detrimental impacts to the environment, 

landscape or neighbours to that generated by the existing, permitted quarry 

activities. This is particularly when taking into consideration that the 

proposed development does not seek to change the approved restoration 

deadline for the quarry as a whole. Hampshire is currently significantly below 

the 7 year landbank requirement for soft sand. The proposal will also 

contribute silica sand resources at the site, which requires a site landbank of 

10 years. The site currently has less than the 10-year landbank requirement. 

The cumulative impacts are also considered acceptable. The proposed 

Page 11

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/040
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/041
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/041
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/571/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/571/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/571/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/571/contents/made
https://www.hants.gov.uk/landplanningandenvironment/strategic-planning/hampshire-minerals-waste-plan
https://hants.sharepoint.com/:b:/s/ETEE8681/EVOvZyuKCCpHvCLFgqJTB5QBz0ok4rVLXUIgVKv99nAJaQ?e=jNUlld
https://hants.sharepoint.com/:b:/s/ETEE8681/EVOvZyuKCCpHvCLFgqJTB5QBz0ok4rVLXUIgVKv99nAJaQ?e=jNUlld


revised Restoration Plan for the entire site is considered satisfactory with 

respect to biodiversity net gain, protection of protected species, flood 

management, public access, visual impact and landscape. 

    

12. It is recommended that planning permission be GRANTED for planning 

application 30633/041 subject to the conditions listed in Appendix A.  

 

13. It is recommended that planning permission be GRANTED for planning 

application 30633/040, subject to the conditions listed in Appendix B. 

 

The Site 

 

14. Frith End quarry is an active sand quarry that comprises approximately 17.4 

hectares of land located to the north of Bordon, Hampshire. The quarry is 

accessed by means of a purpose-built access road direct off the A325 and 

the site has good access onto the strategic road network. The quarry has 

been in operation for approximately 30 years. 

 

15. The quarry is identified in the adopted Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 

(2013) (HMWP) as a safeguarded site for the extraction of soft and silica 

sand through Policy 16 (Safeguarding – minerals infrastructure). The site is 

also identified as an existing quarry for local land won aggregate and silica 

sand through Policies 20 (Local land-won aggregate) and 21 (Silica sand 

development) of the HMWP (2013) respectively.  

 

16. The current planning permission (30633/038) allows for the extraction of 

sand until 31 December 2022 and the completion of restoration by 31 

December 2024. The quarry has been extended a number of times, both in 

terms of area and the length of time to complete operations. 

 

17. Planning permission F30633/012/CMA established the current operational 

site and access, including extraction of sand for export from its southern 

area, and gault clay from the northern quarry fields, the latter is solely for 

onsite restoration and not for export. That permission allowed a southern 

extension towards the River Slea and for the deepening of the quarry to 

some six metres below the water table to 55 metres above ordnance datum 

(AOD). This gave a total site reserve of one million tonnes. 

 

18. The quarry produces building sand for the building, construction and civil 

engineering industries as well as a range of products, such as high-quality 

silica sand products for the golf, equestrian and leisure markets. The sand 

extracted is in majority sold as a building sand, with the remaining sand (up 

to a third) sold for industrial uses. For the past few years, the site has 

Page 12

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/041
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/040
http://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
http://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=21325
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=12606


provided a steady supply of sand to the local market of approximately of 

80,000 tonnes of per annum. 

 

19. Current on-site operations comprise of: 

 The overarching planning permission 30633/039, for extraction, 

processing and exportation of minerals until 31 December 2022 and 

approved restoration and five year aftercare scheme to be completed 

by 31 December 2024, as previously permitted by planning 

permissions 30633/034, 30633/031 and F30633/012/CMA; 

 The Frith End Quarry scheme generally comprises of two areas; to the 

south of public right of way (PROW) 26, the extraction area for sand to 

export from site to market; and an area to the north of PROW 26, from 

which clay is extracted solely for the purpose of lining the southern 

excavation area prior to restoration. This will create a barrier between 

the imported restoration material and the hydrology and hydrogeology 

of the site – as it is upon a protected aquifer and adjacent to the River 

Slea; 

 Planning permission 30633/033 gave temporary permission until 31 

December 2022 for the relocation of the ancillary activity of the 

importation, handling and re-sale of aggregates, as previously 

permitted by planning permission 30633/030; and 

 Planning permission 30633/035 gave temporary permission until 31 

December 2022 to import recovered sand from development projects in 

Bordon and surrounding area for processing, storage and sales from 

the Frith End quarry. 

 

20. The overarching planning permission 30633/039 includes a phased 

programme of working and restoration. Areas referenced below are identified 

on working plans submitted with the applications (see Phasing Plan- Mineral 

Extraction and Site Restoration).  The approved Restoration and Aftercare 

Scheme comprises: 

 The approved Restoration Scheme is to agriculture, amenity and 

nature conservation as per approved schemes and plans; 

 The approved aftercare period is five years from the completion of 

restoration; 

 Material imported for restoration of the sand extraction area is 

restricted to naturally occurring earth spoils. This is due to its proximity 

to the River Slea and lying upon a protected aquifer and water source; 

 The retention of public right of way (PROW) 26; 

 The creation of a lake in the south of the quarry site (areas B1 and R4), 

with a surface level of approximately 61 metres (m) above ordnance 

datum (AOD);  

Page 13

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=21325
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=19597
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/031
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=12606
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/033
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/030
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/035#undefined
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=21325
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21729&planId=94862&imageId=12&isPlan=False&fileName=Working%20Plan_2021-rev.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21729&planId=94862&imageId=12&isPlan=False&fileName=Working%20Plan_2021-rev.pdf


 The southern area of the existing quarry (areas A1 to A4) is to be 

restored to grazing at a level of 62-70m AOD using the gault clay (to 

act as an appropriate liner for infilling below water table and provide a 

geological barrier) extracted from land lying to the north of the sand 

extraction area (areas C1 to C4); and 

 New woodland will be planted along the east and west of the site 

(areas A1 and R1).  

 

21. The void created by clay extraction, the aforementioned northern area of the 

quarry, is to be infilled to original ground levels using 500,000 tonnes of 

imported earth spoil. The sand extraction and importation of infill material 

was envisaged to require one hundred Heavy Goods Vehicle (HGV) 

movements per day, including a significant number associated with infill 

operations. 

 

22. The most recent planning permissions for the quarry site have been to:  

 Allow to increase the height and length of an existing soil bund to the north 

of the site to improve screening to local housing (Planning Permission 

30633/039); and  

 An extension of time for the quarry to allow for the quarry to recover from 

flooding of the main extension basin when the River Slea burst its banks in 

February 2020 (Planning Permission 30633/038, granted in October 2020).  

 

23. Repair work and floodwater pumping out of the quarry commenced in March 

2021. The operator confirms that the repair of the river breach is complete as 

per the Environment Agency (EA) specification, the water has mostly been 

pumped out of the quarry and sand extraction has resumed. 

 

24. The proposed Hill Extension site lies to the south-west of the existing 

extraction area. It is commonly referred to as ‘Ranks Hill’. It rises to around 

80m AOD and comprises exposed sand, in the form of the face of the quarry 

extraction basin (east side), heathland scrub, and scattered trees. Although 

of some elevation, it is currently only intermittently prominent in the 

landscape given the surrounding woodland and mature tree belts, and the 

undulating nature of the landscape generally. An existing access track 

defines the western and southern perimeters of the proposed extraction 

area. A line of 12m high popular trees run along the track and southern 

boundary of the proposed site, and there are scattered mature oak tress 

(20m tall) just beyond the southern boundary. There is a single, semi-mature 

oak on the western boundary. 

 

Page 14

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=21325
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=21325


25. The following constraints and distances relate specifically to the proposed 

extension site: 

 Four public right of way (PROW) footpaths converge just outside the 

main entrance on the existing quarry, approximately 100 metres (m) 

north-west of the site. PROW 26 runs east-west through the wider 

quarry separating the sand and clay extraction areas running parallel to 

an internal site road. PROW 48 runs north-south towards Trottsford 

Farm and lies 150m west of the site. PROW 23 and 25 run north away 

from the quarry. On the east side of the quarry is PROW 36, a Byway 

Open to All Traffic (BOAT) that runs north-south, 450m east of the site. 

PROWs 26 and 36 are those that are significant, having views of the 

proposed extraction and restoration site; 

 Groom Farm Sandpit Site of Importance for Nature Conservation 

(SINC) is located adjacent to the north perimeter of the site within the 

existing quarry. Abbots Wood Inclosure (800m north), Mellow Farm 

Meadows (480m south-east), Heath Hill (890m east) and Bordon 

Sandpit (430m south-west) are other SINC in the site’s surroundings. 

With respect to European designations, Broxhead & Kingsley Site of 

Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) is located 340m to the south of the 

site; 

 The River Slea and associated riparian/woodland corridor run around 

Ranks Hill, along the western and southern boundaries of the site. 

Environment Agency Flood Zones 2 and 3 run along this corridor and 

both flood zones run in a strip through the northern part of the site. The 

quarry site is in an area prone to ground water flooding. It also 

encompasses several areas prone to surface water flooding. The site is 

on a principle aquifer, and the south eastern corner of the wider quarry 

lies within Groundwater Source Protection Zones 2 and 3. In February 

2020, the River Slea broke its banks and caused flooding of the quarry 

and fields to its southern edge; 

 The South Downs National Park boundary is located 800m to the north 

of the site; 

 The site lies within the Wealden Greens and National Character Area 

(Natural England, 2016) which is characterised by extensive belts of 

woodland with open areas of heath on acidic soils, river valleys and 

mixed farming. Whilst the site is not the subject of any statutory 

ecological or environmental designations, it does have a small Great 

Crested Newt population currently subject to a Natural England licence 

which allows them to be relocated and contained in ponds to the north 

east of the quarry. The site also has a House Martin nesting site; and  

 Farnborough Airfield Safeguarding Zone starts 550m to the north of the 

site. 

Page 15



 

26. The closest residential properties to the proposal site are: 

 Grooms Farm, 250m north of the site and 90m from the haul road; 

 Five dwellings at Kites 400m north of the site; 

 Six dwellings located in the Holt Farm area 950m north-east of the site; 

 Mellow Farm 890m to the east; 

 Headley Park Hotel is located 400m to the south; 

 Two dwellings at Baigents Copse 350m south of the site; 

 Two dwellings at Harrington House 500m west of the site; and 

 Three dwellings at Trottsford Farm 320m south-west of the site.  

 

27. There is a historic landfill at Trottsford Farm which 320m south-west of the 

site.  

 

28. The Alice Holt Forest, Romano-British kiln sites are located 800m to the 

north of the site. There are also various Grade II listed buildings located in 

proximity to the site at: 

 Grooms Farmhouse, 250m north-west of the site; 

 Trottsford Farm (cluster), 320m south-west of the site; 

 Kites, 400m north of the site; 

 Mellow Farm (cluster), 890m east of the site; and 

 Huntingford Bridge & Others (cluster), 1100m east of the site. 

 

29. The quarry has an active Liaison Panel. This meets four times a year, with 

the last meeting taking place on 3 February 2021.  

 

Planning History 

 

30. The planning history of the site is as follows: 

 

Application no.  Proposal Date issued 

30633/039 Variation of condition 12 of Planning 

Permission 30633/038 to improve the noise 

bund in both length and height 

02/03/21 

30633/038 Variation of condition 1 of Planning 

Permission 30633/034 to extend the time 

period of extraction to 31 December 2022 

and completion of restoration within a 

further period of two years 

21/10/20 

Page 16

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/039
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=21325


SCR/2020/0309 EIA Scoping for a proposed south-west 

(Rank’s Hill) extension to the current 

mineral working 

22/07/20 

30633/035 Sand recovery from development projects in 

Bordon and surrounding area. 

29/10/18 

30633/034 Variation of conditions 5 (Phasing), 11 

(Landscaping), 24 (Restoration) and 27 

(Plans) of Planning Permission 30633/031 

to revise the approved working and 

restoration schemes within the approved 

timescales 

29/10/18 

30633/033 The relocation of the ancillary activity of the 

importation, handling and re-sale of 

aggregates as previously permitted by pp 

30633/030 

29/10/18 

30633/031  

 

Variation of condition 2 of planning 

permission F30633/012/CMA to extend the 

approved time for extraction of sand and 

clay 

28/02/17 

30633/030 Variation of condition 1 of planning 

permission 30633/019 to allow the 

continued importation, handling and re-sale 

of aggregates until 31 December 2022 

28/02/17 

30633/019 Use of land for the importation, handling 

and re-sale of aggregates (retrospective 

application) 

11/01/12 

F30633/012/CMA Winning & working of sand with restoration 

at low level to nature conservation uses to 

include a southern extension to the existing 

extraction area, and the retention of the 

processing plant 

07/02/07 

F20310/11C Revised Phasing 30/07/96 

F20310/10C Vertical extension of existing mineral 

working 

12/12/95 

F20310/9C Variation of conditions to consent F20310/6 

to allow for sand washing and construction 

23/03/93 

Page 17

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=21212
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=19599
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=19597
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=19598
file://///data2/common/shared/DLGS/wp/REPORTS/ApplicationDetails.aspx%3fRecNo=17705
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/030
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=14845
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=12606
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=1673
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=1082
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=790


of temporary silt beds 

F20310/6 Winning and working of minerals, infilling 

with controlled waste and creation of an 

access from the site to the A325 

05/09/90 

 

31. Relevant district planning application history: 

 

Application no.  Proposal Date issued 

30633/036 Detached hotel guest annexe (Class C1) to 

provide a total of three additional guest 

rooms and four covered parking spaces at 

Grooms Farm, Frith End Road, Frith End, 

Bordon, GU35 0QR 

18/11/19 

30633/032 Variation of conditions 4,10,11 and 18 of 

permission 30633/026 to enable the 

implementation of the planning permission 

without prejudicing the council's ability to 

review and approve details reserved by 

condition at an appropriate stage at Grooms 

Farm, Frith End Road, Frith End, Bordon, 

GU35 0QR 

22/11/17 

30633/026 Ancillary building for events associated with 

existing hotel, together with landscaping, 

parking, works (including waste water 

treatment plant) and retention of Frith End 

Quarry Haul Road for access to the site and 

hotel at Grooms Farm, Frith End Road, Frith 

End, Bordon, GU35 0QR 

16/02/15 

 

32. Frith End Quarry is safeguarded for the production of soft sand and silica 

sand through Policy 16 (Safeguarding - minerals infrastructure) of the 

Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (2013) for the duration of its planning 

permission.  

 

The Proposal 

 

33. Two planning applications have been submitted and are considered by this 

report:  

Page 18

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=2872
https://planningpublicaccess.easthants.gov.uk/online-applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
https://planningpublicaccess.easthants.gov.uk/online-applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
https://planningpublicaccess.easthants.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?keyVal=_EHANT_DCAPR_233898&activeTab=summary


 30633/041 seeks permission for an extension to the quarry extraction area 

to the South-West of the existing Frith End Quarry, an area known as 

Ranks Hill; and 

 30633/040 seeks associated variations of conditions of the current 

overarching planning permission (30633/039) for Frith End Quarry to 

enable the extension.  

 

Planning Application 30633/041  

 

34. The Hill Extension site comprises a 2.1 hectare area of elevated ground 

centred on Ranks Hill, contiguous with the main quarry. The proposed 

extraction area is 1.2 hectares of which approximately 0.3 hectares lies 

outside the existing red line boundary of the existing quarry site, the 

remainder being the creation of additional area permitted for extraction within 

the existing site area of the quarry (see drawing DG/QO/FRI/HE/02, the 

Application and Land Ownership Area plan). 

 

35. It is proposed to extract approximately 100,000 tonnes of soft sand. Some of 

this sand could be used as silica sand. This is in addition to the remaining 

sand permitted for extraction from the adjacent Frith End Quarry site 

(approximately 100,000 tonnes as of April 2021).  

 

36. The proposal seeks to use the existing plant, machinery, storage, haul road 

and other facilities of the existing quarry. The extracted minerals would be 

added to those of the existing quarry.  

 

37. The proposal seeks to carry out and complete the extraction and restoration 

of the site within the existing, approved deadline for the restoration of the 

Frith End Quarry. Extraction of the proposed extension would commence 

once extraction of minerals on the existing site was complete, on or before 

the existing, conditioned deadline of 31 December 2022. This extraction on 

the extension would take place over 15-18 months until a proposed 

cessation date of 30 June 2024. The proposal sees the completion of the 

restoration for the entire site, including the proposed extension, completed 

within the existing deadline of 31 December 2024.  

 

38. The access to and from the quarry would stay unaltered, as would the 

operational activities and the conditions to control those. Soil would be 

stripped and stored along the south boundary of the extension and replaced 

during restoration. It is proposed to remove the shrubs and the poplar trees, 

and two stumps, but protect and retain the oak trees. Extraction would occur 

in steps from east to west down to a level of approximately 61m AOD.  

Page 19

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/041
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/040
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/041
file:///C:/Users/envmjp/Downloads/DG_QO_FRI_HE_02-Application%20and%20Landownership%20Area.pdf
file:///C:/Users/envmjp/Downloads/DG_QO_FRI_HE_02-Application%20and%20Landownership%20Area.pdf


 

39. No extraction will occur below the groundwater table.  

 

40. All extracted minerals would be moved by vehicle to the adjacent existing 

storage and processing area within the existing quarry. 

 

41. The application proposes a Restoration Scheme for the extension site in 

keeping with that of the approved restoration of the wider quarry site (see  

drawing DG/QO/FRI/HE/05/RES/FULL/revA, Restoration Plan, dated July 

2021). The majority of the proposed site would be restored to neutral 

grassland and wetland grassland to the lower slopes. A short section of 

hedgerow is proposed along the southern boundary. The proposed ground 

level would be approximately 61m AOD, rising in slopes back up to 

surrounding ground levels to the north and west. It does not seek to restore 

the form of Ranks Hill back up to its existing height of 80m AOD. This 

alteration in the landscape and its affect has been considered and assessed 

in the application and its supporting Environmental Statement. 

 

42.  Considering the wider quarry restoration scheme, the following are 

proposed feature levels relating to that of the River Slea (see drawing 

DG/OQ/FRI/HE/06/Res/CS, Proposed Hill Restoration Cross Section): 

 Restoration of proposed extension area (Ranks Hill) = 61m rising up 

to ~72m AOD; 

 Typical level of existing quarry restoration = 62- 64m AOD; 

 Water surface level of restoration lake (approx.) = 61m AOD; 

 Deepest level of restoration lake (approx.) = 55m AOD; 

 Level of ground around retained Oak trees on southern boundary to 

proposed extension area = 65m AOD; 

 Level of PROW 26  = 76m falling to 66m AOD; 

 Approximate level of Slea River = 61m AOD; 

 Highest point of boundary between Slea River and quarry boundary = 

66m AOD; and 

 Typical level of field between Slea River and quarry boundary = 63m 

AOD. 

 

43. The submitted, revised Restoration Plans incorporate some revisions to the 

existing, approved scheme for the wider Frith End Quarry site. The proposed 

revised Restoration Plan (see DG/Q0/FRI/Phasing Plan/Res/Full/RevA, 

Restoration Proposal Revised, revision A, dated July 2021) includes three 

modifications to the currently approved plan. These are: 

Page 20

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=102521&imageId=22&isPlan=False&fileName=DG_QO_FRI_Phasing%20Plan_Res_Full_revA-Restoration%20Proposal-rev_updated.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=94994&imageId=17&isPlan=False&fileName=DG_QO_FRI_HE_06_RES_CS-Hill%20Restoration%20Cross%20Sections.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=102521&imageId=22&isPlan=False&fileName=DG_QO_FRI_Phasing%20Plan_Res_Full_revA-Restoration%20Proposal-rev_updated.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=102521&imageId=22&isPlan=False&fileName=DG_QO_FRI_Phasing%20Plan_Res_Full_revA-Restoration%20Proposal-rev_updated.pdf


 A proposal that the acid grassland would be entirely substituted with the 

natural grassland meadow, to reflect the views of County Ecology that acid 

grassland could be difficult to achieve; 

 Some of the rough grazing area, shown on the currently approved 

restoration plan in the northern quarry fields, is to be replaced by neutral 

wildflower meadow; and  

 Relating to the new hedgerow planting; new sections are now proposed to 

the southern quarry boundary to fill in/connect the gaps between the 

existing trees/vegetation. 

 

44. The submitted Planning Statement states that ‘the proposed hill restoration 

and improvements to the approved restoration plan are considered to uplift 

the site’s ecological value, provide an overall biodiversity net gain (a 25.13 

habitat units gain and 1.88 hedgerow units gain) and enhancement to the 

approved restoration scheme.’ 

 

Planning application 30633/040 

 

45. Planning application 30633/040 seeks to vary conditions to the existing 

overarching planning permission 30633/039 for Frith End Quarry. It seeks to 

vary conditions 1 (Timescale), 4 (Phasing) and 10 (Landscaping) to allow the 

permission’s conditions to accommodate the proposed Hill Extension 

presented in application 30633/041. The main change being to seek to 

reorder the phased areas for extraction and restoration at the quarry to allow 

the existing site facilities to accommodate the proposed extension.  

 

46. The existing wording of Condition 1 (Timescale) is: 

 

The extraction of sand and clay shall cease on or before 31 December 2022 

and the site office, all foundations and hardstandings, access roads, all plant 

(including processing plant and ancillary washing facilities), machinery and 

stockpiles shall be removed and the site restored in accordance with the 

schemes approved under Condition 23 (Restoration) within a further period 

of two years. 

    

47. The proposal is to revise the wording of Condition 1 to: 

 

The extraction of sand and clay shall cease on or before 31 December 2022, 

except for extraction from the south-west extension area, (as per PP Ref. no 

‘xx’, dated ‘xx’), that shall cease on or before 30 June 2024. The site office, 

all foundations and hardstandings, access roads, all plant (including 

processing plant and ancillary washing facilities), machinery and stockpiles 

Page 21

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/040
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/040
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=21325


shall be removed and the site restored in accordance with the schemes 

approved under Condition 23 (Restoration) on or before 31 December 2024. 

 

48. The following wording has been adapted in the proposed conditions in the 

Appendix B of this report to: 

 

The extraction of sand and clay shall cease on or before 31 December 

2022, except for extraction from the south-west Hill Extension area, as 

granted for extraction and restoration on or before the date conditioned by 

Planning Permission 30633/041, or any subsequent planning permission, 

as identified on drawing DG/Q0/FRI/HE/02, Application and Land 

Ownership Area, dated December 2020. 

 

The site office, all foundations and hardstandings, access roads, all plant 

(including processing plant and ancillary washing facilities), machinery and 

stockpiles shall be removed and the site restored in accordance with the 

schemes approved under Condition 23 (Restoration) on or before 31 

December 2024. 

 

Reason:  To secure the satisfactory and timely restoration of the site in 

accordance with Policy 9 (Restoration of minerals and waste 

developments) of the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

 

49. The existing wording of Condition 4 (Phasing) is:  

 

The phased extraction and restoration shall be accordance with the 

following plans as approved under 30633/038, or any subsequently revised 

plans approved by the Minerals and Waste Planning Authority. 

• DG/Q0/FRI/WORKING PLAN/01, titled WORKING PLAN_2020, 

dated November 2020; 

• DG/Q0/FRI/WORKING PLAN/02 – titled WORKING PLAN_2021, 

dated November 2020; 

• DG/Q0/FRI/WORKING PLAN/03 titled WORKING PLAN_2022, 

dated November 2020; 

• DG/Q0/FRI/PHASING PLAN/RES/1, titled RESTORATION 

SOLEY_2023, dated November 2020; 

• DG/Q0/FRI/PHASING PLAN/RES/2 titled RESTORATION 

SOLEY_2024, dated November 2020; 

• DG/Q0/FRI/PHASINGPLAN/RES/FULL, titled RESTORATION 

PROPOSAL, dated July 2018; and 

• DG/Q0/FRI/RES/CS, titled RESTORATION PROPOSAL CROSS 

SECTIONS, dated July 2018.  

Page 22



 

50. The proposal is to revise the wording of Condition 4 to the below. This is to 

allow the proposed revised working and restoration drawings to become the 

conditioned drawings the development shall be carried out in accordance 

with: 

 

The phased extraction and restoration shall be accordance with the 

following approved plans, or any subsequently revised plans approved by 

the Minerals and Waste Planning Authority: 

• DG/Q0/FRI/WORKING PLAN/02/Rev, Working Plan 2021 revised, 

dated December 2020; 

• DG/Q0/FRI/WORKING PLAN/03/Rev, Working Plan 2022 revised, 

dated December 2020; 

• DG/Q0/FRI/PHASING PLAN/RES/1/Rev, Restoration Solely 

(Excluding Hill) 2023 revised, dated December 2020; 

• DG/Q0/FRI/PHASING PLAN/RES/2/Rev, Restoration Solely 

(Excluding Hill) 2024 revised, dated December 2020; 

• DG/Q0/FRI/Phasing Plan/Res/Full/RevA, Restoration Proposal 

Revised, revision A, dated July 2021; 

• DG/Q0/FRI/Res/CS/Rev, Restoration Proposal Cross Sections 

Revised, dated December 2020; and 

• Figure 2 RevA, Aftercare Plan, revision A, dated July 2021. 

 

 Reason:  To secure satisfactory control over working in accordance with 

Policy 9 (Restoration of minerals and waste developments) of the 

Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

 

51. The existing wording of Condition 10 (Landscaping) is:  

 

The landscaping and restoration shall be implemented according to the 

following schemes and plans as approved under 30633/038, or any 

subsequently approved revision by the Minerals and Waste Planning 

Authority.   It shall then be implemented in a phased process in accordance 

with Condition 4 (Phasing) throughout the duration of operations at the site. 

• Landscape Management and Aftercare document - dated November 

2020; 

• Restoration Proposal Plan - DG/Q0/FRI/PHASING PLAN/RES/FUL 

rev 0, - dated July 2018; and 

• Figure 2 - Final Restoration Plan, dated July 2018.  

  

52. The proposal is to revise the wording of Condition 10 is to allow the 

proposed revised landscaping documents and restoration plan to become 

Page 23



the conditioned drawings in which the development shall be carried out in 

accordance with. The proposed wording is as follows: 

 

Landscaping and restoration shall be implemented according to the 

following approved schemes and plans, or any subsequently approved 

revision by the Minerals and Waste Planning Authority. It shall be 

implemented in a phased process in accordance with Condition 4 

(Phasing) throughout the duration of operations at the site. 

• Landscape management and Aftercare document revision, dated 

November 2020 

• DG/Q0/FRI/Phasing Plan/Res/Full/RevA, Restoration Proposal 

Revised, revision A, dated July 2021. 

• DG/Q0/FRI/Res/CS/Rev, Restoration Proposal Cross Sections 

Revised, dated December 2020 

• Figure 2 Rev, Aftercare Plan, dated July 2021. 

 

Reason:  In the interests of visual amenity and quality restoration in 

accordance with Policies 9 (Restoration of minerals and waste 

developments), 10 (Protecting public health, safety and amenity) and 13 

(High-quality design of minerals and waste development of the Hampshire 

Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

 

53. It is not proposed to change the following existing conditioned elements of 

the quarry’s operations: 

 The date of the completion of restoration and the end of the quarry; 

 Hours of working (0700-1800 Monday to Friday and 0700-1300 

Saturdays, with no working on Sundays of recognised public 

holidays); 

 HGV movements (no movement limits, but accordance to the hours of 

working); 

 Protection of the water environment; 

 Management, monitoring and mitigation for noise, dust and odour; 

 Access to and facilities at the quarry; and 

 Access for the public to the Public Rights of Way (PROWs). 

 

Environmental Impact Assessment application process 

 

54. Planning application proposal 30633/041 is an Environmental Impact 

Assessment development under the Town & Country Planning 

(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017. The Minerals and 

Waste Planning Authority issued two formal requests for further information 

(Regulation 25 request) in accordance with the EIA Regulations: 

Page 24

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/041
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/571/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/571/contents/made


 

55. EIA Request 1: 4 August 2021 - A request was sent for further information 

on landscape, arboriculture and visual impact; ecology and protected 

species; and hydrology and flood risk, and restoration - the applicant 

submitted that information on 29 September 2021. The required full re-

consultation ran between 4 October and 8 November 2021. 

 

56. The applicant submitted the following further information and revisions in 

response to EIA Request 1. The applicant provided a response letter that 

clearly sets out the revisions and additional information, and all revisions are 

clearly highlighted in the submitted documents: 

 The following parts of the Environmental Statement are revised: 

o Contents page (Chapter 15 added), Drawings & Appendices List 

(3 drawings updated, 4 Appendices added); 

o Chapter 1: (updated) para. 1.4.2;  

o Chapter 3: (updated): Drawing list, sections: Vegetation 

clearance, Restoration concept, Protected species, Variations to 

the quarry working, restoration and landscape schemes; 

o Chapter 5: para. 5.6.5 (updated), section Landscape 

Management and Aftercare Plan (added); 

o Chapter 6: (updated) sections: Bat Activity Survey, Consultation, 

table 6.8 /Legally Protected & Priority Species and associated 

appendices such as Sand Martin Status; 

o Chapter 7: Section Flood Modelling (added) and associated 

appendices such as Appendix 7.3: Flood modelling 

(supplement); 

o Chapter 15 (supplement) and associated appendices such as 

Appendix 15.1: Arboricultural Survey, Impact Assessment and 

Method Statement (supplement; 

o Non-Technical Summary (updated). 

 Regulation 25 Response Letter 

 Drawings (updated to show shrub planting to north side of the 

restoration lake): 

o Revised Restoration Plan, DG/QO/FRI/HE/05/Res/Full/rev, dated 

July 2021 (this replaces Restoration Plan, 

DG/QO/FRI/HE/05/Res/Full, December 2020); 

o Revised Restoration Proposal Plan – Revision A, 

DG/QO/FRI/Phasing Plan/Res/Full/revA, dated July 2021 (this 

replaces Restoration Proposal Plan-Rev, DG/QO/FRI/Phasing 

Plan/Res/Full/rev, December 2020); and  

o Aftercare Plan - Revision A, Figure 2/revA, dated July 2021 (this 

replaces Final Restoration Plan-rev, Figure 2/rev, December 

2020). 

Page 25

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=101034&imageId=8&isPlan=False&fileName=EIA%20Reg%2025%20letter%2001.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=102534&imageId=43&isPlan=False&fileName=ES%20Content_updated.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=102535&imageId=44&isPlan=False&fileName=ES%20Chapter%2001%20%28Introduction%29_updated.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=102536&imageId=45&isPlan=False&fileName=ES%20Chapter%2003%20%28Proposed%20Development%29_updated.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=102537&imageId=46&isPlan=False&fileName=ES%20Chapter%2005%20%28Landscape%20%26%20Visual%20Impact%29_updated.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=102538&imageId=52&isPlan=False&fileName=ES%20Chapter%2006%20%28Ecology%20%26%20Protected%20Species%29_updated.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=102531&imageId=60&isPlan=False&fileName=6.5%20Sand%20Martin%20Status_supplement.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=107048&imageId=63&isPlan=False&fileName=ES%20Chapter%2007%20%28%20Hydrology%20%26%20Flood%20Risk%29_updated%20%28February%202022%29.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=102533&imageId=66&isPlan=False&fileName=7.3%20Flood%20modelling_supplement.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=102540&imageId=76&isPlan=False&fileName=ES%20Chapter%2015%20%28Arboriculture%29_supplement_.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=102541&imageId=77&isPlan=False&fileName=15.1%20Arboricultural%20Survey%2C%20IA%26MS_supplement_.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=102541&imageId=77&isPlan=False&fileName=15.1%20Arboricultural%20Survey%2C%20IA%26MS_supplement_.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=102523&imageId=40&isPlan=False&fileName=Non-Technical%20Summary_updated.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=102520&imageId=19&isPlan=False&fileName=DG_QO_FRI_HE_05_Res_Full_rev-Restoration_updated.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=102521&imageId=25&isPlan=False&fileName=DG_QO_FRI_Phasing%20Plan_Res_Full_revA-Restoration%20Proposal-rev_updated.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=102522&imageId=27&isPlan=False&fileName=Figure%202_revA-Aftercare%20Plan_updated.pdf


 

57. EIA Request 2 - 10 February 2022: A request was sent for further 

information on hydrology and flood risk – the applicant submitted the 

information 11 February.  The required full re-consultation ran between 18 

February to 28 March 2022.   

 

58. The applicant submitted the following further information and revisions in 

response to EIA Request 2. The applicant provided a response letter that 

clearly sets out the revisions and additional information, and all revisions are 

clearly highlighted in the submitted documents: 

 Regulation 25 response letter 

 Revised Environmental Statement. The following parts are revised: 

o Chapter 7: Section Flood Modelling (updated) and Appendix 7.4 

(supplement) including: 

 Detailed flood modelling cover letter, dated 11.02.2021; 

 Detailed Flood Modelling Report, dated February 2022 

(ref.: P2112002_FrithEndQuarry_ModellingReport_v1-

1_FINAL); 

 Appendix 7.4 The responses to the Modelling & Hydrology 

Reviews;  

 Environmental Statement - Appendix 7.4 Hydrology 

Review Template;  

 Environmental Statement - Appendix 7.4 The Hydrological 

Calculations Record; and  

 Environmental Statement - Appendix 7.4 Model files - The 

responses to the EA modelling and hydrology reviews (EA 

Excel spreadsheets).  

 

Development Plan and Guidance 

 

59. Paragraph 47 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2021) (NPPF) 

requires ‘applications for planning permission (to) be determined in 

accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations 

indicate otherwise’. Therefore, consideration of the relevant plans, guidance 

and policies and whether the proposal is in accordance with these is of 

relevance to decision making.  

 

60. The following plans and associated policies are considered to be relevant to 

the proposal:  

 

National Planning Policy Framework (2021) (NPPF) 

61. The following other sections and paragraphs are relevant to this proposal: 

Page 26

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=107038&imageId=6&isPlan=False&fileName=Reg%2025%20%282%29%20request%20letter.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=107049&imageId=67&isPlan=False&fileName=Detailed%20flood%20modelling%20cover%20letter.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=107051&imageId=68&isPlan=False&fileName=Detailed%20Flood%20Modelling%20Report.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=107063&imageId=69&isPlan=False&fileName=LIT%2017617%20-%20Non%20-%20real%20time%20Hydraulic%20Model%20Review%20Grundon%20Quarry.xlsm
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=107063&imageId=69&isPlan=False&fileName=LIT%2017617%20-%20Non%20-%20real%20time%20Hydraulic%20Model%20Review%20Grundon%20Quarry.xlsm
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=107064&imageId=70&isPlan=False&fileName=LIT%2017618%20-%20Hydrology%20Review%20Template_Grundon_Quarry.xlsx
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=107064&imageId=70&isPlan=False&fileName=LIT%2017618%20-%20Hydrology%20Review%20Template_Grundon_Quarry.xlsx
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=107050&imageId=71&isPlan=False&fileName=The%20hydrological%20calculation%20record.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=107050&imageId=71&isPlan=False&fileName=The%20hydrological%20calculation%20record.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=107065&imageId=72&isPlan=False&fileName=Reg.%2025%20Response%20letter_updated.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2


 Paragraph 11 (Presumption in favour of sustainable development); 

 Paragraph 47 (Determining application); 

 Paragraphs 55 and 56 (Planning conditions) 

 Paragraph 81 (Support of sustainable economic growth); 

 Paragraph 85 (local business and community needs in rural areas); 

 Paragraph 100 (Public rights of way and access); 

 Paragraph 120 (Making effective use of land in planning decisions); 

 Paragraphs 130 and 131 (Achieving well-designed places); 

 Paragraphs 153-154, 157 (Planning for climate change); 

 Paragraph 167 (Flood risk); 

 Paragraphs 174, and 180 to 182 (Conserving and enhancing the 

natural environment); and 

 Paragraphs 211 to 214 (Facilitating the sustainable use of minerals). 

 

National Planning Practice Guidance (Live) 

62. Elements of National Planning Practice Guidance (Live)  are also relevant to 

the potential proposal. In particular the section on Minerals. The following 

paragraphs are relevant to the proposal: 

 What is the relationship between planning and other regulatory 

regimes? (Paragraph: 012 Reference ID: 27-012-20140306 - Revision 

date: 06 03 2014);  

 What are the environmental issues of minerals working that should be 

addressed by mineral planning authorities? (Paragraph: 013 Reference 

ID: 27-013-20140306 - Revision date: 06 03 2014); 

 What issues are for other regulatory regimes to address? (Paragraph: 

014 Reference ID: 27-014-20140306 - Revision date: 06 03 2014); 

 How should mineral operators seek to minimise the impact of 

development upon properties and the local environment in close 

proximity to mineral workings? (Paragraph: 015 Reference ID: 27-015-

20140306 - Revision date: 06 03 2014); 

 How should mineral planning authorities assess the cumulative impact 

of minerals development? (Paragraph: 017 Reference ID: 27-017-

20140306 -Revision date: 06 03 2014); 

 Are separation distances/buffer zones appropriate? (Paragraph: 018 

Reference ID: 27-018-20140306 -Revision date: 06 03 2014) 

 How should minerals operators seek to control noise emissions? 

(Paragraph: 019 Reference ID: 27-019-20140306 - Revision date: 06 

03 2014); 

 What are the appropriate noise standards for mineral operators for 

normal operations? (Paragraph: 021 Reference ID: 27-021-20140306 - 

Revision date: 06 03 2014); and 

Page 27

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/minerals


 How should mineral operators seek to minimise dust emissions? 

(Paragraph: 023 Reference ID: 27-023-20140306 - Revision date: 06 

03 2014). 

Hampshire Minerals & Waste Plan (2013) (HMWP)  

 

63. The following policies are relevant to the proposal:  

 Policy 1 (Sustainable minerals and waste development); 

 Policy 2 (Climate change – mitigation and adaptation); 

 Policy 3 (Protection of habitats and species); 

 Policy 5 (Protection of the countryside); 

 Policy 7 (Conserving the historic environment and heritage assets); 

 Policy 8 (Protection of soils); 

 Policy 9 (Restoration of quarries and waste developments); 

 Policy 10 (Protecting public health, safety and amenity); 

 Policy 11 (Flood risk and prevention); 

 Policy 12 (Managing traffic);  

 Policy 13 (High-quality design of minerals and waste development); 

 Policy 14 (Community benefits); 

 Policy 15 (Safeguarding - mineral resources); 

 Policy 16 (Safeguarding - minerals infrastructure);  

 Policy 17 (Aggregate supply – capacity and source); 

 Policy 20 (Local land-won aggregates); and 

 Policy 21 (Silica sand development). 

 

East Hampshire Local Plan Core Strategy (Adopted 2014) (EHLP) 

 

64. The following policy is relevant to the proposal:  

 Policy CP25 (Flood risk). 

 

Consultations  

 

65. The below consultation responses incorporate all responses received at time 

of writing this report, including for the Regulation 25 re-consultations. Full 

copies of the responses received can be found at on the application 

webpages. 

 

66. County Councillor Kemp-Gee: Objection due to danger of flood risk from 

the River Slea, harm to habitat of nesting sand martin colony, the loss of 

Ranks Hill as an important local landscape feature and the loss of rare 

commons habitat. 

 

67. East Hampshire District Council: Was notified. 

Page 28

http://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://www.easthants.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/DP01%20East%20Hampshire%20District%20Local%20Plan%20Joint%20Core%20Strategy%20COMPLETE.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/041#undefined


 

68. East Hampshire District Council Environmental Health Officer (EHO): 

No objection subject to conditions on noise and work hours. 

69. Dockenfield Parish Council: Objects on the grounds of adverse 

cumulative, noise, dust, amenity, visual, landscape and environmental 

impacts. 

 

70. Headley Parish Council: Objects on the grounds of detrimental effect on 

the surrounding area, particularly visual and landscape impacts. 

 

71. Kingsley Parish Council: Objects on the grounds of visual and landscape 

impact by the loss of Ranks Hill, cumulative impact and the absence of flood 

risk reduction in the proposed development. 

 

72. Natural England: No objection. 

 

73. Environment Agency: No objection based on additional flood modelling 

submitted following Reg 25 request. 

 

74. Farnborough Airport: No objection. 

 

75. Defence Infrastructure Organisation: Was notified. 

 

76. TAG Aviation UK Ltd: No objection. 

 

77. Local Highway Authority: No objection. 

 

78. Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA): No objection. 

 

79. Landscape Planning and Heritage (Landscape) (HCC): No objection 

subject to conditions to secure landscape management and aftercare 

reflecting the revised restoration scheme, details of the specification for 

planting, seeding and maintenance operations and to establish timelines for 

the implementation of the landscape planting, seeding and maintenance 

works. 

 

80. County Arboriculture (HCC): No objection subject to pre-commencement 

conditions to changes to the Arboricultural Method Statement and Tree 

Protection Plan to ensure it is enforceable and amendments to aspects of 

the proposed restoration and aftercare.  

Page 29

http://www3.hants.gov.uk/mw-attachment?location=PLANNING%5C15-02619-HCS%5Cconsultees%5CEnvironmental%20Health.pdf
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/mw-attachment?location=PLANNING%5C15-02619-HCS%5Cconsultees%5CMicheldever%20PC.pdf
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/mw-attachment?location=PLANNING%5C15-02619-HCS%5Cconsultees%5CMicheldever%20PC.pdf
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/mw-attachment?location=PLANNING%5C15-02619-HCS%5Cconsultees%5CMicheldever%20PC.pdf
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/mw-attachment?location=PLANNING%5C15-02619-HCS%5Cconsultees%5CNatural%20England.pdf
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/mw-attachment?location=planning%5C15-02619-HCS%5Cconsultees%5CLead%20Local%20Flood%20Authority.pdf


 

81. County Ecologist (HCC): No objection subject to a pre-commencement 

condition to have submitted and approved a revised Ecology and Landscape 

Management Plan and an increased aftercare period to allow habitats to 

successfully establish. 

 

82. Landscape Planning and Heritage (Archaeology) (HCC): No objection 

subject to a condition to secure archaeological monitoring and detail how 

archaeological evidence will be sought, recognised and recorded. 

 

83. Rights of Way Manager (HCC): Was notified. 

 

Representations 

 

84. Hampshire County Council’s Statement of Community Involvement (2017) 

(SCI) sets out the adopted consultation and publicity procedures associated 

with determining planning applications. 

 

85. In complying with the requirements of the SCI, the County Council: 

 Published a notice of the application in the Hampshire Independent; 

 Placed notices of the application at the application site; 

 Consulted all statutory and non-statutory consultees in accordance with 

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management 

Procedure) (England) Order 2015; and 

 Notified by letter all residential properties within 100 metres of the 

boundary of the site. 

 

86. As of 29 December 2021, a total of 16 representations (from 10 

respondents) has been received. The majority objected to the proposal but 

there were two representations in support of the proposal. The main areas of 

concern raised in the objections related to the following areas: 

 The proposed extension site expands the approved quarry site; 

 The loss of Ranks Hill as a local landmark; 

 The loss of biodiversity, including acid heathland; 

 Impact to protected species (sand martins); 

 Noise; 

 Landscape and visual amenity impact; 

 Development creep, in area and in time; 

 Cumulative impact, in magnitude and duration;  

 Adverse community impact; and  

 Impact on flood risk. 

Page 30

http://www3.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/sci-2.htm
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/publicnotices/public-notice-publication.htm
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/595/article/2/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/595/article/2/made


 

87. All representations received are available to view, in full, on the applications 

webpage during the processing of the planning application. 

88. The planning applications were also discussed at the site Liaison Panel. 

 

89. The above issues will be addressed within the following commentary, 

(except where identified as not being relevant to the decision).  

 

Habitats Regulation Assessment [HRA]  

90. The Conservation of Species and Habitats Regulations 2017 (otherwise known 

as the ‘Habitats Regulations’) transpose European Directives into UK law. 

 

91. In accordance with the Habitats Regulations, Hampshire County Council (as 

a ‘competent authority’) must undertake a formal assessment of the 

implications of any new projects we may be granting planning permission for 

e.g. proposals that may be capable of affecting the qualifying interest 

features of the following European designated sites: 

 Special Protection Areas (SPA); 

 Special Areas of Conservation (SAC); and  

 Ramsars. 

 

92. Collectively this assessment is described as ‘Habitats Regulations 

Assessment’ (HRA). A HRA needs to be carried out unless the project is 

wholly connected with or necessary to the conservation management of 

such sites’ qualifying features.   

 

93. It is acknowledged that the proposed development includes environmental 

mitigation essential for the delivery of the proposed development regardless 

of any effect they may have on impacts on European designated sites. 

 

94. The HRA screening hereby carried out by the Minerals and Waste Planning 

Authority considers the proposed development to have no likely significant 

effect on the identified European designated sites due to It not being located 

at a distance to be considered to have proximity to directly impact on the 

European designated sites nor have any functional impact pathways 

connecting the proposed works with any European designated sites. The 

consultation response from Natural England raises no objection and 

confirms this position. 

 

Climate Change 

 

Page 31

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/041#undefined
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/1012/contents/made


95. Hampshire County Council declared a climate emergency on 17 June 2019 

and has implemented the Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan 2020-

2025. This aligns with the UK government amendment to the Climate 

Change Act 2008 (June 2019) that introduced a net-zero greenhouse gases 

target by 2050. East Hampshire District Council has also declared a climate 

change emergency aligned to the UK Government of net-zero by or before 

2050.  

 

96. The proposed development has been subject to consideration of paragraphs 

153-154 and 157 of the NPPF (2021) as well as Policy 2 (Climate change – 

mitigation and adoption) of the HMWP (2013).  

 

97. Chapter 12 of the Environmental Statement (ES) discusses the issue of 

climate change. No detailed assessment of climate change adaption or 

mitigation was included in the application. The application documentation 

states that the proposals impact on local climate change is negligible. There 

is a reliance on heavy fossil fuelled plant and HGVs to extract and export 

mineral from the site.  No suggestion of alternative technologies or mitigation 

has been suggested to try and address this. The proposed Restoration 

Scheme does not provide a significant net benefit to climate change 

mitigation nor would compensate for the emissions of the proposed 

development. However, it is recognised that the overarching  restoration of 

the site has been determined by the grant of previous permissions and that 

site. Furthermore, national minerals policy supports the provision of an 

adequate and steady supply of aggregate so the sites contribution to this is 

of significance. The existing quarry site is also allocated and safeguarded in 

the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (2013) for soft and silica sand uses.  

The overarching proposal under planning application 30633/041 is for an 

extension to an existing quarry, and so allows use of established facilities 

and markets, reducing the need to open a new quarry site to meet the need 

for soft and silica sand. Extending an existing quarry is typically more 

efficient, with less emissions, than the creation of a new extraction site.  

 

98. With respect to adaption, climate change impacts to hydrology have been 

considered in the submitted Flood Risk Assessments and associated 

modelling. 

 

Commentary 

 

Principle of the development  

 

Page 32

https://www.hants.gov.uk/landplanningandenvironment/environment/climatechange/whatarewedoing/climatechangestrategy
https://www.hants.gov.uk/landplanningandenvironment/environment/climatechange/whatarewedoing/climatechangestrategy
https://www.hants.gov.uk/landplanningandenvironment/environment/climatechange/whatarewedoing/climatechangestrategy
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2019/9780111187654
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2019/9780111187654
https://www.easthants.gov.uk/climate-and-environment
https://www.easthants.gov.uk/climate-and-environment
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/041


99. The use of Frith End Quarry for mineral extraction, ancillary operations and 

restoration has been long established through the granting of several 

mineral-related planning permissions for a number of years (see Planning 

History). The combination of the two proposals seek to both extend the 

existing quarry to the south west with associated modifications to the 

approved quarry schemes (30633/041) and associated variations of 

Conditions 1 (Timescale), 4 (Phasing) and 10 (Landscaping) of Planning 

Permission 30633/039 (30633/040). 

 

100. The local planning context includes a number of planning permissions at 

Grooms Farm. Grooms Farm is located adjacent to the quarry and its haul 

road. In 2015, East Hampshire District Council (EHDC) granted planning 

permission for an events venue on a site adjacent to and using the Frith End 

Quarry haul road (see Planning History). It sought permission to retain the 

haul road beyond the planning permission of the quarry. The quarry’s 

planning permission conditions the requirement to remove the haul road as 

part of the restoration of the site. This planning permission was granted a 

variation of conditions in 2017. These activities are potentially not compatible 

with the quarry. However, it is assumed that the diurnal pattern of the activity 

of the event venue would be evenings and weekends, and therefore the 

activities of the quarry would rarely overlap the activities of the events venue. 

 

101. Site visits by the Minerals and Waste Planning Authority in 2021 and 2022 

confirm that there is no evidence to suggest this venue development has 

commenced on that site, and so the permission has not been implemented 

within the three-year deadline, and so the planning permission has lapsed. 

Therefore, any impacts of the proposed quarry extension and its use of the 

existing quarry haul road on that events venue do not need to be considered.  

 

102. National planning and minerals policy is translated into policies Hampshire 

Minerals and Waste Plan (HMWP) (2013) through its policies relating to 

sustainable minerals and waste development (Policy 1), the environment 

(Policies 2-9), amenity (Policies 10-14) and the economy (Policies 15-24).  

The HMWP (2013) emphases the importance of striking a careful balance, 

focussing on sustainable minerals and waste development, whilst protecting 

Hampshire’s environment, maintain its communities and supporting the local 

economy. It calls for ways of the extraction of minerals to have as little 

impact on the environment and communities as possible. 

 

103. The minerals industry is reporting a shift in demand following the easing of 

lockdown restriction as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. It is being 

reported that local quarries are struggling to meet the surge in demand for 

Page 33

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/041
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/040
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf


aggregates, in particular, for development and major construction projects in 

Hampshire and in nearby market areas.  

 

104. Policy 1 (Sustainable minerals and waste development) of the HMWP (2013) 

states a positive approach to minerals and waste development will be taken 

‘that reflects the presumption in favour of sustainable development contained 

in the NPPF (2021). Minerals and waste development that accords with 

policies in the Plan will be approved without delay, unless material 

considerations indicate otherwise. Where there are no policies relevant to 

the proposal or the relevant policies are out of date at the time of making the 

decision, planning permission will be granted unless material considerations 

indicate otherwise, taking into account whether:  

 Any adverse impacts of granting planning permission would significantly 
and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the 
policies in the NPPF taken as a whole; or 

 Specific policies in that Framework indicate that development should be 
restricted. 
 

105. It is generally considered that the winning of remaining minerals in an 

existing quarry is more sustainable than the creation of a new quarry. No 

development is proposed to sterilise the minerals on the proposed site. 

However, this application represents the opportunity to acquire the minerals 

in an effective way utilising the existing facilities of the wider quarry and with 

lesser impacts compared to if quarrying to cease at the wider site and then 

recommence again in the future.  

 

106. The compliance with the overarching Policy 1 of the HMWP (2013) is 

addressed across this commentary section of the report. 

 

Need for minerals 

 

107. Soft sand and silica sand are two different sands, defined by their use. Soft 

Sand (also referred to as building sand) is used by the building, construction 

and civil engineering industries. Silica sand (also referred to as industrial 

sand) is used for high-quality silica sand products for the golf, equestrian and 

leisure markets, and well as for industrial manufacturing. 

 

108. As already set out, the sand from the Frith End Quarry is approximately two-

thirds building sand (soft sand) and a up to a third silica sand. Soft sand is 

used for the building, construction and civil engineering industries and silica 

sand is used for uses such as horticulture and recreation / leisure. 

Paragraph 6.89 of the HMWP (2013) states that silica sand is also known as 

Page 34

https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf


industrial sand, marketed for purposes other than for direct use in the 

construction industry (i.e. non-aggregate uses).  

 

109. Hampshire’s most widely worked local mineral is land-won sand and gravel. 

This is comprised of minerals resources of sharp sand and gravel and soft 

sand. In Hampshire, sharp sand and gravel is much more common than soft 

sand and there are fewer opportunities for extracting soft sand locally and in 

neighbouring areas. Accordingly, soft sand is a relatively scarce resource 

which is significant not just for Hampshire but also for surrounding areas. 

There are no viable alternatives for soft sand, meaning that it can only be 

sourced from the land. For the past few years, the site has provided a steady 

supply of sand to the local market. This was at the range of some 80,000 

tonnes of minerals per annum prior to the flood event in 2019. 

 

110. Sand and gravel resources are safeguarded though Policy 15 

(Safeguarding- mineral resources) of the HMWP (2013). The existing quarry 

is also safeguarded under Policy 16 (Safeguarding- mineral infrastructure) of 

the HMWP (2013).  

 

111. Paragraph 211 of the NPPF (2021) states that great weight should be given 

to the benefits of mineral extraction to the economy.  

 

112. The NPPF (2021) requires a minimum landbank of seven years for sand and 

gravel. Policy 17 (Aggregate supply – capacity and source) of the HMWP 

(2013) sets out the need for a supply of land-won primary aggregate supply 

in Hampshire alongside marine-won aggregates, recycled and secondary 

aggregates and importation of minerals (particularly limestone) from outside 

of Hampshire. It states that an adequate and steady supply of aggregates 

will be provided from local sand and gravel sites at a rate of 1.56 million 

tonnes per annum (mtpa) for the period ending 2030. Of this, 0.28mtpa shall 

be soft sand. 

 

113. The HMWP (2013) is supported by the annual Local Aggregate Assessment 

(LAA) report, produced by the Minerals and Waste Planning Authority. The 

2021 LAA gave an annual sales rate of 0.23mtpa, and a landbank of 

currently approximately 0.72 years for soft sand. Therefore, Hampshire is 

currently significantly below the national set landbank target of 7 years for 

soft sand. The LAA notes that sales have reduced significantly due to 

temporal supply issues at existing soft sand sites and the landbank at these 

sites are low. 

 

Page 35

https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://hants.sharepoint.com/sites/ETEE8681/Shared%20Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2FETEE8681%2FShared%20Documents%2FHMWP%20LAA%202021%2Epdf&parent=%2Fsites%2FETEE8681%2FShared%20Documents&p=true&ga=1
https://hants.sharepoint.com/sites/ETEE8681/Shared%20Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2FETEE8681%2FShared%20Documents%2FHMWP%20LAA%202021%2Epdf&parent=%2Fsites%2FETEE8681%2FShared%20Documents&p=true&ga=1
https://hants.sharepoint.com/sites/ETEE8681/Shared%20Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2FETEE8681%2FShared%20Documents%2FHMWP%20LAA%202021%2Epdf&parent=%2Fsites%2FETEE8681%2FShared%20Documents&p=true&ga=1


114. At this time, there are only two sites producing soft sand in Hampshire, Frith 

End Quarry and Kingsley Quarry.   

 

115. Planning application 30633/041 focuses on the extension of the existing site 

(see Appendix D). The applicant notes that the Ranks Hill extension area is 

expected to yield approximately 100,000 tonnes of sand (15-18 months of 

production) .  At the time of the submission of the application, it was 

estimated that the existing quarry had 120,000 tonnes (18 months 

production) of remaining reserved although it was noted that the flooding of 

the existing void may have resulted in some of this sand being lost.  

 

116. Policy 20 (Local land-won aggregates) of the HMWP (2013) sets out the 

sites and criteria for mineral extraction to meet the requirements of Policy 17 

(Aggregate supply – capacity and source). Policy 20 lists the extraction of 

remaining reserves at existing sites in part 1 of the policy. Part 1 includes 

Frith End Quarry for soft sand. This current proposal, as an unallocated 

extension to an existing site. It therefore falls under part 4 of Policy 20. This 

proposal meets part 4 (a), in that, it maximises the use of existing plant and 

infrastructure and available mineral resources at an existing associated 

quarry. Paragraph 6.83, in support of Policy 20, states that the Plan expects 

to provide contingency in aggregate supply through unplanned opportunities, 

including extensions to permitted local and active mineral extraction sites. 

The extension is therefore supported by this policy. 

 

117. The Minerals and Waste Planning Authority is currently considering a 

planning application for Purple Haze which is a site allocation under part 3 of 

Policy 20 of the HMWP (2013). This was submitted on 23 March 2021 

(planning application 21/10459). The proposed development is for the 

extraction of approximately 4.5 million tonnes of building (soft) sand with 

incidental sharp sand and gravel, over a period of 25-35 years, at a rate of 

150-200,000 tonnes per annum. The application does not differentiate any 

silica sand component. The planning application is yet to be determined and 

so the potential reserves from Purple Haze cannot be given significant 

weight and are not considered to form part of Hampshire’s permitted 

reserves. Should it be granted permission, it would make a significant 

contribute to the soft sand landbank. However, even if permission were to be 

granted,  it is likely that it would not commence exporting soft sand to market 

until 2024-2025 at the earliest, meaning that the extraction at Frith End 

would be completed by the time the site comes on stream. 

 

118. An extension to Kingsley Quarry, the other soft sand quarry in Hampshire, 

was granted planning permission in 2020 (planning application 51188/003). 

Page 36

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/041
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/21/10459
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/51188/003


This was for the extraction of approximately 1,000,000 tonnes of soft sand, 

equal to a 4.35 year contribution to the soft sand landbank (at the 2021 LAA 

sales rate of 0.23 Mtpa – 2020 sales rate was exceptionally low due to 

incidents at two soft sand quarries preventing sales). This permission is yet 

to be implemented and the extraction at Kingsley Quarry is also currently 

mothballed, meaning there is a further reduction in soft sand supply 

currently. 

119. The minerals from the quarry are also used for silica uses (silica sand).  The 

Minerals and Waste Planning Authority acknowledges that the minerals 

extracted from the Frith End Quarry is suitable for silica sand as identified in 

Policy 21 (Silica sand development). 

 

120. Paragraph 6.94 of the HMWP (2013) acknowledges that Frith End and 

Kingsley quarries did not meet the 10-year landbank requirement at the time 

of the Plan in 2013. It discusses that options for potential extension of both 

Frith End and Kingsley Quarry sites were considered as part of the Plan 

preparation process. The exploration carried out, found options for extension 

of the two sites were not considered to be deliverable options at that time. It 

goes on to state ‘it is therefore conceivable that the operators of these sites 

will require further permissions to extend the timescales for extracting 

remaining reserves and if deliverable opportunities come forward these will 

be considered against the criteria set out in Policy 21. 

 

121. Paragraph 214 of the NPPF (2021) states that Minerals Planning Authorities 

should plan for a steady and adequate supply of industrial minerals by 

maintaining a stock of permitted reserves to support the level of actual and 

proposed investment required for new or existing plant, and the maintenance 

and improvement of existing plant and equipment. For silica sand, these 

reserves should be at least 10 years for each individual silica sand site. This 

is translated into Policy 21 (Silica sand development) of the HMWP (2013). 

The Policy identifies Frith End Quarry as one of two sites with silica sand in 

Hampshire in part 1 (i). As a silica sand site, there is a requirement for a 10-

year landbank for each site. 

 

122. Paragraph 6.95 states that ‘it is expected that production of silica sand will 

primarily be from existing quarries, but could require new sites or extensions 

to existing sites when the need arises’. Paragraph 6.94 of the HMWP (2013), 

acknowledges that Frith End and Kingsley quarries did not meet the 10-year 

landbank requirement at the time of the Plan in 2013. It discusses that 

options for potential extension of both Frith End and Kingsley Quarry sites 

were considered as part of the Plan preparation process. Options for 

extension of the two sites were not considered to be deliverable options at 

that time. It goes on to state ‘It is therefore conceivable that the operators of 

Page 37

https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf


these sites will require further permissions to extend the timescales for 

extracting remaining reserves and if deliverable opportunities come forward 

these will be considered against the criteria set out in Policy 21. Any 

potential discussion about further extension to the quarry (over and above 

what is currently proposed) is not relevant to the applications currently being 

considered.  

 

123. As a silica sand site, Policy 21 (Silica sand development) of the HMWP 

(2013) is of relevance. The existing quarry is already identified in part 1 of 

the policy which states that an adequate and steady supply of silica sand will 

be provided by maintaining a landbank of permitted reserves sufficient for at 

least 10 years the site.  In terms of the extension proposal, part 2 of Policy 

21 is of relevance.  Part 2 of Policy 21 (Silica sand development) of the 

HMWP (2013) states that proposals for silica sand extraction within the 

Folkstone bed formation and outside the permitted silica sand sites will be 

supported where: 

(a) the availability of deposits with properties consistent with silica sand uses 

is demonstrated; and 

(b) monitoring indicates that there is a need to maintain a 10-year landbank; 

and 

(c) the proposals do not have an unacceptable environmental or amenity 

impact either alone or in combination with other plans or projects; or 

(d) prior extraction is necessary in order to avoid sterilisation of the deposits 

due to planned development.  

 

124. Section 2.5 of the Planning Statement describes how test holes both in, 

and in the immediate vicinity of, the extension area confirms that the geology 

underlying the proposed extension comprises of the same lithology as that 

worked in the existing quarry which includes the silica sand. Furthermore,  

section 3.1 of the Planning Statement also states that the existing site, and 

the proposed site, would produce building sand as well as approximately a 

third of the material going to silica sand, non-construction/industrial uses. On 

this basis, the proposal is considered to meet part 2 (a) of Policy 21.  

 

125. As already set out, monitoring of site reserves also shows that the site is 

below the 10-year landbank requirement for the site meaning the proposal 

meets part (b) of Policy 21. 

 

126. The acceptability of the proposal in terms of ensuring any unacceptable 

environmental or amenity impact either alone or in combination with other 

plans or projects is covered by the remaining parts of this commentary. The 

consultation process and this report consider that the impact of the proposed 

extension, alone or in combination with other plans or projects, is not, on 

Page 38

https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf


balance, unacceptable to the environment or amenity, as per part 2 (c) of 

Policy 21.  

 

127. Part 2 (d) of Policy 21 is not relevant to this application as there is no 

planned other developments that could sterilise the deposit. 

 

128. Paragraph 6.96 states that the acceptability of extending existing mineral 

extraction sites will be assessed on a case-by-case basis and will include an 

assessment of cumulative impacts which may be associated with continued 

working and other economic considerations. It is acknowledged that a 

notable number of public objections on this issue have been submitted. This 

has been further discussed in the cumulative impact section below. 

 

129. Taking into account the clear need to ensure an adequate and steady supply 

of minerals as well the requirement for a 7-year landbank for sand and 

gravel and a 10-year landbank for silica sand specifically at the quarry, it is 

considered that the proposed development is in accordance with Policies 17 

(Aggregate supply and source), 20 (Local land-won aggregate) and 21 

(Silica sand development) of the HMWP (2013).  

 

Safeguarding – infrastructure and minerals 

 

130. The application’s Planning Statement states that the safeguarding of the 

minerals on the site would be at risk if this proposed development did not 

occur, resulting in the mineral resource being sterilised. This would not be 

the case as the minerals would continue to be safeguarded under Policy 15 

(Safeguarding – mineral resources) of the HMWP (2013) and this should be 

considered in any further proposals for the site. However, it is acknowledged 

that the potential ability to extract mineral in the future may be impacted as it 

is unlikely that a stand along proposal would come forward for his small 

piece of land. Should permission not be granted for the extension of the 

quarry, the mineral safeguarding status would continue although it is 

acknowledged that this area of mineral could be an area that is economically 

unviable to extract it were not to come forward as part of the existing site.  

 

131. Policy 16 (Safeguarding- minerals infrastructure) of the HMWP (2013) states 

that ‘infrastructure that supports the supply of minerals in Hampshire is 

safeguarded against development that would unnecessarily sterilise the 

infrastructure or prejudice or jeopardise its use by creating incompatible land 

uses nearby.’ And that ‘minerals sites with temporary permissions for 

minerals supply activities are safeguarded for the life of that permission’. It is 

considered that the proposed development does not constitute incompatible 

Page 39

https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf


land use but is rather a utilisation of the existing temporary minerals supply 

infrastructure of Frith End Quarry. It is therefore considered to be in 

accordance with Policy 16 (Safeguarding- minerals infrastructure) of the 

HMWP (2013).  

 

Countryside and Landscape  

 

132. Policy 5 (Protection of the countryside) of the HMWP (2013) states that 

minerals and waste development in the open countryside, outside the 

National Parks and Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty, will not be 

permitted unless it is a time-limited mineral extraction or related development 

or the nature of the development is related to countryside activities, meets 

local needs or requires a countryside or isolated location or the development 

provides a suitable reuse of previously developed land, including redundant 

farm or forestry buildings and their curtilages or hard standings. The policy 

also includes an expectation that the highest standards of design, operation 

and restoration will be met and there will be a requirement that it is restored 

in the event it is no longer required for minerals and waste use. In this case, 

the proposal to extend the quarry meets part (a), being a time-limited mineral 

extraction of Policy 5. 

 

133. Supporting this are Policies 9 (Restoration of quarries and waste 

developments), 10 (Protecting public health, safety and amenity) and 13 

(High quality design of minerals and waste development) of the HMWP 

(2013). These all require temporary minerals development to be restored in 

a phased manner to beneficial after-uses that are in keeping with the 

character and setting of the local area, and which contribute to the delivery 

of local objectives for habitats, biodiversity or community use where 

applicable. 

 

134. Policy 13 (High-quality design of minerals and waste development) of the 

HMWP (2013) requires that minerals waste development should not cause 

an unacceptable adverse visual impact and should maintain and enhance 

the distinctive character of the landscape. The design should be appropriate 

and should be of high-quality and contribute to sustainable development. 

This reinforces the requirement of Policy 5 (Protection of the countryside) for 

highest-quality design. In addition, Policy 10 (Protecting public health, safety 

and amenity) protects residents from unacceptable adverse visual impact. 

 

Page 40

https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf


135. The ES included a Landscape & Visual Impact Assessment and 

associated appendices. Further information was also provided under 

Regulation 25 (29 September 2021). 

 

136. A number of the public representations received object on the grounds of 

landscape and visual impact and these are acknowledged. Concerns about 

the loss of Ranks Hill as a local landmark are also acknowledged.  

 

137. The County Landscape Architect raised no objection to the proposal subject 

to conditions being imposed.  The conditions largely addressed restoration 

but also included requirements for planting along PROW26 to filter views of 

the extension area.  In their initial consultation response the County 

Landscape Architect stated that although Ranks Hill is of some elevation the 

surrounding vegetative screening and undulating landscape means the hill is 

only intermittently prominent. The perception of the removal of the hill from 

the surroundings should be limited.  

 

138. A condition is included in Appendix B about crossing points with public 

rights of way and signs warning heavy good vehicles drivers of the presence 

of public rights of way shall be maintained for the duration of the 

development. 

 

139. More information on the Restoration and aftercare of the site is set out 

later in this commentary.  

 

140. The proposal is a temporary and time limited and the proposed restoration 

scheme proposes beneficial after uses fitting with the site’s surroundings in 

the open countryside is considered in accordance with Policy 5 (Protection of 

the countryside) of the HMWP (2013). It is also considered that the impact to 

landscape and visual amenity is acceptable, on balance, on the basis for the 

need for the mineral and the assessment made by consultees on these 

matters. Even though the scheme does propose the removal of Ranks Hill, 

and restoration without reinstating Ranks Hill, the impacts to landscape and 

visual impact are not considered to be unacceptable. Therefore, on balance 

it is considered that the proposal is in accordance with Policies 5 (Protection 

of the countryside), 10 (Protecting public health, safety and amenity) and 13 

(High quality design of minerals and waste development) of the HMWP 

(2013) in relation to the countryside, visual impact and design.  

 

Ecology 

 

141. Policy 3 (Protection of habitats and species) of the HMWP (2013) sets out a 

requirement for minerals and waste development to not have a significant 

Page 41

https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf


adverse effect on, and where possible, should enhance, restore or create 

designated or important habitats and species. The policy sets out a list of 

sites, habitats and species which will be protected in accordance with the 

level of their relative importance.  The policy states that development which 

is likely to have a significant adverse impact upon the identified sites, 

habitats and species will only be permitted where it is judged that the merits 

of the development outweigh any likely environmental damage. The policy 

also sets out a requirement for appropriate mitigation and compensation 

measures where development would cause harm to biodiversity interests. 

 

142. The existing quarry site includes a Site of Importance for Nature 

Conservation (SINC) and includes mitigation to make acceptable the impacts 

to a number of protected species, of particular note are great crested newts 

and sand martins. Sand Martins are significant for the proposed hill 

extension, as the nested sand banks for the sand martins is on the exposed 

face that forms the boundary between the existing quarry extraction area 

and the proposed extraction site, and therefore would be removed from the 

site.  

 

143. A number of public representations object on the grounds of impact to the 

environment and protected species and these are acknowledged.   

 

144. In particular, one member of the public raised concerns that the Ranks Hill 

site was a lowland acid grassland with specific characteristics and as such 

should be considered a priority habitat or Habitat of Principal Importance 

(HPIs).  Ecological information submitted by the applicant, and reviewed by 

the County Ecologist, did not identify lowland acid grassland within the 

extension site.  The identified habitat types were Poor Semi-improved (acid) 

Grassland, Scattered Trees – broadleaved, Dense/scattered scrub, and 

Quarry and Bare ground – none of these habitats were identified as HPIs.   

 

145. The potential impact of removal of the Ranks Hill face on nesting sand 

martins was also raised as a concern and this concern is acknowledged.  

The provision sand martin nesting faces and protection of nests within the 

existing quarry site is already a condition of the extant planning permission. 

This condition has been carried forward in the recommended conditions for 

planning application 30633/040 as set out in Appendix A.  This in turn is 

attached, through a condition for planning application 30633/041, as set out 

in Appendix B as it is an ancillary development to the existing quarry.  The 

condition has been strengthened to require that the sand martin faces that 

are provided are protected from predators at all times.   A detailed 

Page 42



management scheme for the provision sand martin nests during 

development and restoration (both the existing site and the Ranks Hill 

extension) are also included as a recommended condition.  The Appendix 

6.5 of the Environmental Statement describes how previous nesting faces 

on Ranks Hill would to be made unsuitable for nesting prior to arrival of sand 

martins on site to make other suitable faces on the existing site more 

favourable nesting locations for the colony.  The excavation of the nesting 

faces on Ranks Hill will occur in the 2nd and 3rd phases of the extraction.  

The operator will have to implement phasing at times that allow for the 

required management of across the site.  

146. The application was supported by an Ecological Impact Assessment (and 

associated appendices), a Biomentric and a Habitats Regulation 

Assessment (HRA) statement.  

 

147. The first consultation period identified a number of area of additional 

information required to address ecology matters. This information was 

submitted by the applicant in response to the first Regulation 25 request.  

 

148. The consultation response from the County Ecologist states that the 

additional details addressed earlier concerns and that the proposal is within 

the constraints of Policy 3.  It is recommended that a condition be added that 

requires a detailed ecology management scheme.  The scheme would 

ensure that the measures put forward in the Environmental Statement to 

manage ecological impacts are implemented as development progresses 

(e.g. Reasonable Avoidance Measures for Great Crested Newts and 

mitigation of the loss of the sand martin face on Ranks Hill).  It is also 

recommended that this is combined with the update to the existing 

Landscape Management and Aftercare Scheme.  The scheme would be 

used to implement all of the protected species measures as well as the detail 

of the habitat establishment and ongoing management phases.  IT would 

also include a detailed phase by phase provision of the extent, location and 

management of the sand martin faces, ensuring protection from predation at 

all times. These conditions are included in Appendices A and B.  

 

149. The consultation response from Natural England states that they do not view 

the application as likely to have a significant effect on designated sites and 

has no objection. They did note that best practice techniques should be used 

for soil management and storage.  Soil management practices are already 

conditioned as part of the extant planning permission for the existing quarry 

and will be applied to the extension, as set out in Appendices A and B. 

 

150. On the basis of the proposed mitigation, the relatively low importance of 

habitat being impacted, and the conditions set out in Appendices A and B, 

Page 43



the proposal is considered to be in accordance with Policy 3 (Protection of 

habitats and species) of the HMWP (2013). 

 

 

 

 

 

Arboriculture 

 

151. The material consideration of arboriculture in the HMWP (2013) is shared 

between Policies 3 (Protection of habitats and species) and 13 (High-quality 

design of minerals and waste development).  

 

152. The application was supported by an Arboricultural Report as part of the 

ES. A further Arboricultural Survey, Impact Assessment & Method 

Statement was submitted under Regulation 25 (29 September 2021). 

 

153. Seven individual trees and one tree group are identified within the site and 

within 15m of red line boundary.  None of the trees are subject to a tree 

preservation order or are within a conservation area.  The proposed 

development would result in two low value trees (stumps) in the centre of the 

extension area to allow extraction.  In addition, a group of Poplar trees would 

be removed. The retained trees will be subject to protection measures to 

ensure they survive during the extraction phases and also following 

restoration. 

 

154. The restoration of the entire site includes planting of hedgerows and 

woodland – similar hedgerow features are proposed for the southern 

boundary of the extension area. 

 

155. The County Arboriculturist’s final consultation response raised no objection, 

subject to conditions to ensure the development accords with the proposed 

Tree Management Plan to ensure protection of remaining trees during 

excavation and restoration, and that the plan contains robust enough 

language for it to be enforceable (e.g. ‘shall’ instead of ‘should’).  This 

condition is included in Appendix A. While the response notes that the 

Poplar group that will be removed are a notable landscape feature, the 

County Landscape Architect’s initial consultation response states that their 

loss is not unacceptable as they are a relatively recent introduction to the 

landscape. 

 

Page 44

https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf


156. Conditions are also included to ensure the development takes place in 

accordance with the Arboricultural Method Statement and Tree Protection 

Plan in Appendix A.  

 

157. The County Landscape Architect’s final consultation response raised no 

objection subject to conditions.  As already set out, conditions relating to a  

Landscape Management and Aftercare are set out in Appendices A and 

B.  

 

158. Subject to the proposed conditions in Appendices A and B, it is considered 

that the proposal is in accordance with Policies 3 (Protection of habitats and 

species) and 13 (High-quality design of minerals and waste development) of 

the HMWP (2013) with respect to arboriculture. 

 

Restoration and aftercare 

 

159. Policy 9 (Restoration of minerals and waste developments) of HMWP (2013) 

requires temporary minerals and waste development to be restored to 

beneficial after-uses consistent with the development plan. Restoration of 

minerals and waste developments should be in keeping with the character 

and setting of the local area and should contribute to the delivery of local 

objectives for habitats, biodiversity or community use where these are 

consistent with the development plan. It also indicates that restoration of 

mineral extraction and landfill sites should be phased throughout the life of 

the development. 

 

160. The applications include details of the proposed restoration for the proposed 

Hill Extension. Planning application 30633/040 seeks variations to the 

existing permission for the wide Frith End Quarry site to enable alteration of 

the sequencing, and some details, of the approved restoration scheme to 

accommodate the proposed extension.  The Restoration Scheme to the 

proposed extension is of a similar quality to that of the existing quarry. It 

proposes that the site is restored back to agriculture and ecological habitat 

(see drawings DG/Q0/FRI/HE/05/Res/Full/Rev, Hill Extension Restoration, 

dated July 2021 and Figure 2 RevA, Aftercare Plan, revision A, dated July 

2021) (see Appendix F). 

 

161. In comparison to the approved restoration for the existing quarry site, the 

additional restoration of the extension area would add an area of wet 

grassland to the west of the lake with the remainder being returned to 

grassland.  The proposed restoration also includes a change to the restored 

grassland type around the lake area from acid grassland to neutral grassland 

Page 45

https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/040
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=102520&imageId=19&isPlan=False&fileName=DG_QO_FRI_HE_05_Res_Full_rev-Restoration_updated.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=102520&imageId=19&isPlan=False&fileName=DG_QO_FRI_HE_05_Res_Full_rev-Restoration_updated.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=103237&imageId=38&isPlan=False&fileName=Figure%202_revA-Aftercare%20Plan_updated.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=103237&imageId=38&isPlan=False&fileName=Figure%202_revA-Aftercare%20Plan_updated.pdf


meadow.   Following review of the proposed restoration by the County 

Ecologist, a recommendation for some acid grasslands to be integrated into 

the restoration design, if possible, to provide additional habitat benefits was 

set out.  However, there is uncertainty around the suitability of the soils for 

acid grasslands.  As a result, as part of the detailed landscape management 

and restoration scheme update which will be required as a condition, a 

decision point will be required where the type of grassland within the 

restoration will be approved by the Minerals and Waste Planning Authority 

based on soils testing across the site.   The Restoration Plan drawing will 

also be required to be updated to reflect the uncertainty on the grassland 

type. 

 

162. Natural England raised no objection to the proposal.  

 

163. In addition, a 10-year aftercare period was recommended for the sand martin 

habitat and grassland areas of habitat identified by the County Ecologist as 

requiring this to have a good chance to successfully establish.  Conditions to 

this effect are recommended for both planning applications.   Other 

remaining areas would be subject to a 5-year aftercare period as currently 

applies to the existing quarry site (see Appendix G). 

 

164. The County Landscape Architect has no objection to the proposed 

restoration subject to the existing landscape management and aftercare 

scheme being updated to reflect the proposed restoration plan and details 

provided in the Environmental Statement.   

 

165. The proposed Restoration Scheme addresses the requirements of Policy 8 

(Protection of soils) of the HMWP (2013) and to ensure the protection and 

suitable reuse of the soil assets on the existing site, a condition has been 

included in Appendix A for the Hill Extension. Soil conditions are also 

included in Appendix B.  

 

166. On the basis of the schemes submitted and proposed conditions set out in 

Appendices A and B, the proposal is considered in accordance with 

Policies 8 (Protection of soils) and 9 (Restoration of minerals and waste 

developments) of the HMWP (2013). 

 

Flooding and water resources 

 

167. Policy 11 (Flood risk and prevention) of the HMWP (2013) relates to 

minerals and waste development in flood risk areas and sets criteria which 

developments should be consistent with relating to flood risk offsite, flood 

Page 46

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=95003&imageId=11&isPlan=False&fileName=PASS_Appendix%201_Landscape%20Management%20and%20Aftercare%20document-Approved.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=95003&imageId=11&isPlan=False&fileName=PASS_Appendix%201_Landscape%20Management%20and%20Aftercare%20document-Approved.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf


protection, flood resilience and resistance measures, design of drainage, net 

surface water run-off and Sustainable Drainage Systems.  

 

168. Policy CP25 (Flood risk) of the East Hampshire Local Plan Core Strategy 

also considers flood risk. 

 

169. Public comments raised concerns about the risk of flooding of the site from 

the River Slea.   

 

170. The application was supported by a Hydrogeological and Hydrological 

Assessment as well as a Flood Risk Assessment. 

 

171. Although the majority of the development area is identified as Flood Zone 1, 

the Environment Agency (EA) identified that the redline area also include 

areas within Flood Zones 2 and 3.  The EA initially objected to the proposal 

and requested further detailed modelling be undertaken to determine if the 

development would increase flood risk both on and outside of the site during 

development and following restoration.   

 

172. Detailed flood modelling submitted was February 2022 in response to a 

Regulation 25 request.  The modelling demonstrated (reported in Appendix 

7.4 of the Environmental Statement) that there was no risk of flooding of 

the extension area from the River Slea from the west in a 1 in 100 year 

flooding event (+35% climate change allowance) nor in a 1 in 1000 year 

flooding event. While the southern area of the existing site was inundated 

following a collapse of the bank in 2020 the modelling, which has been 

subject to review by the Environment Agency, demonstrates that the risk of 

the Ranks Hill extension being inundated is extremely low.    

 

173. Annex 3 of the NPPF (2021) identifies sand and gravel working as water-

compatible development which can be situated in Flood Zones 2, 3a, and 3b. 

 

174. Regarding concerns about alterations to floodplain storage, the Environment 

Agency responded that ‘it has been demonstrated there will be no impact on 

floodplain storage, and restoration will ensure ground levels are lower than 

original, so we are satisfied with the proposed quarry extension’, removing a 

previous objection. 

 

175. The Lead Local Flood Authority’s raised no objection to the proposal.  

 

176. Conditions are included in Appendix B relating to the protection of the water 

environment, dewatering, depth of working and the retainment of a buffer 

zone alongside the River Slea. 

Page 47

https://www.easthants.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/DP01%20East%20Hampshire%20District%20Local%20Plan%20Joint%20Core%20Strategy%20COMPLETE.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2


   

177. On the basis of the proposed mitigation and proposed conditions, the 

proposal is considered to be in accordance with Policy 11 (Flood risk and 

prevention) of the HMWP (2013) and Policy CP25 (Flood Risk) of the East 

Hampshire Local Plan Core Strategy. 

 

 

 

 

Cultural and Archaeological Heritage 

 

178. Policy 7 (Conserving the historic environment and heritage assets) of the 

HMWP (2013) requires minerals and waste development to protect and, 

wherever possible, enhance Hampshire’s historic environment and heritage 

assets (designated and non-designated), including their settings unless it is 

demonstrated that the need for and benefits of the development decisively 

outweigh these interests. 

 

179. Chapter 8.1 of the ES focused on cultural heritage. This assessment 

concludes that there would be no direct effects upon statutorily designated 

heritage assets. The assessment, based upon Historic England guidance, 

has also concluded that the proposed development would have no adverse 

effects upon the setting of Grooms Farmhouse. The only impacts would be 

views of HGVs entering and leaving site, a situation that has existed since 

quarrying commenced so there would beno change to the existing situation. 

Working may be visible from upper storey windows of Trottsford Farm, 

filtered by trees. As working descends there would be no views. There would 

no effect upon the historical or contextual setting. The overall effect is a 

temporary one of small magnitude. No mitigation additional to that proposed 

is required in relation to the effects upon the setting of designated heritage 

assets. 

 

180. The County Archaeologist’s raised no objection subject to conditions to 

secure archaeological monitoring as set out in paragraphs 5.1 and 5.2 of the 

Environmental Statement by means of the submission and approval of a 

Written Scheme of Investigation (WSI). The WSI should also include details 

as to how archaeological evidence of Mesolithic date will be sought, 

recognised and recorded. These are included in Appendix A. 

 

181. Work shall also continue in accordance with the Programme of 

Archaeological Work and any associated Scheme of Investigation as issued 

by the appropriate archaeological contractor under permission 

F30633/012/CMA and as set out under Appendix B. 

Page 48

https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://www.easthants.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/DP01%20East%20Hampshire%20District%20Local%20Plan%20Joint%20Core%20Strategy%20COMPLETE.pdf
https://www.easthants.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/DP01%20East%20Hampshire%20District%20Local%20Plan%20Joint%20Core%20Strategy%20COMPLETE.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf


 

182. Subject to the proposed conditions in Appendices A and B, it is considered 

that the proposal is in accordance with Policy 7 (Conserving the historic 

environment and heritage assets) of the HMWP (2013). 

 

Impact on amenity and health 

 

183. Paragraph 015 (Reference ID: 27-015-20140306) of the National Planning 

Practice Guidance (NPPG) considers minimising the impact of development 

upon properties and the local environment in close proximity to mineral 

workings. In addition, Paragraph 019 Reference ID: 27-019-20140306 of the 

NPPG covers appropriate noise standards for mineral operators for normal 

operations. Furthermore, Paragraph: 023 (Reference ID: 27-023-20140306) 

of the NPPG considers how mineral operators seek to minimise dust 

emissions.  

 

184. Policy 10 (Protecting public health, safety and amenity) of the HMWP (2013) 

requires that any development should not cause adverse public health and 

safety impacts, and unacceptable adverse amenity impacts. Also, any 

proposal should not cause an unacceptable cumulative impact arising from 

the interactions between mineral, waste and other forms of development.  

 

185. The proposed extension area is located further away from the closest 

quarry’s nearest receptors to the North (Grooms Farm/guesthouse and 

Stannards View), some 300m and 470m respectively than the recent and 

future working area. To the South the nearest receptor is Trottsford Farm, 

some 320m, which is no nearer than the recent working area.  

 

186. The quarry has established site management practices and environmental 

controls. The quarry planning permission includes conditions that control 

environmental impacts The application proposes to maintain the same 

practices and limits to activity on the proposed Hill Extension as to that 

already practiced on the existing quarry site. Only extraction and restoration 

works are proposed on the extension site. All extracted material is to be 

brought back to the existing processing and storage area in the existing 

quarry. 

 

Noise:   

187. The site benefits from the ‘Noise Monitoring Scheme’ approved under 

planning permission 30633/038.  The noise monitoring at the closest 

residential properties is being regularly undertaken by the applicant.  The 

Page 49

https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf


results of noise monitoring indicate that the site complies with the noise 

limits.  

 

188. The quarry benefits from a 2m high noise bund erected along partial western 

and northern quarry boundaries which will be improved. 

 

189. The ES included a Noise Assessment Report. The report sets out a 

summary of results of background noise levels at the nearest dwellings to 

the existing quarry and proposed extension area, having regard to 

measurements contained within noise assessment reports for other 

applications. The report provides calculated noise levels arising from the 

workings and a comparison of the calculated noise levels with suggested site 

noise limits at the nearest dwellings to the proposed extension area. 

 

190. The majority of public representations objected on the grounds that the 

existing quarry affects the amenity of those local residents, particularly 

through noise and visual impacts, and concerns that  the proposed extension 

will exacerbate this. These are acknowledged.  

 

191. The hours of working would be 0700-1800 Monday to Friday and 0700-1300 

Saturday and there shall be no working on Sundays or recognised Public 

Holidays. This is set out in a condition in Appendix B. 

 

192. To ensure control of pollution such as noise, conditions have been included 

in Appendix A and B to make it subject to the relevant existing conditions of 

the overarching planning permission for the main Frith End Quarry site. 

 

Dust: 

193. The operator is responsible to monitor, control and minimise dust emissions, 

in accordance with the relevant documents/plans and to the best available 

techniques to prevent releases of dust in such quantities or concentrations 

that are likely to cause pollution of the environment or harm to human health 

or serious detriment to the amenity of the locality.  

 

194. The quarry has established site management practices and monitoring of 

dust for the operation and mitigation methods for the site. The ‘Dust 

Suppression scheme’ is adopted as part of the planning permission (Ref. no 

30633/038, Condition 14) and the ‘Dust and Emission Management Plan’ is 

adopted as part of the Environmental Agency Recovery Activity Permit as 

part of Environmental Permitting. 

Page 50

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=98837&imageId=75&isPlan=False&fileName=Appendix%2010.1%20Noise%20Assessment%20Report.pdf


 

195. The consultation response from East Hampshire District Council 

Environmental Health officer raised no objection, subject to extending the 

conditions controlling dust, noise and working hours from the existing quarry 

to the proposed extension. These are included in Appendix A. Therefore, 

there is not considered to be an unacceptable impact on public health as a 

result of the development. To ensure control of pollution such as dust, odour, 

noise and lighting, conditions have been included in Appendix A and B to 

make it subject to the relevant existing conditions of the overarching 

planning permission for the main Frith End Quarry site. Therefore, the 

proposed extension will be subject to the same controls for noise, lighting, 

dust and operation hours as the rest of the quarry. 

 

196. Like with noise, dust conditions have been included in Appendix A and B to 

make it subject to the relevant existing conditions of the overarching 

planning permission for the main Frith End Quarry site. 

 

Odour and lighting: 

197. To ensure the control of pollution such odour and lighting, conditions have 

also been included in Appendix A and B to make it subject to the relevant 

existing conditions of the overarching planning permission for the main Frith 

End Quarry site. 

 

198. On the basis of the proposed mitigation measures and conditions included in 

Appendices A and B, the proposal is considered in accordance with Policy 

10 (Protecting public health, safety and amenity) of the HMWP (2013) in 

relation to amenity.  

 

Potential pollution associated with the development 

 

199. Paragraph 012 of the National Planning Practice Guidance states that 

planning authorities should assume that other regulatory regimes will 

operate effectively rather than seek to control any processes, health and 

safety issues or emissions themselves where these are subject to approval 

under other regimes.  

 

200. Planning decisions and environmental permitting are separate regimes but 

are closely linked.  The Environment Agency has a role to play in both.  

Planning permission determines if a development is an acceptable use of the 

land.  The environmental permit determines if an operation can be managed 

on an ongoing basis to prevent or minimise pollution. 

Page 51

https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance


 

201. The granting of planning permission does not necessarily lead to the 

granting of an environmental permit. An application for an environmental 

permit will include an assessment of the environmental risk of the proposals 

including the risk under both normal and abnormal operating conditions. The 

Environment Agency will assess the application and the adequacy of the 

impact assessment including whether the control measures proposed by the 

operator are appropriate for mitigating the risks and their potential impact.  

 

202. The scope of an Environmental Permit is defined by the activities set out in 

the Environmental Permitting Regulations (England and Wales) 2016 (EPR). 

The aim of the EPR regime is to protect the environment from potential 

impacts associated with certain liable facilities or installations. The permitted 

activities may form a part of, but not all, of the development needing 

planning permission. In these cases, the planning application will need to 

address environmental considerations from those parts of the development 

that are not covered by the permit.  

 

203. The proposed facility is acceptable in terms of planning. Should a permit be 

granted for the operation, it will be monitored and enforced in the same 

manner as any other regulated site by the Environment Agency. Several 

mechanisms are put in place to monitor to ensure compliance such as 

audits, site visits, data analysis and compliance checks are carried out by 

the regulator. 

 

Highways 

 

204. The working and restoration of the extension will be carried out within an 18-

month period during the time the existing quarry’s restoration is ongoing. 

Therefore, the extension will not represent an intensification in the use of the 

site and traffic generation from the site is expected to remain unchanged 

from current levels.   

 

205. Frith End Quarry is accessed by means of a purpose-built access road 

directly off the A325 with a right turn lane in to the site from the south. The 

current access arrangement for the quarry will stay unaltered. The current 

haul road within the site will be extended into the proposed extension area. 

 

206. The Planning Statement outlines that when full extraction of sand resumes 

at the quarry, vehicular movements will return to their typical daily numbers 

Page 52

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2016/1154/contents/made


and that the working of the extension area would not increase these daily 

movements.  There are no proposed changes to the level of output, 

operating hours, types of vehicles, access road or market area. The 

proposed site access and traffic movement would be as existing. The 

proposal is a continuation of existing activities, and as such there would be 

no increase in traffic.  

 

207. Chapter 9 of the ES covered transport issues. The ES also included a 

Transport Technical Note.  The assessment work undertaken concludes 

that  any traffic from the proposed extension would not result in any 

additional impacts. 

 

208. A condition on hours of working is set out in Appendix B. 

 

209. The Highways Authority is satisfied that the proposal would have no 

significant impacts on the highway and raises no objections to the to the 

application subject to retention of the highways conditions applicable to the 

existing quarry.  These are included in Appendix B. 

 

210. On the basis of the proposed conditions, the proposal is considered to be in 

accordance with Policy 12 (Managing traffic) of the HMWP (2013).  

 

Cumulative impacts  

 

211. Paragraph 211 of the NPPF (2021) states what Minerals Planning 

Authorities (MPAs) should consider when determining planning applications. 

Point (f) states that MPAs should ‘ensure that there are no unacceptable 

adverse impacts on the natural and historic environment, human health or 

aviation safety, and take into account the cumulative effect of multiple 

impacts from individual sites and/or from a number of sites in a locality;’ 

 
212. Paragraph: 017 (Reference ID: 27-017-20140306) of the National Planning 

Practice Guidance also covers the issue of cumulative impacts.   

 
213. National policy and guidance is built upon in Policy 10 (Protecting public 

health, safety and amenity) of the HMWP (2013) states that a proposal 

should not cause an unacceptable cumulative impact arising from the 

interactions between minerals and waste developments, and between 

mineral, waste and other forms of development. It also states that the 

potential cumulative impacts of minerals and waste development and the 

way they relate to existing developments must be addressed to an 

acceptable standard. 

Page 53

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Document/Download?module=PLA&recordNumber=21743&planId=98836&imageId=74&isPlan=False&fileName=Appendix%209.1%20Transport%20Technical%20Note.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf


 
214. Policy 21 (Silica sand development) states that proposals will be supported 

where they do not have an unacceptable environmental or amenity impact 

either alone or in combination with other plans or projects.  

 
215. Paragraph 6.96 states that the acceptability of extending existing mineral 

extraction sites will be assessed on a case-by-case basis and will include an 

assessment of cumulative impacts which may be associated with continued 

working and other economic considerations. 

 
216. Cumulative impacts are raised as an issue by the majority of public 

representations as a significant reason for objection. The potential impacts of 

the extension area development need to be considered together with the 

current impacts of the existing quarry site. This issue relates to considering 

cumulative impact due to both magnitude and duration.  

 
217. The cumulative impact of development on its locality is considered with 

respect to the baseline of those developments around it. In this case, the 

issue is whether the proposed extension makes a significant contribution to 

the levels of impact in its locality to the point where the net total is 

considered unacceptable. The following table highlights key areas of 

consideration, with particular focus on the existing development of Frith End 

Quarry as the major local contributor. 

 
Table 1: Key areas of consideration – cumulative impacts 

Issue Comment 

Landscape 
and visual 
impact: 

There is a notable increase in impact to the landscape 
from the proposed extension. It has a more elevated 
position than the bowl of the existing quarry and will also 
be visible from different neighbouring properties. It should 
be noted that the extraction phase is temporary and only 
during the existing lifespan of the wider quarry. The 
proposed restoration of the extension site will see a 
change in landscape, with the loss of Ranks Hill. The 
consultation response from the County Landscape 
Architect raised no objection, and therefore the landscape 
and visual impact is not considered unacceptable. 

Ecology and 

protected 

species: 

 

The existing quarry site has required management of 
various protected species, including Great Crested Newts 
and Sand Martins. The Sand Martins are a significant 
consideration for the proposed extension and the 
extension does increase the impact on ecology and 
protected species by virtue of increasing consumption of 
undeveloped greenfield land.  
 
The Restoration Scheme includes biodiversity net gain, 

Page 54



and the County Ecologist’s consultation response raises 
no objection. It is therefore considered that the proposal 
is not unacceptable and is in accordance with policy and 
relevant ecology and protected species legislation and 
regulation; 

Development 

of the 

countryside: 

National and local planning policy both consider that 

temporary minerals activities, such as extraction, are 

acceptable in the open countryside. Upon the proposed 

completion date of December 2024 for restoration of the 

site, the extension and existing quarry sites would return 

to a status of undeveloped, greenfield, open countryside. 

Pollution – 

noise, dust, 

odour: 

It is proposed that the conditions for the existing quarry, 

and so the management of noise, odour and dust are 

extended to cover the proposed extension site and 

activities. The consultation response from the local district 

Environmental Health Officer raises no objection subject 

to these conditions. Therefore, the cumulative impact of 

the proposed extension and the existing site is 

considered acceptable. 

Flood risk: The proposed site is in closer proximity to the River Slea 

that the existing quarry site, that itself, did recently 

experience a significant flood event. It should be noted 

that flood risk management is predominately concerned 

with development not increasing the risk of flooding 

elsewhere. This does not mean that surface water 

management is not an important part of highest quality 

design. The proposed extension site does also include a 

strip on land within flood zones 2 and 3, highlighting 

potential for flood risk. The consultation response from 

the Lead Local Flood Authority raises no objection, 

demonstrating that the cumulative impacts to flood risk 

from the proposal is considered acceptable; 

 

Impact on the 

aquifer: 

Chapter 7 of the Environment Statement includes a 
review of potential ground water impacts.  Both the 
existing quarry and the extension lie outside the source 
protection zone for public water supplies.  No adverse 
impacts as a result of the existing quarry works have 
been reported on local water supply abstraction.  The 
existing site operation has mitigation measures in place to 
prevent accidental hydrocarbon release and these would 
be extended to the proposed extension area.  No 
concerns have been raised by the Environment Agency 
regarding impacts to the aquafer during consultation. 

Highways: The proposed development does not propose any 

Page 55



 increase in HGV movement to and from the quarry. The 

Highways Authority response raises no objection. 

 

Residential 

amenity and 

health: 

It is evident that the existing quarry does affect the 

amenity of those local residents that have made 

representations, and there is notable concern that the 

proposed extension will increase this. The consultation 

response from the local district Environmental Health 

Officer raises no objection subject to extending the 

conditions controlling dust, noise and working hours are 

extended from the existing quarry to the proposed 

extension. This suggests that the proposed extension 

cumulative with the existing quarry will not have an 

unacceptable impact on residential amenity and health.   

 
218. There is also a cumulative impact relating to the duration of the continued 

development. In this context the impact is being caused by the planning 

history pattern of Frith End Quarry, that is resulting in a perception of a 

rolling completion date and health impacts from failed expectations. The 

concerns of local residents with regards to the completion of the quarry are 

acknowledged. The quarry first commenced approximately 30 years ago, 

and the quarrying activities have continued as a result of planning 

permissions which have extended the lifespan of the development. It is not 

uncommon for this to be an issue at many quarries due to the nature of 

operations, the markets and the need to maximise the extraction of minerals 

in the vicinity in terms of safeguarding them from sterilisation. Delays in the 

completion of the site has resulted in mistrust from the quarry’s neighbours 

that the quarry will not cease operations and be restored in a timely manner. 

This application does not seek an extension to the lifespan of the quarry. It 

proposes to cess activities and complete restoration of the quarry, including 

the proposed extension site, by the previously agreed date of 31 December 

2024, as conditioned by Planning Permission 30633/039. 

 

219. The potential for future development at the quarry is not a material 

consideration to this decision. However, it is acknowledged that the 

prolonged duration of development, in this case a procession of minerals 

developments, can have a cumulative impact on the neighbouring residents; 

in particular on amenity, health and the ability to enjoy the domestic 

residences.    

 

220. Cumulative impacts of the development need to be considered in the 

balance of the determination of these applications and the level of 

Page 56

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/039


significance of that impact needs to be established. In the context of this 

application, the proposed development: 

 Does not seek to increase the duration of the minerals activity at Frith 

End Quarry and does not delay the restoration of the quarry; 

 Does not seek to increase the intensity of site activities, nor alter the 

form or pattern of those activities; 

 Does not include for any change in HGV movements to or from the 

site; 

 Does widen the area on which extraction occurs at the quarry, 

although this will occur after extraction ceases elsewhere at the 

quarry, therefore becoming an additional extraction phase, rather that 

increasing the intensity of activities; 

 Does allow for an existing quarry to produce approximately 100,000 

tonnes more soft sand, reducing the need to source this mineral from 

another site; and 

 Would see an altered restoration scheme for the quarry, resulting in a 

significant reduction in height for Ranks Hill, although, this is not 

considered an unacceptable reduction in landscape and visual impact 

terms (see landscape section of the commentary). 

 

221. It is clear that there is a cumulative impact from the history of Frith End 

Quarry on the amenity of a number of local residents. However, this needs to 

be considered relative to the local and national need for minerals and the 

level of impacts caused by the options to supply it. Generally, an extension 

to an existing quarry is likely to have greater sustainability than the 

alternative, a new quarry. In the context of this planning application for the 

Hill Extension, its cumulative impact contribution to the existing Frith End 

Quarry is not considered to be significant. Therefore, in relation to 

cumulative impacts, on balance, this report concludes that the proposal is in 

accordance with Policy 10 (Protection of public health, safety and amenity) in 

the adopted HMWP (2013), and with paragraph 211 of the NPPF (2021).  

 

 

Economic benefits 

222. Paragraph 209 of the NPPF (2021) states that it ‘is essential that there is a 

sufficient supply of minerals to provide the infrastructure, buildings, energy 

and goods that the country needs. Since minerals are a finite natural 

resource, and can only be worked where they are found, best use needs to 

be made of them to secure their long-term conservation’.  Paragraph 211 

goes onto say that ‘when determining planning applications, great weight 

should be given to the benefits of mineral extraction, including to the 

economy’.  

Page 57

https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2


 

223. One of the key elements of the vision of the is ‘helping to deliver an 

adequate supply of minerals and mineral-related products to support new 

development, deliver key infrastructure projects and provide the everyday 

products that we all use in Hampshire, as well as in neighbouring areas’. The 

economic role of minerals is therefore of importance. Paragraph 2.28 of the 

Plan’s spatial strategy states that ‘the overall strategic priority is that enough 

minerals and waste development is provided to support the economies of 

Hampshire, as well as economies in other areas influenced by Hampshire 

throughout the Plan period’.  

 

224. Frith End Quarry is a long-established operation which has been carried out 

in the area for many years.   

 

225. An assessment of the potential socio-economic impacts arising from the 

workings of the extension area at Frith End quarry is set out in the Chapter 

11 of the ES. The ES concludes that the proposed extension to the quarry 

working would have a number of positive, short term, socio-economic 

effects. These include the continuation of employment and financial 

expenditure within in the local economy and generation and support of local 

economic activity through provision of building and industrial sands, at the 

level currently provided. 

 

226. The quarry currently offers 5 direct employment positions, which are full time 

jobs and not seasonal, and provides a number of indirect employment 

through the use of local suppliers where possible, e.g. in connection with 

ecology and maintenance of vehicles and equipment.  

 

227. The ES sets out that without the small extension area the quarry operations 

would be, as from January 2023, limited to the restoration activities only, 

which would in turn reduce both employment levels and financial input into 

the local economy. If the hill extension area was not developed the local 

supply of high quality soft and silica sand would be affected and such 

mineral would need supplying from other sites potentially further from the 

market. This would cause an increase in cost to local developers/builders 

due to the need for materials importation from farther afield.  

 

228. No significant adverse socio-economic effects are anticipated as a result of 

the proposed development and therefore no specific mitigation measures in 

terms of socioeconomic effects are proposed.  

Page 58



 

229. The role that mineral extraction plays in the economy is recognised in NPPF 

(2021) and the HMWP (2013).  

 

 

Community benefits 

 

230. A frequent concern of communities that host minerals development is that 

there are no immediate benefits to 'compensate' for the inconvenience that 

occurs. In Hampshire there is already a precedent for minerals or waste 

operators to contribute to local communities’ funds. However, this process 

lies outside of the planning system.   

 
231. Policy 14 (Community Benefits) of the HMWP (2013) encourages negotiated 

agreements between relevant minerals and waste developers/operators and 

a community as a source of funding for local benefits. Agreements can be 

between operators and local bodies such as Parish Councils or resident's 

associations. Whilst the Minerals and Waste Planning Authority encourages 

these agreements, it cannot be party to such agreements and the 

agreements cannot be considered in decision making.  

 
232. The Minerals and Waste Planning Authority encourages the applicant to 

engage with the local community. The continuation of the existing Liaison 

Panel is important and is provides opportunity for all local residents and 

interested parties to engage with the operator and environmental regulators, 

including the Mineral and Waste Planning Authority, as well as elected 

County Councillors. An informative is included on this issue in Appendices 

A and B.  

 

Conditions 

 

233. For the most part conditions in the extant planning permission (30633/039) 

for the existing quarry site have been carried forward into the recommended 

conditions for Planning Permission 30633/040.  However, there have been 

some changes to numbering to reflect the insertion of some additional 

conditions.  In some instances the wording of the a condition has been 

amended slightly: 

 Condition 1 – Extant Condition 1 updated to reflect that work on the 

Ranks Hill area can continue once extraction ceases in the existing 

quarry area; 

 Condition 2 – Extant Condition 2 updated to reflect updated plans 

submitted; 

Page 59

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=21325
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/040


 Condition 10 – Extant Condition 10 updated to reflect need for revised 

Landscape Management and Aftercare document which addresses 

specific County Landscape Architect and County Ecologist 

requirements; 

 Conditions 11 and 12 – these are new conditions to address further 

information required to determine soil suitability for restoration to 

specific grassland types.  Impacts numbering of subsequent extant 

conditions in new recommended conditions; 

 Condition 22 – this was extant Condition 20.  Updated to allow for some 

limited clearance of trees or shrubs under supervision of ecologist; 

 Condition 23 – this was extant Condition 21.  Amended to include a 

requirement that provided sand martin faces are protected from 

predation; 

 Condition 25 – new condition that requires information required by 

County Ecologist regarding details and timings of habitat provision be 

added to the revised Landscape Management and Aftercare document 

with title amended to include ‘Ecology’.  Impacts numbering of 

subsequent extant conditions in new recommended conditions; 

 Condition 26 – this was extant Condition 23.  Updated to reflect new 

restoration plans; 

 Condition 27 – this was extant Condition 24.  Updated to reflect new 

aftercare documents and plans submitted; 

 Condition 28 – this was extant Condition 24. Updated to reflect extend 

aftercare period being required for sand martin mitigation face and acid 

grasslands included as part of restoration; 

 Condition 29 – this was extant Condition 26.  Updated to reflect new 

plans submitted. 

 

Conclusion 

 

234. The two applications which are the focus of this report are interrelated. 

Planning application 30633/041 relates to a proposed extension of the 

existing quarry for a further 100,000 tonnes of soft sand and  planning 

application 30633/040 related to seeks vary Conditions 1 (Timescale), 4 

(Phasing) and 10 (Landscaping) of Planning Permission 30633/039 to 

enable the proposed extension sought in application 30633/041 by adopting 

revised phasing for extraction and restoration and to allow the existing site 

facilities to accommodate the proposed extension. 

 

235. In relation to planning applications 30633/041 and 30633/040, it is 

considered that the proposal would be in accordance with the relevant 

policies of the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (2013).  On balance, the 

Page 60

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/041
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/040
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=21325
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/041
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/040
https://www.hants.gov.uk/landplanningandenvironment/strategic-planning/hampshire-minerals-waste-plan


benefits of the proposed development, in particular with regards to meeting 

the need for minerals (Policies 17 (Aggregate supply and source), 20 (Local 

land-won aggregate) and 21 (Silica sand development)) and associated 

economic benefits outweigh its impacts. The need for soft sand is clearly 

identified in the HMWP (2013) and the 2021 Local Aggregate Assessment 

(LAA) is showing the need for further resources to meet the landbank 

requirements for sand and gravel. There is also a need to provide a 10-year 

landbank requirement for the site for silica sand although it is recognised that 

this proposal can only contribute to this. The proposed development 

provides an additional 100,000 tonnes of soft sand mineral resource 

incidental to the 120,000 tonnes that is currently permitted for extraction at 

the existing Frith End Quarry. This is a contribution of approximately 0.43 

years to Hampshire’s soft sand landbank, currently approximately 0.72 

years. The site would contribute to ensuring an adequate and steady supply 

of minerals and support the local economy.  

 

236. The principle of extending existing minerals extraction sites, to utilise the use 

of existing plant and infrastructure, is considered to be acceptable, provided 

this does not cause unacceptable impacts either on its own or cumulatively 

with existing plans or developments. Generally, an extension to an existing 

quarry is likely to have greater sustainability than the alternative, a new 

quarry. The cumulative impact of extending the existing quarry is not 

considered to be significant and on balance is therefore considered to be 

acceptable.  

 

237. On balance, the impact of the two applications are not considered 

unacceptable, with respect to amenity, pollution, flood management, 

landscape and visual impact, ecology or climate change and conditions 

proposed are considered to mitigate any impacts.  

 

238. It is considered that, as the extraction of the proposed extension is to be 

carried out after the extraction of the existing site and the proposed 

development is to be completed within the lifespan of the existing quarry, it 

will not have an adverse impact upon the effective restoration of the quarry 

site. The proposed revised Restoration Plan for the entire site is considered 

satisfactory with respect to biodiversity net gain, protection of protected 

species, flood management, public access, visual impact and landscape.   

Additional aftercare requirements for grassland establishment and sand 

martins are also delivered.  

 

Page 61

https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://hants.sharepoint.com/:b:/s/ETEE8681/EVOvZyuKCCpHvCLFgqJTB5QBz0ok4rVLXUIgVKv99nAJaQ?e=jNUlld


239. Taking all matters into account, on balance, the proposal is considered to be 

in accordance with the relevant national and local planning policy and is 

considered to be sustainable in accordance with Policy 1 (Sustainable 

minerals and waste development) of the HMWP (2013).  

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation 

 

240. It is recommended that planning permission be GRANTED for planning 

application 30633/041 subject to the conditions listed in Appendix A.  

 

241. It is recommended that planning permission be GRANTED for planning 

application 30633/040, subject to the conditions listed in Appendix B. 

 

Appendices: 

Appendix A – Conditions for 30633/041 

Appendix B – Conditions for 30633/040 

Appendix C – Regulatory Committee site plan 

Appendix D – Extension (working area) 

Appendix E – Phasing Plan 

Appendix F – Restoration Plan 

Appendix G – Aftercare Plan 

 

Other documents relating to this application: 

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/041 

Page 62

https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/041
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/040
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/30633/041


 

REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION: 

 

Links to the Strategic Plan 

Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic 

growth and prosperity: 

No 

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent 

lives: 

No 

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse 

environment: 

No 

People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, 

inclusive communities: 

No 

 

OR 

 

This proposal does not link to the Strategic Plan but, nevertheless, requires a 

decision because: 

the proposal is an application for planning permission and requires determination 

by the County Council in its statutory role as the minerals and waste or local 

planning authority. 

 

Other Significant Links 

 

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents 

 

The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 

important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 

the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any  

documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 

the Act.) 

 

Document Location 

30633/041 

EH121 

Grundon Sand And Gravel Ltd,  Frith End 

Sand Quarry, Grooms Farm Lane, Frith End, 

Bordon GU35 0QR  

(Extension to the quarry extraction area to 

the South-West with associated 

modifications to the approved quarry 

schemes   

Hampshire County Council 

Page 63



 

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENTS: 

1. Equality Duty 

The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 

(‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to: 

- Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other 

conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected 

characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender 

reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, 

race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation); 

- Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 

protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, 

gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex 

and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it; 

- Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who 

do not share it.  

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to: 

- The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons 

sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that 

characteristic; 

- Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected 

characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share 

it; 

- Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to 

participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such 

persons is disproportionally low. 

Officers considered the information provided by the applicant, together with 

the response from consultees and other parties, and determined that the 

proposal would have no material impact on individuals or identifiable groups 

with protected characteristics. Accordingly, no changes to the proposal were 

required to make it acceptable in this regard. 

 

Page 64



Appendix A 

CONDITIONS for 30633/041 

 

Timescale 

1. The extraction of sand hereby permitted on the Hill Extension, as identified 
on drawing DG/Q0/FRI/HE/02, Application and Land ownership Area, dated 
December 2020, shall cease on or before 30 June 2024.  

 

 All machinery, plant, structures, stockpiles and hardstandings shall be 

removed and the site restored in accordance with the schemes approved 

under Condition 5 (Restoration) on or before 31 December 2024. 

 

 Reason:  To ensure the restoration of the site is delivered in a timely manner 

and shall not prejudice timely restoration of the wider quarry in accordance 

with Policy 9 (Restoration of minerals and waste development) of the 

Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

 

 

Pre-commencement Condition – Archaeology 
 
2 Prior to commencement of the development hereby permitted, the operator 

shall submit to and have approved by the Minerals and Waste Planning 
Authority an Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation (WSI) for the 
site. This shall include details as to how archaeological evidence of 
Mesolithic date will be sought, recognised and recorded. 

 
The development hereby permitted shall then be carried out in accordance 
with the approved Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation. 

 
Reason: To ensure the activities hereby permitted do not cause 
unacceptable impacts to or loss of archaeology in accordance with Policy 7 
(Conserving the historic environment and heritage assets) of the Hampshire 
Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). This condition is pre-commencement to 
ensure sufficient precautions are taken to prevent damage and/or loss of 
heritage assets from soil stripping and mineral excavation hereby permitted.  

 
Pre-commencement - Arboriculture 

3. Prior to commencement of the development hereby permitted, the operator 
shall submit to and have approved by the Minerals and Waste Planning 
Authority an update to the document titled ‘BS 5837:2012 Arboricultural 
Survey, Impact Assessment and Method Statement Frith End Quarry for 
Grundon Sand and Gravel Ltd. CRM-049-016-ENZ-XX-00-RP-AR-45-001.D’,  
dated July 2021, and associated Tree Protection Plan (Appendix 4).  

Page 65



 

The updated document shall incorporate all changes requested by the 
County Arboricultural Officer in their consultation response ‘RE: 
Amendments/ Additional Information Frith End Sand Quarry, Grooms Farm 
Lane, Frith End, Bordon GU35 0QR (application number 30633/041) dated 
18 February 2022.  

 

The development hereby permitted shall then be carried out in accordance 
with the approved Tree Protection Plan, including implementation of tree 
protection prior to any activity effecting arboriculture. 

 
Reason: To ensure adequate and enforceable tree retention and protection 
in accordance with Policy 3 (Protection of habitats and species) of the 
Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). This condition is pre-
commencement to ensure sufficient precautions are taken to prevent 
damage and/or loss of arboriculture from excavation and soil storage hereby 
permitted. 

 
Landscape 
 
4. Within three months of the date of permission being hereby granted, the 

operator shall submit to and have approved in writing by the Minerals and 
Waste Planning Authority, a revised Landscape Management and Aftercare 
document addressing both the extension area (Planning Permission 
30633/41) and the existing quarry (Planning Permission 30633/40).  

 
This shall include: 

 confirmation of details listed in the consultation response from the 
County Landscape Officer, dated 4 November 2021, excepting that 
acid grassland mix as well as neutral grassland and wildflower meadow 
mix may still be used.  

 a provision for soils testing, and its timing, to allow locations suitable for 
restoration to acid grassland, or neutral grassland meadow, to be 
approved by the Minerals and Waste Planning Authority. 

 Details of the specification for planting, seeding and maintenance 
operations and associated timelines for implementation.  

 
The development hereby permitted shall then be carried out in accordance 
with the approved Landscape Management and Aftercare document and the 
following associated drawings, or any subsequently revised scheme or 
drawings approved by the Minerals and Waste Planning Authority. 

 
Associated drawings: 

 ‘Hill Extension Restoration’ (DG/QO/FRI/HE/05/Res/Full/rev), dated 
July 2021 

 ‘Hill Extension Restoration Cross Sections’ 
(DG/OQ/FRI/HE/06/Res/CS), dated December 2020  

 and ‘Aftercare Plan’, Figure 2/RevA’, dated July 2021’  

Page 66



 

Reason: To ensure adequate restoration and aftercare in accordance with 
Policies 3 (Protection of habitats and species) and 9 (Restoration of minerals 
and waste developments) of the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 
(2013). 

 
5. Within three months of the date of permission being hereby granted, the 

operator shall submit to and have approved by the Minerals and Waste 
Planning Authority a revised versions of drawings ‘Restoration Proposal Plan 
Rev DG/QO/FRI/PHASINGPLAN/RES/FUL/RevA dated July 2021’ and 
‘Aftercare Plan, Figure 2/RevA, dated July 2021’ to reflect that areas 
currently shown as ‘neutral grassland meadow’ may be restored to either 
acid grassland, or neutral grassland meadow. 

Reason: To ensure adequate restoration and aftercare in accordance with 
Policies 3 (Protection of habitats and species) and 9 (Restoration of minerals 
and waste developments) of the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 
(2013). 

6. Soils testing to allow suitability of locations for restoration to acid grassland, 
or neutral grassland meadow, shall be implemented as required in the 
revised Landscape Management and Aftercare Plan to be approved under 
Condition 4. 

 
Results of the soils testing, and a further revised version of the drawings 
required by condition 5, which delineates which grassland areas are to be 
acid grassland and which will be neutral grassland meadow, shall be 
submitted to the Minerals and Waste Planning Authority for approval in 
writing. 

 
The restoration shall then be implemented according to this revised 
restoration plan drawing. 
 

Reason: To ensure adequate restoration and aftercare in accordance with 
Policies 3 (Protection of habitats and species) and 9 (Restoration of minerals 
and waste developments) of the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 
(2013). 

 
Ancillary development 
 
7. The development hereby permitted shall only be used for purposes ancillary 

to Planning Permission 30633/040, or any subsequent primary planning 
permission that supersedes 30633/040 on the site. It shall be implemented, 
operated and restored in accordance with the following conditions applying 
to Planning Permission 30633/040, or any subsequent primary planning 
permission, for the duration of the development: 

 
Conditions 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 13, 15, 16, 17, 20, 22, 23, 24. 

 

Page 67



 

Reason: To ensure the activities hereby permitted do not cause 
unacceptable impacts cumulative with the existing quarry in accordance with 
Policies 9 (Restoration of minerals and waste development), 10 (Protecting 
public health, safety and amenity), and 13 (High-quality design of minerals 
and waste development of the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

 

Phasing  

8. The phased extraction of the Hill Extension hereby permitted shall be carried 
out in accordance with the following approved plans, or any subsequently 
revised plans approved by the Minerals and Waste Planning Authority: 

  

 DG/Q0/FRI/HE/04A, Hill Extension Working Scheme Stage 1, dated 

December 2020; 

 DG/Q0/FRI/HE/04B, Hill Extension Working Scheme Stage 2, dated 

December 2020; 

 DG/Q0/FRI/HE/04C, Hill Extension Working Scheme Stage 3, dated 

December 2020; 

 DG/QO/FRI/Phasing Plan/Res/1/rev, Phasing Plan 2023 Restoration 

REV, dated December 2020; 

 DG/QO/FRI/Phasing Plan/Res/2/rev, Phasing Plan 2024 Restoration 

REV, dated December 2020. 

 

 Reason:  To secure satisfactory control over working in accordance with 

Policy 9 (Restoration of minerals and waste developments) of the Hampshire 

Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

 

Restoration 

9. The landscaping and restoration of the Hill Extension hereby permitted shall 
be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans, or any 
subsequently revised plans approved by the Minerals and Waste Planning 
Authority under condition 4 (Landscape): 

  

 DG/Q0/FRI/HE/05/Res/Full/Rev, Hill Extension Restoration, dated July 

2021. 

 DG/Q0/FRI/HE/06/Res/CS, Hill Extension Restoration Cross Sections, 

Dated December 2020; and 

 Figure 2 RevA, Aftercare Plan, revision A, dated July 2021. 

 

 Restoration shall be implemented in a phased process in accordance with 

Condition 8 (Phasing). 

 

Page 68



 

Reason:  To secure satisfactory restoration of the site in accordance with 

Policy 9 (Restoration of minerals and waste developments) of the Hampshire 

Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

 

Aftercare 

10. The aftercare of the Hill Extension hereby permitted shall be implemented in 
accordance with the following approved schemes and plans, or any 
subsequently approved revisions by the Minerals and Waste Planning 
Authority as required by Condition 4 (Landscape): 

 

 Landscape management and Aftercare document revision, dated 

November 2020;  

 Figure 2 Rev A, Aftercare Plan, dated July 2021. 

 

Reason:  In the interests of visual amenity and quality restoration in 

accordance with Policies 9 (Restoration of minerals and waste 

developments), 10 (Protecting public health, safety and amenity) and 13 

(High-quality design of minerals and waste development of the Hampshire 

Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

11. The Hill Extension site shall be subject to a 5-year aftercare period except 
for any acid grasslands to be established as required by the Minerals and 
Waste Planning Authority which will be subject to a 10 year aftercare period.  

The aftercare period shall commence upon the completion date of the 
restoration of the Hill Extension, as approved by the Minerals and Waste 
Planning Authority, of the restoration hereby approved by Condition 9 
(Restoration). 

     

 Reason: To ensure quality restoration and aftercare in accordance with 

Policy 9 (Restoration of minerals and waste developments) of the Hampshire 

Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

 

Arboriculture 

12. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out for the duration of the 
development in accordance with the Arboricultural Method Statement and 
Tree Protection Plan as approved under Condition 3 (Pre-commencement). 

 

Reason:  To ensure the protection of arboriculture in accordance with Policy 

3 (Protection of habitats and species) and 13 (High-quality design of 

Page 69



 

minerals and waste development of the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 

(2013). 

 

Ecology 

13. Measures shall be taken to ensure sand extraction does not damage sand 
martin nests in the sand faces during the operational life of the site, and a 
suitable face which is protected from predation at all times be maintained for 
nesting during the operational life, restoration and aftercare.  
 

Reason:  In the interests of protecting sand martins in accordance with 

Policy 3 (Protection of habitats and species) of the Hampshire Minerals and 

Waste Plan (2013). 

14. The revised Landscape Management and Aftercare document as required 
under Condition 4 shall include details and timings of: 

 all of the protected species measures to implemented; and  

 the ongoing management of existing habitats and establishment of new 

habitats operational, restoration and aftercare phases including a 

detailed phase by phase provision of the extent, location and 

management of the sand martin faces. 

To reflect the inclusion of ecology details into the revied scheme, the 
document shall be renamed ‘Ecology and Landscape Management, and 
Aftercare’. 

 

Reason:  To ensure the protection of ecology and biodiversity in accordance 

with Policy 3 (Protection of habitats and species) of the Hampshire Minerals 

and Waste Plan (2013). 

 

Soils 

15. All topsoil and overburden stripped from the areas to be excavated shall be 
removed and stored separately before operations commence for use in site 
restoration. Topsoil shall only be handled when dry and friable. Following 
tipping and during restoration, overburden shall be replaced and graded in 
accordance with the final levels hereby approved. The overburden shall in 
turn be covered with the topsoil in original sequence and to even depths.  

 

Reason: To ensure the satisfactory restoration of the land to agriculture in 

accordance with Policies 8 (Protection of soils) and 9 (Restoration of 

quarries and waste) of the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

 

 

Page 70



 

Plans 

16. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 
the following approved plans, , or any subsequently revised plans approved 
by the Minerals and Waste Planning Authority:   

 DG/Q0/FRI/HE/01,  

 DG/Q0/FRI/HE/02,  

 DG/Q0/FRI/HE/03,  

 DG/Q0/FRI/HE/04A,  

 DG/Q0/FRI/HE/04B,  

 DG/Q0/FRI/HE/04C,  

 DG/Q0/FRI/HE/05/Res/Full/Rev,  

 DG/Q0/FRI/HE/06/Res/CS,  

 Figure 2 RevA 

 

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 

Note to Applicants  

 

1. In determining this planning application, the Minerals and Waste Planning 

Authority has worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive manner in 

accordance with the requirement in the National Planning Policy Framework 

(2019), as set out in the Town and Country Planning (Development 

Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015. 

 

2. For the purposes of matters relating to this decision Heavy Goods Vehicles 

(HGVs) are defined as vehicles over 3.5 tonne un-laden).  

 

3. The Liaison Panel for Frith End Quarry should continue between the site 

operator, Minerals and Waste Planning Authority, interested parties and 

community representatives at a suitable frequency to facilitate effective 

engagement with stakeholders in the interests of promoting communication 

between the site operator and local community. The County Council’s 

guidance on the establishment of panels is available to the applicant. 

 

4. This decision does not purport or convey any approval or consent which may 

be required under the Building Regulations or any other Acts, including 

Byelaws, orders or Regulations made under such acts. 

Page 71



Appendix B 

CONDITIONS for 30633/040 

 

Timescale 

 

1. The extraction of sand and clay shall cease on or before 31 December 

2022, except for extraction from the south-west Hill Extension area, as 

granted for extraction and restoration on or before the date conditioned by 

Planning Permission 30633/041, or any subsequent planning permission, 

as identified on drawing DG/Q0/FRI/HE/02, Application and Land 

ownership Area, dated December 2020. 

 

 The site office, all foundations and hardstandings, access roads, all plant 

(including processing plant and ancillary washing facilities), machinery and 

stockpiles shall be removed and the site restored in accordance with the 

schemes approved under Condition 23 (Restoration) on or before 31 

December 2024. 

 

 Reason:  To secure the satisfactory and timely restoration of the site in 

accordance with Policy 9 (Restoration of minerals and waste 

developments) of the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

  

2. Dewatering at the site shall only occur in accordance with Environment 

Agency permits, other than that consented for sand washing. 

   

 Reason:  To prevent pollution of the water environment in accordance with 

Policies 10 (Protecting public health, safety and amenity) and 11 (Flood risk 

and prevention) of the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

  

3. Sand extraction shall not exceed a depth of 55 metres AOD. 

   

 Reason:  To prevent pollution to water environment and control extraction in 

accordance with Policies 10 (Protecting public health, safety and amenity) 

and 11 (Flood risk and prevention) of the Hampshire Minerals and Waste 

Plan (2013). 

 

Phasing 

 

4. The phased extraction and restoration shall be accordance with the following 

approved plans, or any subsequently revised plans approved by the Minerals 

and Waste Planning Authority: 

  

• DG/Q0/FRI/WORKING PLAN/02/Rev, Working Plan 2021 revised, 

dated December 2020; 

Page 72



 

• DG/Q0/FRI/WORKING PLAN/03/Rev, Working Plan 2022 revised, 

dated December 2020; 

• DG/Q0/FRI/PHASING PLAN/RES/1/Rev, Restoration Solely 

(Excluding Hill) 2023 revised, dated December 2020; 

• DG/Q0/FRI/PHASING PLAN/RES/2/Rev, Restoration Solely 

(Excluding Hill) 2024 revised, dated December 2020; 

• DG/Q0/FRI/Phasing Plan/Res/Full/RevA, Restoration Proposal 

Revised, revision A, dated July 2021; 

• DG/Q0/FRI/Res/CS/Rev, Restoration Proposal Cross Sections 

Revised, dated December 2020; and 

• Figure 2 RevA, Aftercare Plan, revision A, dated July 2021. 

 

 Reason:  To secure satisfactory control over working in accordance with 

Policy 9 (Restoration of minerals and waste developments) of the Hampshire 

Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

  

Hours of Working 

 

5. No heavy goods vehicles (HGVs are vehicles over 3.5 tonnes gross weight) 

shall enter or leave the site and no plant or machinery shall be operated 

except between the following hours: 0700-1800 Monday to Friday and 0700-

1300 Saturday.  There shall be no working on Sundays or recognised Public 

Holidays. 

    

 Reason:  In the interests of local amenity in accordance with Policy 10 

(Protecting public health, safety and amenity) of the Hampshire Minerals and 

Waste Plan (2013). 

  

Restoration Material 

 

6. The material imported for restoration shall be restricted to naturally occurring 

earth spoils.  

   

 Reason:  To prevent pollution of the water environment in accordance with 

Policies 10 (Protecting public health, safety and amenity) and 11 (Flood risk 

and prevention) of the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

  

7. Records of the clay extracted from the site and details of the deposits shall 

be retained on site and made available on request to the Mineral and Waste 

Planning Authority for inspection. The clay extracted shall be used for 

restoration purposes within the quarry only.  No clay shall be exported from 

the quarry. 

 

Page 73



 

 Reason:  To monitor the extraction and deposit of clay within the site to 

ensure available material for the restoration of the site throughout the 

phasing of restoration and in the interests of local amenity in accordance 

with Policies 9 (Restoration of minerals and waste developments) and 10 

(Protecting public health, safety and amenity) of the Hampshire Minerals and 

Waste Plan (2013). 

  

Protection of Water Environment 

 

8. Any facilities for the storage of oils, fuels or chemicals shall be sited on 

impervious bases and surrounded by impervious bund walls. The bund 

capacity shall give 110% of the total volume for single and hydraulically 

linked tanks.  If there is multiple tankage, the bund capacity shall be 110% of 

the largest tank or 25% of the total capacity of all tanks, whichever is the 

greatest.  All filling points, vents, gauges and sight glasses and overflow 

pipes shall be located within the bund.  There shall be no outlet connecting 

the bund to any drain, sewer or watercourse or discharging onto the ground.  

Associated pipework shall be located above ground where possible and 

protected from accidental damage. 

   

 Reason: To prevent pollution of the water environment in accordance with 

Policies 10 (Protecting public health, safety and amenity) and 11 (Flood risk 

and prevention of the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

 

9. An 8-metre-wide undisturbed buffer zone shall be retained alongside the 

River Slea. 

   

 Reason:  To maintain the character of the water course and for the benefit of 

wildlife in accordance with Policies 3 (Protection of habitats and species) and 

10 (Protecting public health, safety and amenity) of the Hampshire Minerals 

and Waste Plan (2013). 

 

Landscape 

 

10. Within three months of the date of permission being hereby granted, the 
operator shall submit to and have approved in writing by the Minerals and 
Waste Planning Authority, a revised Landscape Management and Aftercare 
Scheme addressing both the extension area (Planning Permission 
30633/41) and the existing quarry (Planning Permission 30633/40).  

 
This shall include: 

• confirmation of details listed in the consultation response to Planning 

Permission 30633/04from the County Landscape Officer, dated 4 

Page 74



 

November 2021, excepting that acid grassland mix as well as 

neutral grassland and wildflower meadow mix may still be used;  

• a provision for soils testing, and its timing, to allow locations suitable 

for restoration to acid grassland, or neutral grassland meadow, to be 

approved by the Minerals and Waste Planning Authority; and  

• details of the specification for planting, seeding and maintenance 

operations and associated timelines for implementation.  

 
The development hereby permitted shall then be carried out in accordance 
with the approved Landscape Management and Aftercare Scheme and the 
following associated drawings, or any subsequently revised scheme or 
drawings approved by the Minerals and Waste Planning Authority. 

 
Associated drawings: 

• DG/Q0/FRI/Phasing Plan/Res/Full/RevA, Restoration Proposal 

Revised, revision A, dated July 2021; 

• DG/Q0/FRI/Res/CS/Rev, Restoration Proposal Cross Sections 

Revised, dated December 2020; and 

• Figure 2 RevA, Aftercare Plan, dated July 2021. 

 

Reason:  In the interests of visual amenity and quality restoration in 

accordance with Policies 9 (Restoration of minerals and waste 

developments), 10 (Protecting public health, safety and amenity) and 13 

(High-quality design of minerals and waste development of the Hampshire 

Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

11. Within three months of the date of permission being hereby granted, the 

operator shall submit to and have approved by the Minerals and Waste 

Planning Authority a revised versions of drawings ‘Restoration Proposal Plan 

Rev DG/QO/FRI/PHASINGPLAN/RES/FUL/RevA dated July 2021’ and 

‘Aftercare Plan, Figure 2/RevA, dated July 2021’ to reflect that areas 

currently shown as ‘neutral grassland meadow’ may be restored to either 

acid grassland, or neutral grassland meadow. 

Reason:  In the interests of visual amenity and quality restoration in 

accordance with Policies 9 (Restoration of minerals and waste 

developments), 10 (Protecting public health, safety and amenity) and 13 

(High-quality design of minerals and waste development of the Hampshire 

Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

12. Soils testing to allow suitability of locations for restoration to acid grassland, 

or neutral grassland meadow, shall be implemented as required in the 

revised Landscape Management and Aftercare Plan to be approved under 

Condition 4. 

Page 75



 

Results of the soils testing, and a further revised version of the drawings 

required by condition 5, which delineates which grassland areas are to be 

acid grassland and which will be neutral grassland meadow, shall be 

submitted to the Minerals and Waste Planning Authority for approval in 

writing. 

The restoration shall then be implemented according to this revised 

restoration plan drawing. 

Reason:  In the interests of visual amenity and quality restoration in 

accordance with Policies 9 (Restoration of minerals and waste 

developments), 10 (Protecting public health, safety and amenity) and 13 

(High-quality design of minerals and waste development of the Hampshire 

Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

  

Noise, Dust and Odour 

 

13. Noise from operations carried out on the site, measured or predicted as dB 

LAeq, 1 hour levels, shall not exceed the background noise level at the 

boundary of any residential property (measured as dB LA90) by more than 

10 dBA during hours of operation with a maximum allowable noise level of 

55 dB LAeq, 1 hour at the boundary of any residential property during the 

same hours.  Temporary works necessary to the operation of the site for 

creating baffle mounds and construction of new permanent landforms may 

only exceed the noise control criteria set out above with the prior agreement 

in writing of the Mineral and Waste Planning Authority and implementation of 

agreed noise mitigation measures. 

   

 Reason:  To minimise noise disturbance to the residents of nearby houses. 

in accordance with Policy 10 (Protecting public health, safety and amenity) of 

the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

  

14. A 3-metre-high bund shall be maintained along the Phase C4 area’s 

northern, western and partial eastern boundaries and the Phase C1 area’s 

northern boundary for the duration of works in those phases, in accordance 

with Condition 4 (Phasing).   

    

 Reason:  To minimise noise disturbance to residents of nearest houses in 

accordance with Policy 10 (Protecting public health, safety and amenity) of 

the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

  

Page 76



 

15. The Noise Monitoring Scheme (as submitted 21 March 2007) as approved 

under F30633/012/CMA, shall be implemented as approved for the duration 

of operations at the site. 

   

 Reason:  To monitor noise levels to ensure noise disturbance for local 

residents is minimised in accordance with Policy 10 (Protecting public health, 

safety and amenity) of the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

  

16. The Dust Suppression Measures (as submitted 21 March 2007) as approved 

under F30633/012/CMA, shall be implemented as approved for the duration 

of operations at the site. 

   

 Reason:  In the interests of local amenities in accordance with Policy 10 

(Protecting public health, safety and amenity) of the Hampshire Minerals and 

Waste Plan (2013). 

 

Highways 

  

17. Access to the quarry shall be from the existing entrance onto the A325 only. 

   

 Reason:  In the interests of highway safety and local amenity in accordance 

with Policies 10 (Protecting public health, safety and amenity) and 12 

(Managing traffic) of the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

  

18. The sight lines of 4.5 metres by 210 metres at the site entrance with the 

A325 shall be maintained for the duration of working and restoration. 

   

 Reason:  In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy 12 

(Managing traffic) of the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

 

19. Measures shall be taken to ensure that no heavy good vehicles shall leave 

the site unless its wheels have been cleaned sufficiently to prevent mud 

being carried onto the highway. 

   

 Reason:  In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy 12 

(Managing traffic) of the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

  

Rights of Way 

 

20. The crossing points with public rights of way and signs warning heavy good 

vehicles drivers of the presence of public rights of way shall be maintained 

for the duration of the development. 

   

Page 77



 

 Reason: To safeguard public rights of way in accordance with Policy 10 

(Protecting public health, safety and amenity) of the Hampshire Minerals and 

Waste Plan (2013). 

 

Archaeology 

 

21. Work shall continue in accordance with the Programme of Archaeological 

Work and any associated Scheme of Investigation as issued by the 

appropriate archaeological contractor under permission F30633/012/CMA. 

   

 Reason:  In the interests of archaeology in accordance with Policy 7 

(Conserving the historic environment and heritage assets) of the Hampshire 

Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

 

Ecology 

 

22. No tree or shrub clearance should be carried out in the bird nesting season 

(1 March to 31 August).  In the event that limited clearance cannot be 

avoided, no active birds nests shall be disturbed and any clearance shall be 

undertaken under the supervision of a suitably qualified Ecologist.  

   

 Reason:  In the interests of nature conservation in accordance with Policy 3 

(Protection of habitats and species) of the Hampshire Minerals and Waste 

Plan (2013). 

  

23. Measures shall be taken to ensure sand extraction does not damage sand 

martin nests in the sand faces during the operational life of the site, and a 

suitable face which is protected from predation at all times be maintained for 

nesting during the operational life, restoration and aftercare. 

 

 Reason:  In the interests of sand martins in accordance with Policy 3 

(Protection of habitats and species) of the Hampshire Minerals and Waste 

Plan (2013). 

  

24. The Great Crested Newt mitigation strategy set out in the Method Statement 

(dated April 2006) shall be fully implemented as approved under 

F30633/012/CMA. 

   

 Reason:  In the interests of protecting Great Crested Newts in accordance 

with Policy 3 (Protection of habitats and species) of the Hampshire Minerals 

and Waste Plan (2013). 

 

Page 78



 

25. The revised Landscape Management and Aftercare document as required 

under Condition 10 (Landscape) shall include details and timings of: 

• all of the protected species measures to implemented; 

• the ongoing management of existing habitats and establishment of 

new habitats operational, restoration and aftercare phases including 

a detailed phase by phase provision of the extent, location and 

management of the sand martin faces. 

 

To reflect the inclusion of ecology details into the revied scheme, the 

document shall be renamed ‘Ecology and Landscape Management, and 

Aftercare’. 

 

Reason:  To ensure the protection of ecology and biodiversity in accordance 

with Policy 3 (Protection of habitats and species) of the Hampshire Minerals 

and Waste Plan (2013). 

 

Restoration 

 

26. The site shall be restored to a mixture of agriculture, amenity and nature 

conservation in accordance with the Restoration and Landscape Scheme 

approved under Condition 10 (Landscape), the Restoration Proposal Plan - 

revised (DG/Q0/FRI/Phasing Plan/Res/Full/revA), or any subsequently 

approved revision under Condition 10 (Landscape). Restoration shall be 

implemented in a phased process in accordance with Condition 4 (Phasing). 

  

 Reason: To ensure satisfactory restoration in accordance with Policy 9 

(Restoration of minerals and waste developments) of the Hampshire 

Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

  

After-Care 

 

27. The approved Aftercare Scheme, as detailed in the Revised Landscape 

Management and Aftercare document (dated November 2020), and 

Aftercare Plan (Figure 2/revA), or any subsequently approved revision under 

Condition 10 (Landscape), shall be implemented as approved. 

     

 Reason:  To ensure that the land is satisfactorily restored in accordance with 

Policy 9 (Restoration of minerals and waste developments) of the Hampshire 

Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

 

28. The site shall be subject to a 5-year aftercare period except for: 

 any acid grasslands to be established as required by the Minerals and 

Waste Planning Authority, and  

Page 79



 

 the sand martin faces required by the approved restoration,  

 

both of which will be subject to a 10-year aftercare period.  

 

The aftercare period shall commence upon the completion date, as 

approved by the Minerals and Waste Planning Authority, of the restoration 

hereby approved by Conditions 10 (Landscape) and 24 (Restoration). 

     

 Reason: To ensure quality restoration and aftercare in accordance with 

Policy 9 (Restoration of minerals and waste developments) of the Hampshire 

Minerals and Waste Plan (2013). 

 

Plans 

 

29.  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 

the following approved plans:   

DG/QO/EST/FRI/01, DG/QO/EST/FRI/02, DG/Q0/FRI/Phasing 

Plan/Res/Full/RevA, DG/Q0/FRI/Res/CS/Rev, Figure 2 RevA, 

DG/Q0/FRI/Working Plan/02/Rev, DG/Q0/FRI/Working Plan/03/Rev, 

DG/Q0/FRI/Phasing Plan/Res/1/Rev, DG/Q0/FRI/Phasing 

Plan/Res/2/Rev, DG/QO/FRI/Noise Bund 

 

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 

 

Notes to Applicant 

 

1. In determining this planning application, the Minerals and Waste Planning 

Authority has worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive manner in 

accordance with the requirement in the National Planning Policy Framework 

(2019), as set out in the Town and Country Planning (Development 

Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015. 

  

2. For the purposes of matters relating to this decision Heavy Goods Vehicles 

(HGVs) are defined as vehicles over 3.5 tonnes un-laden. 

 

3. The Liaison Panel for Frith End Quarry should continue between the site 

operator, Minerals and Waste Planning Authority, interested parties and 

community representatives at a suitable frequency to facilitate effective 

engagement with stakeholders in the interests of promoting communication 

between the site operator and local community. The County Council’s 

guidance on the establishment of panels is available to the applicant. 

 

Page 80



 

 

4.  This decision does not purport or convey any approval or consent which may 

be required under the Building Regulations or any other Acts, including 

Byelaws, orders or Regulations made under such acts. 

 

 

 

 

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



Variation of Conditions 1 (Timescale), 4 (Phasing) and 10 
(Landscaping) of Planning Permission 30633/039 
Extension to the quarry extraction area to the South-West with
associated modifications to the approved quarry schemes Grundon 
Sand And Gravel Ltd,  Frith End Sand Quarry, Grooms Farm 
Lane, Frith End, Bordon GU35 0QR
Application No:  30633/040 & 30633/041
Site Reference: EH121 Drawn by: Strategic Planning

Regulatory Committee
Date 20 April 2022

R

Economy, Transport and Environment

Location Plan

Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right 2016

0 200 400100 M

Legend
BOAT
Bridleway
Footpath
Restricted Byway
Application Area

1:8,000

Text

Aplication No.30633/041

Application No.30699/040

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



138800N

138900N

139000N

4
8
1
1
0
0
E

4
8
1
2
0
0
E

4
8
1
3
0
0
E

7
0

7

0

7
0

7

0

7

5

7

5

65

6

5

6

5

6

5

6

5

7

5

7

5

8

0

Weighbridge

Office

65

7

0

WL c .60mAOD

Standoff to the tree trunk

Frith end Quarry
Site

Project

Scale Date

Ordnance Survey Copyright Licence No 100039885

This drawing is the property of Grundon Waste
Management Ltd and must not be used or copied
without prior written consent.  

1:1000 @ A3 December 2020

Grundon Sand and Gravel Ltd
Estates Department, Grange Lane

Beenham, Berks, RG7 5PY
Tel: 01189 714040  estates@grundon.com

Title

c

Drawing No

DG/QO/FRI/HE/03

Extension (working) Area

Hill Extension

LEGEND

Planning Application Area

Exposed sand in extension area

Original ground surface

60

Ground contours 1m intervals

(mAOD)

NOTES

·
Topographic survey above 60mAOD updated by

GWP Consultants LLP on 10.10.2018 has been used.

·
The original drawing prepared by GWP Consultants

dated 11.12.2020 (titled: Working scheme: survey)

·
River Breach Topographic survey by gsurv Chartered

Land Surveyors dated 14/04/2020 (ref dwg

20 644/001_0 Img) has been also used.

P
age 85



T
his page is intentionally left blank



7
0

7

0

7
0

7

0

7
5

7

5

65

6

5

6

5

6

5

6

5

7

5

7

5

8

0

Office

138800N

138900N

139000N

4
8
1
1
0
0
E

4
8
1
2
0
0
E

WL c .60mAOD

7

0

7

0

7

5

7

5

7

5

80

6

5

7

5

7
0

7

5

Steep access

ramp 1v in 5h

Soil stripped

Fill ramp

1v in 9h

66mAOD

Weighbridge

Standoff to the tree trunk

Soil storage

Standoff to

the tree

trunk

Frith end Quarry
Site

Project

Scale Date

Ordnance Survey Copyright Licence No 100039885

This drawing is the property of Grundon Waste
Management Ltd and must not be used or copied
without prior written consent.  

1:1000 @ A3 December 2020

Grundon Sand and Gravel Ltd
Estates Department, Grange Lane

Beenham, Berks, RG7 5PY
Tel: 01189 714040  estates@grundon.com

Title

c

Drawing No

DG/QO/FRI/HE/04A

Working Scheme_Stage 1

Hill Extension

LEGEND

Planning Application Area

Sand excavation

Fill placed for access platform

and ramp

Area of soil stripping

NOTES

·
Soil storage and movement will be scheduled to

minimise rehandling from soil mounds

·
The original drawing prepared by GWP Consultants

dated 11.12.2020 (titled: Working scheme:

Access ramp)

Soil storage mounds

·
Steep access ramp suitable for tracked excavator

and wheel loader

60

Limit of sand excavation

Ground contours 1m intervals

(mAOD)

P
age 87



T
his page is intentionally left blank



4
8
1
3
0
0
E

7
0

7

0

7
0

7

0

7
5

7

5

65

6

5

6

5

6

5

6

5

7

5

7

5

8

0

Office

6

5

7

5

7
0

c . 75.5mAOD

Soil storage

WL c .60mAOD

c . 68.5mAOD

138800N

138900N

139000N

4
8
1
1
0
0
E

4
8
1
2
0
0
E

66mAOD

Weighbridge

Standoff to the tree trunk

Standoff to

the tree

trunk

Frith end Quarry
Site

Project

Scale Date

Ordnance Survey Copyright Licence No 100039885

This drawing is the property of Grundon Waste
Management Ltd and must not be used or copied
without prior written consent.  

1:1000 @ A3 December 2020

Grundon Sand and Gravel Ltd
Estates Department, Grange Lane

Beenham, Berks, RG7 5PY
Tel: 01189 714040  estates@grundon.com

Title

c

Drawing No

DG/QO/FRI/HE/04B

Working Scheme_Stage 2

Hill Extension

LEGEND

Planning Application Area

Sand excavation

Fill placed for access platform

and ramp

Area of soil stripping

NOTES

·
The original drawing prepared by GWP Consultants

dated 11.12.2020 (titled: Working scheme:

Excavation of second lift)

Soil storage mounds

60

Limit of sand excavation

Ground contours 1m intervals

(mAOD)

·
Soil storage and movement will be scheduled

to minimise rehandling from soil mounds.

·
Steep access ramp suitable for tracked

excavator and wheel loader.

·
Sand to be excavated by excavator sat at

75.5m level

P
age 89



T
his page is intentionally left blank



7
0

7

0

7
0

7

0

7

5

7

5

65

6

5

6

5

6

5

6

5

7

5

7

5

8

0

Office

7
0

6

0

6

5

65

7

0

6

1

6

2

6
3

6

4

68

c . 68.5mAOD

61-62mAOD

Soil storage

1v in 2h final sand

faces

WL c .60mAOD

4
8
1
3
0
0
E

138800N

138900N

139000N

4
8
1
1
0
0
E

4
8
1
2
0
0
E

Weighbridge

Standoff to the tree trunk

Standoff to

the tree

trunk

Frith end Quarry
Site

Project

Scale Date

Ordnance Survey Copyright Licence No 100039885

This drawing is the property of Grundon Waste
Management Ltd and must not be used or copied
without prior written consent.  

1:1000 @ A3 December 2020

Grundon Sand and Gravel Ltd
Estates Department, Grange Lane

Beenham, Berks, RG7 5PY
Tel: 01189 714040  estates@grundon.com

Title

c

Drawing No

DG/QO/FRI/HE/04C

Working Scheme_Stage 3

Hill Extension

LEGEND

Planning Application Area

Sand excavation

Fill placed for access platform

and ramp

Area of soil stripping

NOTES

·
The original drawing prepared by GWP Consultants

dated 11.12.2020 (titled: Working scheme:

Progressive restoration)

Soil storage mounds

Sand excavation at final levels

and available for restoration

·
Soil storage and movement will be scheduled

to minimise rehandling from soil mounds

60

Limit of sand excavation

Ground contours 1m intervals

(mAOD)

P
age 91



T
his page is intentionally left blank



138600N 138600N

138700N

138700N

138800N 138800N

138900N 138900N

139000N 139000N

139100N 139100N

4
8
1
0
0
0
E

4
8
1
0
0
0
E

4
8
1
1
0
0
E

4
8
1
1
0
0
E

4
8
1
2
0
0
E

4
8
1
2
0
0
E

4
8
1
3
0
0
E

4
8
1
3
0
0
E

4
8
1
4
0
0
E

4
8
1
4
0
0
E

4
8
1
5
0
0
E

4
8
1
5
0
0
E

4
8
1
6
0
0
E

4
8
1
6
0
0
E

4
8
1
7
0
0
E

4
8
1
7
0
0
E

62.79

63.45

71.07

71.97

71.03

6
1

6

3

6

1

6

2

6
3

6

4

6

2

6

7

6

5

6

1

6
5

6

4

6

1

6

2

6

2

6

3

62.64

6

5

6

4

6

6

63.66

63.31

7

4

7

2

7

3

7

4

76

75

7

8

7
9

8
0

77

8

1

6

2

61.48

71.66

6

2

6

2

6

3

62

62.06

62.15

62.39

6

5

6

06

0

6

1

6

1

6

4

6

2

6
2

63

6

2

6
4

62

6
3

65

6

2

6

2

6

2

6

3

61.66

61.23

61.37

Post

60.93

61.54

7

6

7

5

6

4

6

3

6

5

7

4

7

3

7
4

6

1

6

2

6

3

6

4

6

5

65

70

75

80

C

r
a

d

l
e

 
L

a

n

e

Grooms Farm

Coltfield Cottage

Pump House

Farm

Grooms

P
a
t
h
 
(
u
m

)

Path (um)

T

r

a

c

k

Range

Pistol

P

a

t
h

 
(
u

m

)

Path (um)

P

a

t
h

 
(
u

m

)

Baigent's Hill

BM 63.31m

P

a

t

h

 

(

u

m

)

Brockford Bridge

P

a

t

h

 

(

u

m

)

P

a

t

h

 

(

u

m

)

T

r

a

c

k

(

u

m

)

P

a

t

h

P

a

t

h

 

(

u

m

)

R

iv
e
r
 
S
le

a

D

r

a

i
n

D

r

a

i
n

D
r
a
in

D

r

a

i

n

Pond

Pond

D

r

a

i

n

Pond

R

i

v

e

r

 

S

l

e

a

6523

7310

8000

4959

2573

3573

5971

6972

6181

5883

0688

85

80

80

75

70

65

70

75

80

70

65

6

6

6

6

7

8

76

74

74

8

0

7

2

70

70

72

72

6

4

6

6

66

66

6

6

64

68

68

7

0

6

2

70

68

60

58

56

55

6

3

64

.

.

.

M

N

O

P

.

6

6

69

7
0

7

1

6

8

6

7

6
6

6
5

6

8

6

3

6

4

6

2

6
1

62

Restoration Lake

63

61

72

7

0

Proposed Sand

Martin cliff

72

6

6

6
5

6

2

6
3

6

4

6

6

M

Frith end Quarry

Notes

Site

Project

Scale Date

Ordnance Survey Copyright Licence No 100039885

This drawing is the property of Grundon Waste
Management Ltd and must not be used or copied
without prior written consent.  

Issue Date Comments

1 : 2500 @ A3 July 2021

Grundon Sand and Gravel
Estates Department, Grange Lane

Beenham, Berks, RG7 5PY
Tel: 01189 714040  estates@grundon.com

Title

c

Drown By Checked By
MG
Drawing No

DG/QO/FRI/Phasing Plan/Res/Full/revA

SM

Restoration Proposal-Rev

Mineral Extraction and Restoration

7

4

7

4

6

4

P
age 93

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
KEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
Existing vegetation 

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
Approved Restoration Contour

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
Woodland

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
Marginal aquatic planting

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
Hedgerow  (proposed new sections to the south)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
Existing Contour

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
Proposed Restoration Contour

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
Proposed extension/extraction area

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
Frith End Quarry boundary

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
Proposed Neutral Wildflower Meadow

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
Rough Grazing

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
Restoration fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
Pond to be created for relocation of netws 

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
Newt hibernacula 

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
Existing mitigation pond 

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
Already re-seeded

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
Proposed Neutral Grassland Meadow

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
Proposed Wet Grassland

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
Shrubs



T
his page is intentionally left blank



138800N

138900N

139000N

139100N

4
8
1
0
0
0
E

4
8
1
1
0
0
E

4
8
1
2
0
0
E

4
8
1
3
0
0
E

4
8
1
4
0
0
E

4
8
1
5
0
0
E

4
8
1
6
0
0
E

4
8
1
6
0
0
E

4
8
1
7
0
0
E

4
8
1
7
0
0
E

62.79

63.45

6
3

6
5

6
4

62.64

6

5

6

4

6

6

63.66

63.31

7

4

7

2

7

3

7

4

76

75

7

8

7
9

8
0

77

8

1

6

2

61.48

6

2

6

2

62

62.06

62.15

62.39

6

5

6

06

0

6

1

6

1

6

4

6

2

6
2

63

6
2

6
4

62

6
3

65

6

2

6

2

6

2

6

3

61.66

61.23

61.37

Post

60.93

61.54

7

6

7

5

6

4

6

3

6

5

7

4

7

3

7
4

6

1

6

2

6

3

6

4

6

5

65

70

75

80

C

r
a

d

l
e

 
L

a

n

e

Grooms Farm

Farm

Grooms

P
a
t
h
 
(
u
m

)

Path (um)

T

r

a

c

k

P

a

t
h

 
(
u

m

)

Path (um)

P

a

t
h

 
(
u

m

)

P

a

t

h

 

(

u

m

)

(

u

m

)

P

a

t

h

P

a

t

h

 

(

u

m

)

R

iv
e
r
 
S
le

a

D

r
a

i
n

D

r

a

i

n

Pond

D

r

a

i

n

Pond

R

i

v

e

r

 

S

l

e

a

7310

2573

3573

6972

6181

5883

0688

85

80

80

75

70

65

70

6

6

6

6

7

8

76

74

74

8

0

7
2

70

70

72

72

6

4

6

6

66

66

6

6

64

68

68

7

0

6

2

70

68

60

58

56

55

6

3

A

'

C

'

B

'

A

B

C

D

D

'

64

.

.

.

M

N

O

.

6

6

69

70

7

1

6

8

6

7

6
6

6
5

6

8

6

3

6

4

6

2

6
1

62

Restoration Lake

63

61

72

7

0

Proposed Sand

Martin cliff

72

6

6

6
5

6

2

6
3

6

4

6

6

M

P

Frith end Quarry
Site

Project

Scale Date

Ordnance Survey Copyright Licence No 100039885

This drawing is the property of Grundon Waste
Management Ltd and must not be used or copied
without prior written consent.  

1 : 2250 @ A3 July 2021

Grundon Sand and Gravel
Estates Department, Grange Lane

Beenham, Berks, RG7 5PY
Tel: 01189 714040  estates@grundon.com

Title

c

Drown By Checked By
MG
Drawing No

Figure 2/revA

7

4

SM

Aftercare Plan

7

4

6

4

Mineral Extraction and Restoration

ote:

For ross Section lease
refer to draing no
G/Q/FR/Res/S/re

P
age 95

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
Existing vegetation 

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
Approved Restoration Contour

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
Woodland

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
Marginal aquatic planting

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
Hedgerow  (proposed new sections to the south)

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
Existing Contour

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
Proposed Restoration Contour

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
KEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
Proposed extension/extraction area

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
Frith End Quarry boundary

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
Proposed Neutral Wildflower Meadow

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
Rough Grazing

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
Restoration fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
Pond to be created for relocation of netws 

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
Newt hibernacula 

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
Existing mitigation pond 

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
Already re-seeded

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
Proposed Neutral Grassland Meadow

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
Proposed Wet Grassland

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
Shrubs



T
his page is intentionally left blank



HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
Decision Report 

 

Decision Maker: Regulatory Committee 

Date: 20 April 2022 

Title: Realignment works and alterations to the northerly section of 
Blackbushes Road including the addition of a fourth arm on the 
A30/A327 Hartford Bridge Flats junction roundabout, plus 
changes to street lighting, road lining, road signing and 
drainage and new boundary fencing alongside the western and 
eastern boundaries at Blackbushes Road, Hartley Wintney and 
land to the west of Blackbushes Road (No. 22/00214/HCC) 
(Site Ref: HRH003) 

Report From: Assistant Director of Waste, Planning and Environment 

Contact name: 

 

Sam Dumbrell 
 

Tel: 0370 779 7412 Email: sam.dumbrell@hants.gov.uk  

 
Recommendation 
 
1. That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the conditions listed in 

Appendix A.  
 

Executive Summary  
 
2. The planning application seeks approval for a road improvement scheme at the 

junction of the A30/A327 ‘Hartford Bridge Flats’ roundabout near to the A30’s 
southern carriageway junction with Blackbushes Road, near Hartley Wintney in 
north-eastern Hampshire. The proposal would replace the existing staggered 
junction arrangement which includes a three-arm roundabout solution and 
nearby left turn into and out of Blackbushes Road with a four-armed roundabout, 
formally incorporating the A30, A327 and Blackbushes Road junctions. 
 

3. The proposed scheme is part of a joint funded Hampshire County Council and 
Department for Transport ‘Pinch Point’ Programme Improvement Scheme to 
replace the former staggered junction arrangement, with the three-arm 
roundabout solution, completed in May 2015. However, the scheme provided 
only a partial solution, as time constraints linked to funding precluding the 
provision of a fourth arm within Phase 1 of the scheme due to the requirement 
for land acquisition. Phase 2 - the subject of this proposal - is therefore required 
to complete the scheme to create a four-arm roundabout and ensure that the full 
benefits can be fully realised. 
 

4. The addition of a fourth arm on the A30/A327 Hartford Bridge Flats Junction will 
provide direct access for traffic seeking to travel southbound on Blackbushes 
Road from the A327 southbound or A30 eastbound. This traffic will no longer be 
required to use a more convoluted route by diverting east along the A30 and u-

Page 97

Agenda Item 7

mailto:sam.dumbrell@hants.gov.uk
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/791450/National_PP_Programme_Meta_Final_draft.pdf


turning at A30 Blackbushes Roundabout. The northern section of Blackbushes 
Road will effectively be moved 35m westward to join the roundabout.  

 
5. Alterations to street lighting, road lining, road signage, road drainage and new 

boundary fencing alongside the western and eastern boundaries are also 
included. 

 
6. The purpose of the scheme is to reduce journey times for traffic currently using 

the roundabout junction, and in turn reduce emissions to the environment from 
vehicles making unnecessarily longer trips, including through delays at the 
existing staggered junction and its three-arm roundabout arrangement.  

 
7. It is considered that the proposal would be in accordance with the relevant 

policies of the adopted Hart Local Plan (2020).  
 
8. This application is being considered by the Regulatory Committee as it is 

considered to be a significant County Council Regulation 3 infrastructure 
development. 

 
9. No statutory consultees objected to the proposal. No representations were 

received from members of the public.   
 
10. The Regulatory Committee did not visit the site in advance of the Regulatory 

Committee meeting. This was due to there being a lack of safe parking and 
pedestrian areas adjoining the public highway. 

 
11. In summary, it is considered that the proposal would:  
 

 meet an identified need; 

 be acceptable in terms of highway capacity and safety; 

 not adversely affect the local landscape; 

 not cause any additional flood risk and protect the quality of groundwater 
and surface water; 

 not adversely affect local archaeology and cultural heritage; 

 not have an adverse effect on ecology and biodiversity;  

 have a positive effect in terms of climate change; and 

 not cause unacceptable adverse amenity impacts. 
 

12. Therefore, it is recommended that permission be GRANTED subject to the 
conditions in Appendix A. 

 
The Site 
 
13. The proposed development is located within the administrative boundary of Hart 

District Council (HDC), situated approximately 1.5 kilometres (km) north-east of 
Hartfordbridge, 2.5km north-east of Hartley Wintney and 2.5km south-west/west 
of Yateley/Yateley Common (see Appendix B - Committee Plan).  

 

Page 98

https://www.hart.gov.uk/sites/default/files/4_The_Council/Policies_and_published_documents/Planning_policy/Hart%20LPS%26S.pdf


14. The A30/A327 Hartford Bridge Flats junction site is located in north-east 
Hampshire close to the Surrey boundary. The A30 is recognised as an important 
link between towns in Hampshire, Surrey and Berkshire, and the Thames Valley 
and London. 

 
15. The site is situated in the countryside and is flanked by woodland and mineral 

workings, some being active and some closed. Blackbushe Airport is situated 
approximately 450 metres (m) due east of the site. 

 
16. The nearest residential properties, including isolated properties and the Star Hill 

Caravan Site, are situated due west of the site, within a 250m radius. 
 
17. The site of the proposed development occupies approximately 3.2 hectares (see 

Appendix C - Site Plan). It comprises public highway maintained by the County 
Council - comprising sections of the east-west running A30, the north-south 
running A327 and the north-south running Blackbushes Road (a C road) and 
adjoining undeveloped land classified as ‘public highway’ also.   

 
18. The application site is situated within close proximity to several designated sites 

and locations and known environmental constraints, including: 
 

 Thames Basins Heaths SPA; 

 Castle Bottom to Yateley and Hawley Commons SSSI - located to the 
east of the A327 and south of the A30 including the area known as 
Yateley Heath Wood, is designated for the presence of habitat suitable for 
a range of species including Dartford Warbler;  

 Bramshill Park (Historic Park and Garden); 

 Faeston Dic Linear earthwork Scheduled Ancient Monument; 

 Groundwater Vulnerability Zones; and 

 Blackbush Airport Safeguarding Area. 
 

19. The application site’s south-eastern margin lies within the Thames Basin Heath 
Special Protection Area (SPA). The SPA is designated as a sensitive habitat for 
ground nesting birds comprising the Dartford warbler, nightjar and woodlark. 

 
20. The Environment Agency Flood Risk Map indicates that the site is wholly within 

Flood Zone 1, and does not lie within a Groundwater Source Protection Zone. It 
overlies a Secondary A bedrock aquifer and lies within a Drinking Water 
Safeguarded Zone.  

 
21. The application site, specifically the A30, forms part of the Strategic Road 

Network. 
 
Planning History 
 
22. There is no recent County Council planning history for the application site itself. 

Phase 1 was completed as ‘highway improvement works’ and as permitted 
development.  

 

Page 99



23. With the application site comprising public highway - section of the A30, A327 
and Blackbushes Road - and adjoining land classed as ‘highway land’, the 
County Council as the ‘Local Highway Authority’ is responsible for the monitoring 
and maintenance of them, as well as any urgent repair works. 

 
24. The County Council, in its role as the Minerals and Waste Planning Authority, 

has a long planning history with several sites in close proximity to the application 
site, the nearest being Bramshill Quarry. Bramshill Quarry is an active quarry, 
and comprises an area of approximately 120 hectares, north and south of the 
A30, west of the A327 and east and west of Blackbushes Road. The site 
entrance and plant site area lie to the west of the A327.  

 
25. The Quarry also includes a conveyor bridge over the A30, which moves 

extracted sand and gravel northward toward its processing and storage areas. 
The bridge is located approximately 60m due west of the application site. Plant 
transporting extracted sand and gravel to the southern end of the conveyor 
bridge, crosses Blackbushes Road approximately 230m south of the A30 
junction. This crossing point lies within the application’s southern margin. 

 
26. Both Bramshill Quarry and its conveyor bridge are the subject of separate 

planning applications (planning permissions 20/03153/HCC and 21/00052/HCC) 
seeking extensions of time for mineral extraction and the retention of the bridge 
to move extracted mineral until June 2026. These were approved by Regulatory 
Committee in November 2021 subject to conditions and the completion of 
section 106 legal agreements. These agreements are currently being prepared. 

 
The Proposal 
 
27. A joint funded Hampshire County Council and Department for Transport ‘Pinch 

Point’ Programme Improvement Scheme to replace the existing staggered 
junction arrangement with a three-arm roundabout solution was completed in 
May 2015 (see Appendix D - Existing Layout). However, the scheme provided 
only a partial solution, as time constraints linked to the ‘Pinch Point’ funding 
window precluded the provision of a fourth arm within Phase 1 of the scheme 
due to the requirement for land acquisition. Phase 2 - the subject of this proposal 
- is therefore required now to complete the scheme to ensure that the full 
benefits can be fully realised. 

 
28. The addition of a fourth arm on the A30/A327 Hartford Bridge Flats Junction will 

provide direct access for traffic seeking to travel southbound on Blackbushes 
Road from the A327 southbound or A30 eastbound. This traffic will no longer be 
required to use a more convoluted route by diverting east along the A30 and u-
turning at A30 Blackbushes Roundabout. The northern section of Blackbushes 
Road will effectively be moved 35m westward to join the roundabout (see 
Appendix E - Proposed Layout). 

 
29. The purpose of the scheme is to reduce journey times for traffic currently using 

the roundabout junction, and in turn reduce emissions to the environment from 

Page 100

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/20/03153/HCC
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/21/00052/HCC
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/791450/National_PP_Programme_Meta_Final_draft.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/791450/National_PP_Programme_Meta_Final_draft.pdf


vehicles making unnecessarily longer trips, including through delays at the 
existing staggered junction and its three-arm roundabout arrangement. 

 
30. The area formerly occupied by the northern end of Blackbushes Road would be 

replanted and restored to an agreed mix of species and vegetation type that 
would be appropriate to the locality and the Thames Basin Heaths Special 
Protection Area (SPA). 

 
31. Alterations to street lighting, road lining, road signage, road drainage and new 

boundary fencing alongside the western and eastern boundaries are also 
included. 

 
32. Elements of the proposed development that would be undertaken as ‘permitted 

development’ by the Highway Authority (under the provisions of the Town & 
Country Planning (General Permitted Development (England) Order 2015 as 
amended. 

 
33. All construction-related activities would be undertaken within a Construction 

Management Plan (CMP) to ensure road safety is maintained. This would 
include the compound required throughout the duration of the project to house 
materials, plant, machinery, vehicles, welfare facilities etc, which would all be 
contained within the red line application site. 

 
34. The project would take 12 months to complete and construction hours, including 

the delivery and despatch of vehicles would be between the hours of 07:00 and 
18:00 Monday to Friday and 08:00 and 13:00 on Saturdays. There would be no 
working on Sundays or recognised Public or Bank Holidays. 
 

35. Construction access would be via the A30 and a segregated feeder lane into and 
out of the compound area. Temporary traffic signals and lane closures are also 
likely to be employed. 

 
Development Plan and Guidance  
 
36. Paragraph 47 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2021) (NPPF) 

requires ‘applications for planning permission (to) be determined in accordance 
with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise’. 
Therefore, consideration of the relevant plans, guidance and policies and 
whether the proposal is in accordance with these is of relevance to decision 
making.  

 
37. The following plans and associated policies are considered to be relevant to the 

proposal:  
 
National Planning Policy Framework (2021) (NPPF)   
 
38.  The following paragraphs are relevant to this proposal:  

 Paragraph 2: Determination of planning permissions;  

 Paragraphs 10 - 12: Presumption in favour of sustainable development; 

Page 101

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/596/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/596/contents/made
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1005759/NPPF_July_2021.pdf


 Paragraphs 38 - 48: Decision making; 

 Paragraphs 55 - 56: Planning conditions; 

 Paragraph 57: Planning obligations; 

 Paragraph 81: Support of sustainable economic growth; 

 Paragraphs 84 - 85: Supporting a prosperous rural economy; 

 Paragraph 92: Healthy, inclusive and safe places; 

 Paragraph 100: Protecting and enhancing public rights of way and 
access; 

 Paragraphs 104, 110 - 113: Sustainable transport; 

 Paragraphs 119 - 120: Effective use of land; 

 Paragraphs 126 - 136: Design; 

 Paragraphs 153 - 158: Planning and climate change; 

 Paragraphs 159 - 169: Planning and flood risk; 

 Paragraphs 174, 180 - 182: Contributions and enhancement of natural 
and local environment and habitats and biodiversity; 

 Paragraphs 180 - 181: Biodiversity and planning; 

 Paragraphs 183 - 188: Ground conditions and pollution; and 

 Paragraphs 189 - 208: Conserving and enhancing historic environment.  
 

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 
 

41. Elements of National Planning Practice Guidance NPPG (Live) are also relevant, 
those being: 

 Air quality (1 November 2019); 

 Climate change (15 March 2019); 

 Flood risk and coastal change (20 August 2021); 

 Healthy and safe communities (1 November 2019); 

 Historic environment (23 July 2019); 

 Light pollution (1 November 2019); 

 Natural environment (21 July 2019); 

 Noise (22 July 2019); 

 Travel plans, transport assessments and statements (6 March 2014);  

 Use of planning conditions (23 July 2019); and  

 Water supply, wastewater and water quality (22 July 2019). 
 
South East Plan (SEP)  
 
40.  The following saved policy is relevant to the proposal:  

 Policy NM7: Thames Heath Special Protection Area (saved policy).  
 

Hart Local Plan (2020) 

 

42. The following policies are relevant to the proposal:  

 Policy SD1 (Sustainable development); 

 Policy NBE1 (Development in the countryside); 

 Policy NBE2 (Landscape); 

 Policy NBE3 (Thames Basin Heaths SPA); 

Page 102

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance
https://www.hart.gov.uk/plans-and-policies


 Policy NBE4 (Biodiversity) 

 Policy NBE5 (Managing flood risk); 

 Policy NBE6 (Water quality); 

 Policy NBE8 (Historic environment); 

 Policy NBE9 (Design); 

 Policy NBE11 (Pollution);  

 Policy INF2 (Green infrastructure); and 

 Policy INF3 (Transport). 
 

Hartley Wintney Neighbourhood Plan (2017 - 2032) (2019)  
 
43. The Plan’s purpose is to guide and influence development in the Parish using its 

policies, alongside the Hart Local Plan and its polices, to improve the lives of 
residents, businesses and visitors and quality of the environment within it. 

 
Hampshire Local Transport Plan (2011 to 2031) version 3 (Reviewed 2013) 
 
44. The County Council’s ‘Transport vision’ includes ensuring that when the residents 

of Hampshire travel, they can: 

 Reliably get to the places they need to go to; 

 Choose how, when (and whether) to travel; 

 Travel safely, for themselves and others; and 

 If possible, enjoy their journey. 
 

45. The County Council’s intentions are to deliver “Safe, efficient and reliable ways to 
get around a prospering and sustainable Hampshire”. 

 
Consultations  

 
46. County Councillor Davies: Was notified. 
 
47. Hart District Council Planning: No objection. 
 
48. Hart District Council Environmental Health: Was notified. 
 
49. Eversley Parish Council: Proposal is welcomed. 
 
50. Hartley Wintney Parish Council: Supports proposal. 
 
51. Local Highway Authority: No objection subject to a Construction Traffic 

Management Plan being imposed via condition. 
 

52. Lead Local Flood Authority: No objection to the proposed drainage measures 
being implemented in full. 

 

53. County Arboriculturist: Applicant’s tree protection plan and supervision during 
works agreed with. 

 

Page 103

https://www.hart.gov.uk/sites/default/files/4_The_Council/Policies_and_published_documents/Planning_policy/Neighbourhood_planning/Hartley%20Wintney%20Neighbourhood%20Plan%20Referendum%20version%20August%202019.pdf
https://www.hants.gov.uk/transport/localtransportplan


54. County Archaeologist: No issues. 
 
55. County Ecologist: No objection subject to the mitigation measures being 

implemented within the Sections 5.3-5.12 of their Ecological Appraisal (May 
2021). 

 
56. County Landscape: No objection but the roadside planting and restoration 

works, including details on soil and species’ mixes are required, to prevent weed 
growth and encourage biodiversity. Concerns raised over appearance of palisade 
fencing on western side of road. 

 
57. Blackbushe Airport: Supports proposal. New signage and lampposts must be 

no higher than existing and the methods of installing these should not use cranes 
that exceed the existing treeline. Any new lighting must not cause dazzling risks 
to aircraft. 

 
58. Farnborough Airport: No objection. 
 
59. Ministry of Defence (RAF Odiham): No objection. 
 
Representations 
 
60. Hampshire County Council’s Statement of Community Involvement (2017) (SCI) 

sets out the adopted consultation and publicity procedures associated with 
determining planning applications. 

 
61. In complying with the requirements of the SCI, Hampshire County Council: 
 

 Published a notice of the application in the Hampshire Independent; 

 Posted 4 site notices around the site; 

 Consulted all statutory and non-statutory consultees in accordance with 
The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) 
(England) Order 2015; and 

 Notified all residential properties (by letter) within 50 metres from the site 
boundary, and the nearby Star Hill Caravan Site situated approximately 
260m due west/north-west. 

 
62. As of 05 April 2022, no representations to the proposal have been received.  
 
Commentary 
 
Principle of the development 
 
63. The principle of the construction and delivery of these road improvement works 

is part of an agreed and approved joint funded Hampshire County Council and 
Department for Transport ‘Pinch Point’ Programme Improvement Scheme.  

 
64. Competed in May 2015, Phase 1 replaced the former staggered junction 

arrangement, with the current three-arm roundabout solution and staggered 

Page 104

http://www3.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/sci-2.htm
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/publicnotices/public-notice-publication.htm
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/595/article/2/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/595/article/2/made
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/791450/National_PP_Programme_Meta_Final_draft.pdf


junction between the southern westbound carriageway of the A30 and 
Blackbushes Road. However, as already noted, the scheme provided only a 
partial solution, as time constraints linked to funding precluding the provision of a 
fourth arm within Phase 1 of the scheme due to the requirement for land 
acquisition.  

 
66. With land acquisition now nearing completion, the required Phase 2 - the subject 

of this proposal - to complete the scheme to create a four-arm roundabout and 
ensure that the full benefits can be fully realised. This is supported by Policy 
INF3 (Transport) of the adopted Hart Local Plan (2020). This policy states that 
Hart District Council will support development that: 

 

a) integrate into existing movement networks; 

b) provide safe, suitable and convenient access for all potential users; 

c) provide an on-site movement layout compatible for all potential users;  

d) provide appropriate parking provision, in terms of amount, design and 

layout, in accordance with the Council’s published parking standards, or as 

set out in Neighbourhood Plans; 

e) provide appropriate waste and recycling storage areas and accessible 

collection points for refuse vehicles; 

f) do not have a severe impact on the operation, safety or accessibility of the 

local or strategic highway networks; 

g) mitigate impacts on the local or strategic highway networks, arising from 

the development itself or the cumulative effects of development; and 

h) protect and where possible enhance access to public rights of way.  
 

67. The Policy’s aims are to support development proposals that ‘integrate into 
existing movement networks’ and which will not have a ‘residual impact on the 
operation, safety or accessibility to either the local or strategic highway networks’. 
The proposal would satisfy both of these criteria through linking into the existing 
road network and improving operations and accessibility for road users whilst 
maintaining current levels of safety. 
 

68. The County Council’s Local Transport Plan (2013) seeks to help road users 
‘reliably get to the places they need to go to’ and ‘if possible, enjoy their journey’, 
whilst delivering “Safe, efficient and reliable ways to get around a prospering and 
sustainable Hampshire”. The completion of Phase 2 and the installation of a four-
arm roundabout would reduce travel times, avoid vehicles having to make 
unnecessary u-turns and maintain the existing levels of safety on this section of 
the County’s local and strategic road network. 
 

69. Therefore, the principle of the development is supported by Policy INF3 
(Transport) of the Hart Local Plan (2020) and the Hampshire Local Transport 
Plan (2013), and as such is considered to be in accordance with the 
Development Plan. 

 
 

Page 105

https://www.hart.gov.uk/plans-and-policies
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/transport/HampshireLTPPartALongTermStrategy2011-2031RevisedApril2013.pdf
https://www.hart.gov.uk/plans-and-policies
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/transport/HampshireLTPPartALongTermStrategy2011-2031RevisedApril2013.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/transport/HampshireLTPPartALongTermStrategy2011-2031RevisedApril2013.pdf


Demonstration of need  
 
70. As previously stated, the assessment of need for Phase 2 - to complete the 

approved scheme to create a four-arm roundabout - of the joint funded 
Hampshire County Council and Department for Transport ‘Pinch Point’ 
Programme Improvement Scheme remains accurate and relevant today. The 
delay was due to problems completing land acquisition, which in turn affected 
the funding window in the last decade. 

 
71. With land acquisition progressing, the deliverability of the agreed and approved 

scheme can now be more certain. Should planning permission be granted, the 
applicant would have three years to commence the development. This is 
sufficient time to ensure that funding can still be secured and there is sufficient 
time to complete the project. 

 
72. The A30 (south-west corridor at this location) provides a strategic and important 

link between towns in Hampshire, Surrey and Berkshire, and the Thames Valley 
and London. This includes to and from the M3 motorway and the nearby 
Blackbushe Airport. 

 
73. In the intervening years since Phase 1 was completed, traffic usage has 

increased on this section of the A30 and the delays for vehicles wanting to enter 
and exit Blackbushes Road from the A30 whether travelling west or east 
remains. 

 
74. Therefore, the proposed development remains identified as a new scheme that 

can contribute significantly to reducing journey times in accordance with Policy 
INF3 (Transport) of the Hart Local Plan (2020) and the Hampshire Local 
Transport Plan (2013). 

 
Highway capacity and safety 

 
75. The proposed development has already been assessed through modelling and 

feasibility studies in terms of ensuring highway capacity can be satisfied and 
maintained through its delivery prior to Phase 1 being completed in 2015.  

 
76. Whilst the delay in implementing Phase 2 (also approved pre-2015) would result 

in increased levels of traffic using the affected road network, the principal behind 
the scheme - reducing journey times for vehicles joining and leaving the A30 
from Blackbushes Road - remains current and relevant. Capacity would not be 
adversely affected, nor would it be a reason to resist the proposal. 

 
77. Looking at road safety, the Highway Authority has assessed the details of the 

visibility splays at the junctions along the link road and swept path analyses of 
appropriate vehicle type/s for the road proposed within the Transport 
Assessment and have accepted them.  

 
78. In terms of the construction of the fourth arm of the roundabout, the Highway 

Authority has assessed this also. The proposed construction period would be 

Page 106

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/791450/National_PP_Programme_Meta_Final_draft.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/791450/National_PP_Programme_Meta_Final_draft.pdf
https://www.hart.gov.uk/plans-and-policies
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/transport/HampshireLTPPartALongTermStrategy2011-2031RevisedApril2013.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/transport/HampshireLTPPartALongTermStrategy2011-2031RevisedApril2013.pdf


nine months with the construction compound and activities all being located 
within the application site. All construction traffic would use the A30 as usual. 
Traffic flow although disrupted temporarily, would be maintained in a safe 
manner. 

 
79. In order to ensure the development is constructed safely and existing highways 

users and residents living and working close by (including quarrying operations 
crossing Blackbushes Road) are not adversely affected, a Construction Traffic 
Management Plan (CTMP) (to include details on the daily and total number and 
size of lorries accessing the site, the turning of delivery vehicles and lorry routing 
as well as provisions for removing mud from vehicles) and a programme of 
works would be required by condition. This condition would need to be satisfied 
and approved prior to the commencement of development. 

 

80. The Local Highway Authority has no objection to the proposal subject to a 
planning condition requiring the submission and implementation of an approved 
Construction Traffic Management Plan to be implemented during the 
construction phase being imposed. This condition is included in Appendix A. 
The proposal is therefore considered to be acceptable in terms of highway 
capacity and road safety and is in accordance with Policy INF3 (Transport) of the 
Hart Local Plan (2020). 

 
Design 

 
81. The design of the proposed development is limited. It amounts to effectively the 

movement westward by approximately 30 metres (m) of an existing country road 
(Blackbushe Road), and its connection to the A30/A327 three arm roundabout. 

 
82. The design of the relocated road and junction has taken into account the need to 

incorporate the new structures into the surrounding landscape, through sensitive 
design, minimising light spill, retention of as many trees as possible and planting 
of replacement vegetation where required. 

 
83. The relocated road will still be a single carriageway, rural road and will be 

finished in traditional surfacing materials involving an engineered base and 
tarmac finish to match the existing road it is being connected with. 

 
84. Boundary planting and drainage measures would be incorporated to mitigate 

planting lost and restore the former route of Blackbushes Road, plus to ensure 
surface water drainage is still controlled. The key considerations are: 

 

 Providing a design that reflects the link road’s location within a rural/semi-
rural area and aims to keep vehicle speeds the same; 

 Ensuring the scheme design take account of the needs of all road users, 
including non-motorised users such as cyclists/ horse riders and any 
pedestrians; 

 Noise and other environmental impacts; 

 Providing and maintaining existing areas of landscaping; 

 Providing adequate drainage; and 

Page 107

https://www.hart.gov.uk/plans-and-policies


 Providing appropriate street lighting and road signage. 
 

85. The proposed design of this road scheme is deemed to be proportionate to the 
scale of the development proposed. The above points will be discussed within 
subsequent sections of the report. 
  

86. Overall, the proposal is considered to have had regard to the context of the 
receiving environment and been designed in a sensitive manner seeking to avoid 
impacts to the environment and residential properties where possible.  As such 
the proposal is considered to be in accordance with Policies NBE1 
(Development in the countryside), NBE9 (Design), INF2 (Green Infrastructure) 
and INF3 (Transport) of the Hart Local Plan (2020). 

 
Visual impact and landscape  
 
87. The proposed development is situated within a countryside location comprising 

heathland and plantation woodland. It is not situated within a sensitive or 
specifically designated landscape setting. 

 
88. A preliminary assessment of landscape and visual sensitivity, tree survey and 

Arboricultural Impact Assessment were all undertaken in order to identify and 
assess the significance of changes resulting from the proposed scheme on 
existing landscape features and on local visual amenity. 

 
89. The introduction of a new road and junctions, albeit through a 30 metre (m) 

westward movement of the current Blackbushes Road, would result in changes 
in local landscape character, as would the loss of trees and vegetation, and 
changes to street lighting. Despite the relatively remote nature of the location, 
with the application site forming part of an established transport corridor, effects 
are considered to be greater during the construction phase due to the additional 
noise and visual intrusion of working machinery and plant, as well as the effect 
resulting from the removal of vegetation. Construction impacts and their effects 
are all temporary disturbances, it must be noted. 

 
90. In terms of construction-related impacts, these would be short-term and 

temporary in nature with short-term adverse effects on local road users, 
residents and businesses. The applicant advises that these impacts could be 
minimised through mitigation Road users, including cyclists, horse riders, and 
any pedestrians would also be affected by short-term adverse effects. 

 
91. The proposed scheme would involve the removal of nineteen trees (mainly pine, 

several oak and a single birch) within the application site to accommodate the 
relocated Blackbushes Road. All other trees and planting would be retained and 
managed in accordance with the applicant’s tree protection plan via condition. 

 
92. All mitigatory planting and landscaping works would be controlled by conditions, 

incorporating the recommendations within the applicant Arboricultural Impact 
Assessment with all planting protected for a period of 5 years after completion of 
the construction of the road or on completion of planting, with any dying, being 

Page 108

https://www.hart.gov.uk/plans-and-policies


damaged or being removed having to be replaced with similar species. 
Conditions are included in Appendix A relating to these issues.  

 
93. Concerns raised over appearance of palisade fencing on western side of road by 

the County Landscape Architect would be alleviated through the use of finishes 
and/or planting to disguise it and help integrate it into its setting and the 
surrounding plantation woodland. This would be achieved via condition. 

 
94. All new street lighting required for the route of the link road would be designed to 

face and ‘light up’ that area of the highway in line with highway safety standards. 
LED lighting would be installed which has less problems of glare and light spill 
associated with it. Mitigation, comprising measures such as shrouding and 
shielding of the light fittings themselves would be employed, and controlled by 
conditions should planning be granted. 

 
95. The concerns raised by Blackbushe Airport over the potential use of cranes 

during construction that exceed the existing tree line and new lighting impacts 
both during construction and post-construction to their existing aircraft operations 
is a significant concern that needs to be mitigated. The applicant has been 
working with the Airport and has confirmed that no development or works would 
exceed the airport safeguarding’s 50 foot high limit.  
 

96. In terms of lighting impacts, the applicant advises that agreement has been 
reached between the two parties concerning the use of temporary lighting and 
aircraft taking off and/or landing. This would need to be controlled by conditions 
should planning permission be granted. This is covered by conditions set out in 
Appendix A. 

 
97. On the basis of the proposed mitigation measures and conditions set out in 

Appendix A, the proposal is considered to have had regard to the context of the 
receiving environment and been designed in a sensitive manner seeking to avoid 
impacts to the environment, the local airport and local amenity where possible.  
As such the proposal is considered to be in accordance with Policies NBE1 
(Development in the countryside), NBE2 (Landscape), NBE9 (Design) and 
NBE11 (Pollution) of the Hart Local Plan (2020). 

 
Water Environment & Flood Risk 
 
99. The proposed relocated Blackbushes Road and its junction with the current 

three-arm A30-A327 roundabout would be drained in the same manner that is 
currently used, using Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) and linking into the 
existing highway surface water drainage regime. 

 
100. The site is situated in Flood Zone 1, which is the lowest risk flood zone with a 

less than 0.1% chance of flooding in any year. No historic flood events have 
been recorded here. The site is not situated within a groundwater sensitive area.  
 

Page 109

https://www.hart.gov.uk/plans-and-policies


101. The submitted Drainage Assessments and Methodologies have been 
accepted by the Lead Local Flood Authority to be achievable with risks to the 
water environment through flooding and to water quality not considered to be 
significant. The installation and use of a 2m wide ‘v-shaped’ SWALE running 
parallel to the western edge of the relocated Blackbushes Road would ensure 
surface water run-off is suitably stored and controlled before entering the 
existing piped system adjoining the A30.  The Lead Local Flood Authority has no 
objection to the proposal based on the submitted drainage details. 

 
102. By mimicking natural drainage regimes, SuDS aim to reduce surface water 

flooding, improve water quality and enhance the amenity and biodiversity value 
of the environment. The drainage system would need to be maintained by the 
County Council as the Local Highway Authority once the new road layout came 
into use. 

 
103. It is considered that the drainage system would not have a significant negative 

impact on the locality, including on properties around the site, and would not 
adversely affect the water environment. As such the proposal is considered to be 
in accordance with Policies NBE5 (Managing flood risk), NBE6 (Water quality), 
NBE11 (Pollution) and INF2 (Green infrastructure) of the Hart Local Plan (2020). 

 
Cultural and Archaeological Heritage 
 
104. There are no designated sites within a 250m radius of the application site 

boundary. The Scheduled Monument known as ‘Linear earthwork known as the 
Festaen Dic’ lies approximately 300m due east, adjoining the southern boundary 
of the A30. No works proposed would affect this designation. 

 
105. The County Archaeologist advises that due to the lack of proximity to known and 

recorded heritage assets and that much of the land in question has been 
impacted by the existing highway layout, there would be very limited impacts 
created.  The County Archaeologist has no objection to the proposal. 

 
106. The proposal is considered to be in accordance with Policy NBE8 (Historic 

environment) of the Hart Local Plan (2020). 
 
Ecology and biodiversity 

107. An Ecological Appraisal was undertaken across the site to assess the potential 
for impacts arising from the proposal and to provide any necessary 
recommendations and mitigation to make the development acceptable. 

108. The appraisal noted that the application site’s south-eastern margin lies within 
the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area (SPA). The SPA is 
designated as a sensitive habitat for ground nesting birds comprising the 
Dartford warbler, nightjar and woodlark. It is afforded a high level of protection 
from all development types. 

Page 110

https://www.hart.gov.uk/plans-and-policies
https://www.hart.gov.uk/plans-and-policies


109. The applicant undertook a detailed Ecological Assessment of the application 
site and impacts and effects on the Thames Basin Heaths SPA. It included 
numerous European and UK protected species, their habitats which included 
feeding, roosting and nesting areas, as well as tree and vegetation clearance 
and protection works. 

110. The County Ecologist has assessed the application and concludes that the 
application site is not considered to have any functional impact pathways 
connecting the proposed works with the Special Protection Area (SPA), and its 
sensitivities. Therefore, the proposal does not have any significant increase on 
any adverse impacts the wider site may have had, and a Habitats Regulation 
Assessment (HRA) is not required to be submitted. 

111. The findings of the applicant’s Ecological Appraisal are accepted by the 
County Ecologist who requires the mitigation measures within the Sections 5.3-
5.12 of their Ecological Appraisal (May 2021) to be imposed and implemented as 
stated by planning condition should planning permission be granted. This is 
included in Appendix A. Without these, the development proposal would result 
in a net loss of biodiversity, and negative impacts on reptiles and breeding birds, 
undermining the designated status of the SPA. 

112. Subject to conditions, the proposal is therefore considered to have been 
designed in a sensitive manner seeking to avoid impacts to local ecology and 
biodiversity where possible, in an area of high ecological value and sensitivity. 
As such the proposal is considered to be in accordance with Policies NBE3 
(Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area)) and NBE4 (Biodiversity) of the 
Hart Local Plan (2020). It is also considered to be in accordance with saved 
Policy NM7: Thames Heath Special Protection Area (saved policy) of the South 
East Plan (SEP) in relation to the parts of the site which lie in the SPA.  

 
Climate change and sustainability 

 
113. The applicant has acknowledged the County Council’s Climate Strategy and 

Action Plan Hampshire County Council - Climate Change Strategy and Action 
Plan and has attempted to offer mitigation through the proposal. 

 

114. The proposed four-arm roundabout seeks to reduce journey times and 
congestion and as a direct result fuel usage and the resultant emissions to the 
atmosphere for vehicles wishing access Blackbushes Road from the A30, 
through relocating Blackbushes Road approximately 30m westward. 

 
115. Furthermore, the footprint of the former Blackbushes Road would be broken up 

and perforated and left in-situ to reduce wastage and increase permeability, to 
allow the area to support relocated and replacement planting. It would mean 
using less imported virgin soil. In terms of sustainable drainage, highways 
drainage would employ Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) to control, store 
and reuse run-off. 

 

Page 111

https://www.hart.gov.uk/plans-and-policies
https://www.hants.gov.uk/landplanningandenvironment/environment/climatechange/whatarewedoing/climatechangestrategy
https://www.hants.gov.uk/landplanningandenvironment/environment/climatechange/whatarewedoing/climatechangestrategy


116. Within the footprint of the proposed Blackbushes Road, existing heathland scrub 
would be preserved on removal and relocated within the application site to help 
maintain and protect local biodiversity, only using imported materials should 
sufficient quality material be lacking.  

 
117. It is considered that the proposal would have a positive impact in terms of its 

impacts on climate change and sustainability. As such the proposal is 
considered to be in accordance with Policies SD1 (Sustainable development), 
NBE7 (Sustainable water use) and INF2 (Green infrastructure) of the Hart Local 
Plan (2020). 

 
Noise and Vibration 

 
118. The applicant advises that post-development traffic noise would not be any 

different to that pre-development as the new Blackbushes Road and its junction 
with the current three-arm A30/A327 roundabout as it is not a new public 
highway catering for increased levels of traffic from a specific development or 
developments. The same could be said for any vibration impacts although this 
has been examined. 

 
119. The scheme’s construction activities have the potential to cause short-term, 

temporary impacts in the local area during the nine-month construction period. 
The applicant advises that these effects would be likely be insignificant due to its 
remote nature from residential dwellings, those being usually the most sensitive 
receptors. 

 
120. Whilst the Environmental Health Officer (EHO) at Hart District Council has not 

provided any direct comments to the consultation request, the District Council 
Planning Team raises no objection to the proposed scheme. 

 
121. In terms of controlling construction-related impacts, the applicant has advised 

that impacts from construction traffic, noise, lighting, hours of use as well as 
general site safety measures to protect the local population from unacceptable 
and significant disturbance would be imposed. There is also a requirement for a 
Construction Traffic Management Plan as set out in Appendix A.  

 
122. It is considered that the proposal would not have a significant negative impact on 

the locality, including on the nearest residential properties around the site, by 
virtue of noise. As such the proposal is considered to be in accordance with 
Policy NBE11 (Pollution) of the Hart Local Plan (2020). 

 
Air Quality 
 
123. The applicant advises that post-development traffic emissions to air would not be 

any different to that pre-development as the new Blackbushes Road and its 
junction with the current three-arm A30/A327 roundabout as it is not a new 
public highway catering for increased levels of traffic from a specific 
development or developments. 

 

Page 112

https://www.hart.gov.uk/plans-and-policies
https://www.hart.gov.uk/plans-and-policies
https://www.hart.gov.uk/plans-and-policies


124. The scheme’s construction activities have the potential to cause short-term, 
temporary impacts in the local area during the nine-month construction period. 
The applicant advises that these effects would be likely be insignificant due to its 
remote nature from residential dwellings, those being usually the most sensitive 
receptors. 

 
125. Whilst the Environmental Health Officer (EHO) at Hart District Council has not 

provided any direct comments to the consultation request, the District Council 
Planning Team raises no objection to the proposed scheme. 

 
126. In terms of controlling construction-related impacts, the applicant has advised 

that impacts from construction traffic, noise, lighting, hours of use as well as 
general site safety measures to protect the local population from unacceptable 
and significant disturbance would be imposed. 

 
127. It is considered that the proposal would not have a significant negative impact on 

the locality, including on the nearest residential properties around the site, by 
virtue of emission to air. As such the proposal is considered to be in accordance 
with Policy NBE11 (Pollution) of the Hart Local Plan (2020). 

 
Conclusions 

 

128. The proposal seeks approval for a road improvement scheme at the junction of 
the A30/A327 ‘Hartford Bridge Flats’ roundabout near to the A30’s southern 
carriageway junction with Blackbushes Road, near Hartley Wintney. The 
proposal would replace the existing staggered junction arrangement which 
includes a three-arm roundabout solution and nearby left turn into and out of 
Blackbushes Road with a four-armed roundabout, formally incorporating the 
A30, A327 and Blackbushes Road junctions. The proposed scheme is part of a 
joint funded Hampshire County Council and Department for Transport ‘Pinch 
Point’ Programme Improvement Scheme to replace the former staggered 
junction arrangement, with the three-arm roundabout solution, completed in May 
2015. The addition of a fourth arm on the A30/A327 Hartford Bridge Flats 
Junction will provide direct access for traffic seeking to travel southbound on 
Blackbushes Road from the A327 southbound or A30 eastbound. This traffic will 
no longer be required to use a more convoluted route by diverting east along the 
A30 and u-turning at A30 Blackbushes Roundabout. The northern section of 
Blackbushes Road will effectively be moved 35m westward to join the 
roundabout.  
 

129. The purpose of the scheme is to reduce journey times for traffic currently using 
the roundabout junction, and in turn reduce emissions to the environment from 
vehicles making unnecessarily longer trips, including through delays at the 
existing staggered junction and its three-arm roundabout arrangement.   
 

Page 113

https://www.hart.gov.uk/plans-and-policies
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/791450/National_PP_Programme_Meta_Final_draft.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/791450/National_PP_Programme_Meta_Final_draft.pdf


130. It is considered that the proposal would be in accordance with the relevant 
policies of the adopted Hart Local Plan (2020) as well as the Hampshire Local 
Transport Plan (2013). It is considered that the proposal would:  

 

 meet an identified need; 

 be acceptable in terms of highway capacity and safety; 

 not adversely affect the local landscape; 

 not cause any additional flood risk and protect the quality of groundwater 
and surface water; 

 not adversely affect local archaeology and cultural heritage; 

 not have an adverse effect on ecology and biodiversity; 

 have a positive effect in terms of climate change; and 

 not cause unacceptable adverse amenity impacts. 
 
Recommendation  

 
That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the conditions in Appendix A. 

 
Appendices: 
Appendix A – Conditions 
Appendix B – Committee Plan 
Appendix C – Site Plan 
Appendix D – Existing Layout 
Appendix E – Proposed Layout 
 
Other documents relating to this application: 
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/HCC/2022/0047 

Page 114

https://www.hart.gov.uk/sites/default/files/4_The_Council/Policies_and_published_documents/Planning_policy/Hart%20LPS%26S.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/transport/HampshireLTPPartALongTermStrategy2011-2031RevisedApril2013.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/transport/HampshireLTPPartALongTermStrategy2011-2031RevisedApril2013.pdf
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/HCC/2022/0047


 

REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION: 
 

Links to the Strategic Plan 

Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic 
growth and prosperity: 

No 

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent 
lives: 

No 

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse 
environment: 

No 

People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, 
inclusive communities: 

No 

 
OR 

 

This proposal does not link to the Strategic Plan but, nevertheless, requires a 
decision because: 
the proposal is an application for planning permission and requires determination 
by the County Council in its statutory role as the minerals and waste or local 
planning authority. 

 
 

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents 
 
The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any  
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 
the Act.) 
 
Document Location 

22/00214/HCC 
Site Ref: HRH003 
Realignment works and alterations to the 
northerly section of Blackbushes Road 
including the addition of a fourth arm on 
the A30/A327 Hartford Bridge Flats 
junction roundabout, plus changes to 
street lighting, road lining, road signing and 
drainage and new boundary fencing 
alongside the western and eastern 
boundaries at Blackbushes Road, Hartley 
Wintney and land to the west of 
Blackbushes Road 

Hampshire County Council 

Page 115



 

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENTS: 

1. Equality Duty 

The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 
(‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to: 

- Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other 
conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected 
characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation); 

- Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, 
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex 
and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it; 

- Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who 
do not share it.  

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to: 

- The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons 
sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that 
characteristic; 

- Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share 
it; 

- Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such 
persons is disproportionally low. 

 

Officers considered the information provided by the applicant, together with 
the response from consultees and other parties, and determined that the 
proposal would have no material impact on individuals or identifiable groups 
with protected characteristics. Accordingly, no changes to the proposal were 
required to make it acceptable in this re

Page 116



Appendix A 

CONDITIONS 
 

Commencement 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 

three years from the date on which this planning permission was granted. 
  
 Reason:  To comply with Section 91 (as amended) of the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990.  
 
Hours of Working 
 
2. No heavy commercial vehicles shall enter or leave the site and no plant or 

machinery shall be operated except between the following hours: 07:00 - 
18:00 Monday to Friday and 08:00 - 13:00 on Saturdays.  There shall be no 
working on Sundays or recognised Public Holidays.  

 
Night works shall only take place Monday - Friday following the advance 
agreement of the Local Planning Authority. 

  
Reason: To protect the amenities of road users and the occupiers of 
nearby properties during the construction period in accordance with policy 
NBE 11 (Pollution) of the Hart Local Plan (2020).  

 
Construction Management Plan 

 

2. No development hereby permitted shall commence until a Construction 
Traffic Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The Plan should include, but not be limited to 
the daily and total number and size of lorries accessing the site, the turning 
of delivery vehicles and lorry routing, provisions for removing mud and 
debris from vehicles prior to exiting the site, segregation of construction 
works from road traffic and a programme of works. Once approved, the 
scheme shall be implemented in full throughout the duration of the 
construction period.  

 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with Policy 
INF3 (Transport) of the Hart Local Plan (2020). This is a pre-
commencement condition required to ensure the development is 
constructed in a manner which ensures existing levels of highway safety 
are maintained and thus goes to the heart of the permission. 

 
Lighting Scheme 
 
4. Notwithstanding the approved ‘Street Lighting Proposed Layout’ (ref: 

CJ008986-ECH-HLG-16708356-DR-LE-0100 S3 P0), no development 
hereby permitted shall commence until a lighting scheme detailing 

Page 117



 

mitigation measures ensuring that no adverse impacts from light intensity 
and spillage during construction and on a permanent basis affecting road 
users, the nearest neighbouring properties and aviation traffic using 
Blackbushe Airport are created has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Once approved, the scheme shall 
be implemented in full. 

 
Reason: To protect the safety and amenities of road users, occupiers of 
nearby properties and aviation traffic using Blackbushe Airport from light 
pollution in accordance with Policy NBE11 (Pollution) of the Hart Local Plan 
(2020). 

 
Tree and Planting Protection Scheme 
 
5. The recommendations within the submitted Arboricultural Impact 

Assessment (dated 03 April 2021, ref: SS HDC HtfdBgFlts AIA WI 1.2) and 
Tree Protection Plan (dated 04 February 2021, ref: 1.1) shall be 
implemented in full throughout the construction period and in accordance 
with the approved soil management plan required by Condition 6 below. 

 
Any trees or other planting that are removed, damaged, or begin dying 
either during construction or within a five year period following completion 
of the development hereby permitted shall be replaced with a similar 
species in that location as agreed in writing with the Local planning 
Authority. 

 
Reason: To protect retained, relocated and newly planted trees and 
planting in accordance with Policies NBE2 (Landscape), NBE3 (Thames 
Basin Heaths Special Protection Area) and NBE4 (Biodiversity) of the Hart 
Local Plan (2020). 

 

Soil Management Plan 
 
6. Notwithstanding the approved Tree and Planting Protection Scheme 

required by Condition 5. above, no development hereby permitted shall 
commence until a soil management plan has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan shall include: 

 

 Measures to protect, handle, store and replace existing soils to 
preserve the seed bank and avoid contamination with aggressive 
weed species, to encourage successful establishment of heathland 
scrub; 

 Details of the removal or remediation of the former carriageway to 
facilitate natural regeneration of vegetation; 

 Details of tree planting proposed for the area between the old and 
new carriageway together with establishment maintenance to provide 
mitigation for those lost due to construction; and 

 Specification for seeding mix on the proposed swale to encourage 
biodiversity.  

Page 118



 

Once approved, the plan shall be implemented in full. 
 

Reason: To protect the local landscape and visual appearance of the 
locality in accordance with Policies NBE1 (Development in the 
countryside), NBE2 (Landscape), NBE3 (Thames Basin Heaths Special 
Protection Area), NBE4 (Biodiversity) and NBE9 (Design) of the Hart Local 
Plan (2020). This is a pre-commencement condition required to ensure 
effective soil management, restoration works and biodiversity protection 
and enhancement works throughout the construction and following 
completion of the development hereby permitted and thus goes to the heart 
of the permission. 

 
Ecological Appraisal 

 

7. The recommendations within sections 5.3 - 5.12 of the submitted 
Ecological Appraisal (dated May 2021 and updated November 2021, ref: 
C.J008986.01) that provides mitigation to address vegetation clearance 
and to nesting birds and reptile habitats during site clearance works, the 
construction period and completion of the development shall be 
implemented in full at all times. 

 
No works to trees or planting, including removal, shall be carried out within 
the bird nesting season which usually runs from March to September 
inclusive. If it is becomes necessary for work to commence in the nesting 
season, then a pre-commencement inspection of the vegetation for active 
bird nests should be carried out by an experienced ecologist. Only if there 
are no active nests present should work be allowed to commence following 
confirmation in writing from the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: To protect the designated Thames Basin Heaths Special 
Protection Area, breeding birds, reptiles and their habitats in accordance 
with Policies NBE3 (Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area) and 
NBE4 (Biodiversity) of the Hart Local Plan (2020). 

 
Fencing 

 

8. Prior to the installation of the palisade boundary fencing, details of 
materials and finishes and / or proposed planting schedules (that accord 
with the requirements of Condition 5 above) shall be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority for written approval. Once approved, the details shall be 
implemented in full, with all planting maintained and protected for a period 
of five years following the completion of the development herby permitted. 

 
Reason: To protect the local landscape and visual appearance of the 
locality in accordance with Policies NBE1 (Development in the 
countryside), NBE2 (Landscape), NBE3 (Thames Basin Heaths Special 
Protection Area), NBE4 (Biodiversity) and NBE9 (Design) of the Hart Local 
Plan (2020). 

Page 119



 

Crane use 
 

9. Cranes shall be not used during the construction period within the 
application site unless prior written approval has been received from the 
Local Planning Authority. 

 
Reason: To protect the safety of aviation traffic using Blackbushe Airport in 
accordance with Policy NBE11 (Pollution) of the Hart Local Plan (2020). 

 
Unsuspected Contamination 

 

10. In the event that unsuspected contamination is found at any time when 
constructing the development hereby permitted, work in that area shall 
cease and it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning 
Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken to 
identify what remediation is necessary with a remediation scheme prepared 
and submitted to the Local Planning Authority for their written approval. 
Once the remediation works have been completed, a verification report 
conforming this shall be provided to the Local Planning Authority for written 
approval. Once approved, the scheme shall be implemented in full 
throughout the duration of the construction period. 

 

Reason: To protect the health of construction workers and the general 
public and quality of the water environment from the effects of 
contamination in accordance with Policy NBE11 (Pollution) of the Hart 
Local Plan (2020). 

 

Surface Water Drainage Scheme 

  

11.  The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until the 
approved drainage system has been installed in accordance with the 
Drawing ref: CJ008986-ECH-HDG-16708356-DR-HE-0501. The Local 
Planning Authority shall be notified in writing when the system has been 
fully installed. Thereafter, the approved system shall be fully implemented 
and maintained throughout its operational life. 

  
Reason: To ensure that the development is satisfactorily and safely drained 
to prevent flood risk and pollution of the local water environment in 
accordance with Policies NBE5 (Managing flood risk), NBE6 (Water 
quality), NBE11 (Pollution) and INF2 (Green infrastructure) of the Hart 
Local Plan (2020). 

 

Plans 

 

12. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 

the following approved plans: Drawing 001, CJ008986-ECH-HGN-

16708356-DR-HE-0101 S2 Rev P 02, CJ008986-ECH-HGN-16708356-DR-

Page 120



 

HE-0102 S2 Rev P 03, CJ008986-ECH-HGN-16708356-DR-HE-0100 S3 

Rev P 01, CJ008986-ECH-HDG-16708356-DR-HE-0501 S3 Rev P 01. 

  

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 

 

Note to Applicants  

 

1. In determining this planning application, the Local Planning Authority has 
worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive manner, seeking 
solutions to problems arising in relation to dealing with the planning 
application by liaising with consultees, respondents and the applicant/agent 
and discussing changes to the proposal where considered appropriate or 
necessary. This approach has been taken positively and proactively in 
accordance with the requirement in the NPPF (2021), as set out in the 
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) 
(England) Order (2015).  

  
2. This decision does not purport or convey any approval or consent which 

may be required under the Building Regulations or any other Acts, 
including Byelaws, orders or Regulations made under such acts. 

 
 
 

 

 

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank



Realignment works and alterations to the northerly section of 
Blackbushes Road including the addition of a fourth arm on the 
A30/A327 Hartford Bridge Flats junction roundabout, plus changes 
to street lighting, road lining, road signing and drainage and new 
boundary fencing alongside the western and eastern boundaries 
at Blackbushes Road, Hartley Wintney and land to the west of 
Blackbushes Road
Application No: 22/00214/HCC
Site Reference: HRH003

Drawn by: Strategic Planning

Regulatory Committee
Date 20 April 2022

R

Economy, Transport and Environment

Location Plan

Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right 2016

0 200 400100 M

Legend
Application Area

1:8,000

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



Warren Heath

Star Hill Plantation

Eversley Common

London Road Heath

A
 327

1

7

2 5

Star Hill Caravan Site

D
ef

Sawmill

B 3016

WB

Pond

92.7m

93.9m

94.2m

94.8m

95.4m

92.0m

95.1m

Ponds

Track

D
rain

Hopper

Collects

Workings

Reservoir

Issues

Conveyors

El Sub Sta

Path (um)

Three Corner

SIR RICHARD'S RIDE

HARTFORD BRIDGE FLATS

1719
21

14

12

16 1
5

Mast (Telecommunication)

Eversley Haulage Park

Track

Issues

Track

Tra
ck

Path (um)

Track

Drain

Path (um
)

Def

2

Workings

Track

Tr
a

ck

Def

Track
Track

Tr
ac

k

Track

Track

Track

Track

Track

D
rain

Issues

478200.000000

478200.000000

478400.000000

478400.000000

478600.000000

478600.000000

478800.000000

478800.000000

479000.000000

479000.000000

479200.000000

479200.000000

479400.000000

479400.000000

1
5

7
8

0
0

.0
0

0
00

0

1
5

7
8

0
0

.0
0

0
00

0

1
5

8
00

0
.0

0
0

0
00

1
5

8
00

0
.0

0
0

0
00

1
5

8
2

0
0

.0
0

0
00

0

1
5

8
2

0
0

.0
0

0
00

0

1
5

8
40

0
.0

0
0

00
0

1
5

8
40

0
.0

0
0

00
0

1
5

8
6

0
0

.0
0

0
00

0

1
5

8
6

0
0

.0
0

0
00

0

1
5

8
8

0
0

.0
0

0
00

0

1
5

8
8

0
0

.0
0

0
00

0

1
5

9
00

0.0
0

0
00

0

1
5

9
00

0.0
0

0
00

0

1
5

9
2

0
0.0

0
0

00
0

1
5

9
2

0
0.0

0
0

00
0

DRAWING TITLE

Hartford Bridge Flats, Blackbushes Road, Hartley Wintney

Location Plan

Drawing 001

SITE

Scale 1:5,000 at A3

±

0 10050 Meters

INSET Scale 1:125,000

A30

A30

B
la

ckb
u

sh
es R

o
ad

A327

Star Hill Caravan Site

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank



SUIT REV AMENDMENTS DATE CAD CHKD APPD

S2

P02
CHANGES AS REQUESTED BY PLANNING OFFICER. LABELS, SPA AND SINC AREAS AND AFFECTED TREES ADDED

11.01.2022 JM

NOTES

1. ALL DIMENSIONS IN METRES UNLESS OTHERWISE

STATED

2. THIS DRAWING SHOULD BE VIEWED IN COLOUR

3. THERE ARE NO RIGHTS OF WAY WITHIN THE VIEW

EXTENT OF THIS DRAWING

© CROWN COPYRIGHT AND DATABASE RIGHTS 2021

ORDNANCE SURVEY 100019180

100

0

5

10

20

30

40

50

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

ECONOMY, TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT

STRATEGIC TRANSPORT

HCC CAD FILE: \\ENVLDAT001\common\Eng\Roads\Schemes\CJ008986.01 A30 Hartford Bridge Flats Junction Improvements\BIM\01-WIP\01-Lead Team\01-2DM\CJ008986 ECH HGN 16708356 DR HE PLANNING.dwg

HCC CAD PLOT:  21/1/2022 9:43:16

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER REV

SCALE @ A1

DATE

SHEET NUMBER

SCHEME

APPROVED

CHECKED

CAD

DESIGNERCONSULTANTCLIENT

JOB No.

SUIT

- - - - --

HARTFORD BRIDGE FLATS

FOURTH ARM

SITE PLAN

C.J008986.01

JM

JM

GC GC

IS IMS

1:1000

05.07.2021

1 OF 1

CJ008986 16708356 0101 2HGN HEDR S2 P 0ECH

STUART JARVIS BSc DipTP FCIHT MRTPI: DIRECTOR OF ECONOMY, TRANSPORT & ENVIRONMENT

KEY

THAMES BASIN HEATHS SPECIAL

PROTECTION AREA (SPA), CASTLE

BOTTOM TO YATELEY AND HAWLEY

COMMONS SITE OF SPECIAL SCIENTIFIC

INTEREST (SSSI)

APPLICATION BOUNDARY

A327

A30

B
L

A
C

K
B

U
S

H
E

S
 
R

O
A

D

A30

NEW FENCELINE

TREES REMOVED AS PART OF WORKS. REPLACEMENT TREES TO

BE PLANTED IN AREA SHOWN ON 'PLANNING WORKS' DRAWING

AREA OF NEW HARD SURFACING

NEW GATE

NEW FENCELINE

P
age 127

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
BLACKBUSHES ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
Track



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SUIT REV AMENDMENTS DATE CAD CHKD APPD

S2

P02
TREE PLANTING AREA SHOW TO MATCH ARB REPORT, DRAINAGE DETAIL SHOWN, REPLACEMENT GATES SHOWN

23.11.2021 JM GC IMS

S2

P03 REMOVE CUTLINES AND CHANGE SCALE TO SUIT PLANNING REQUIREMENTS 11.01.2022 JM

NOTES

1. ALL DIMENSIONS IN METRES UNLESS OTHERWISE

STATED

2. THIS DRAWING SHOULD BE VIEWED IN COLOUR

3. ALL FENCES WILL BE CONNECTED INTO EXISTING

FENCES OR GATES

© CROWN COPYRIGHT AND DATABASE RIGHTS 2021

ORDNANCE SURVEY 100019180

100

0

5

10

20

30

40

50

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

ECONOMY, TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT

STRATEGIC TRANSPORT

HCC CAD FILE: \\ENVLDAT001\common\Eng\Roads\Schemes\CJ008986.01 A30 Hartford Bridge Flats Junction Improvements\BIM\01-WIP\01-Lead Team\01-2DM\CJ008986 ECH HGN 16708356 DR HE PLANNING.dwg

HCC CAD PLOT:  21/1/2022 9:51:50

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER REV

SCALE @ A1

DATE

SHEET NUMBER

SCHEME

APPROVED

CHECKED

CAD

DESIGNERCONSULTANTCLIENT

JOB No.

SUIT

- - - - --

HARTFORD BRIDGE FLATS

FOURTH ARM

PLANNING APPLICATION

WORKS

C.J008986.01

JM

JM

GC GC

IS IMS

1:1000

05.07.2021

1 OF 1

CJ008986 16708356 0102 3HGN HEDR S2 P 0ECH

STUART JARVIS BSc DipTP FCIHT MRTPI: DIRECTOR OF ECONOMY, TRANSPORT & ENVIRONMENT

KEY

PROPOSED NEW ROAD

REMOVED ROAD

AREA FOR REPLACEMENT PLANTING.

EXACT LOCATIONS OF REPLACEMENT

TREES TO BE DECDIED ON SITE BY HCC

ARBORICULTURALIST TO SUIT GROUND

CONDITIONS

PROPOSED POST AND RAIL FENCE

PROPOSED STEEL PALISADE FENCE

PROPOSED STEEL PALISADE GATES

SWALE DRAINAGE

A327

A30

B
L

A
C

K
B

U
S

H
E

S
 
R

O
A

D

A30

CONNECTION INTO EXISTING HIGHWAY DRAINAGE

P
age 129



T
his page is intentionally left blank



HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Information Report 
 

Decision Maker: Regulatory Committee 

Date: 20 April 2022 

Title: Monitoring and Enforcement Update 

Report From: Director of Economy, Transport and Environment 

Contact name: David Smith 

Tel:    01962 845891 Email: david.smith@hants.gov.uk  

Purpose of this Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to provide information to the Regulatory 
Committee on the Monitoring and Enforcement work undertaken by Strategic 
Planning during the period November 2021 – April 2022.  

Recommendation 

2. That the contents of this report be noted. 

Executive Summary  

3. Although the restrictions imposed under the Covid-19 pandemic have been 
relaxed, allowing site visits to be undertaken on a much more normal basis, 
liaison with other agencies is still patchy with self-isolation and cases of 
illness still affecting the possibility of joint visits being undertaken consistently. 
However, Officers have been able to undertake the highest priority visits and 
actively investigate any complaints received. 

4. The report details the number of complaints on authorised and unauthorised 
sites, and the outcome of negotiations, including, when necessary, 
enforcement action undertaken. 

5. The report also details development control work dealing with Planning 
Condition (Article 27) applications and Non-Material Amendments. 

Complaints 

6. The majority of the complaints received during the period November 2021 – 
April 2022 relate to unauthorised development (11 sites) and breaches of 
operational planning conditions on existing mineral and waste sites (9 sites). 
We also received complaints about a school. Investigation and negotiation 
have followed with planning applications under consideration for 8 of the 
sites, with 3 more applications pending. Investigations are still ongoing at 3 
sites.  The remainder have been resolved or were enquiries made about 
general site operations, fly-tipping, odour and waste related development that 
were dealt with in-house or referred to either the Environment Agency (EA) or 
Local Planning Authorities as non-County matters. 

Page 131

Agenda Item 8

mailto:david.smith@hants.gov.uk


 
7. Bunny Lane – following refusal of the first planning application for the 

installation of the washing plant (planning 
application 20/01753/CMAS) in December 2020, the applicant decided to re-
submit their application to try and address the reasons for the original refusal. 
This was submitted on 16 February 2021 (planning 
application 21/00588/CMAS) and it was reported to the Council’s Regulatory 
Committee in July, at which time it was approved. 

Although the original commissioning work had been completed, the applicant 
 has continued to experience technical issues with specific parts of the plant  
 such that the wash plant was only been in operation for short periods.   
 This meant that there was a delay in undertaking a proper Noise Assessment 
 as required as part of the noise monitoring and mitigation scheme required  
 under planning permission 21/00588/CMAS. The first such Assessment was  
 undertaken at the beginning of March and the results are being analysed. 

Officers continue to visit the site to monitor activities and the implementation 
of the wash plant planning permission. It is anticipated that an application to 
make the permission for the wash plant permanent will be submitted shortly. 

8. Calf Lane  - The planning application (20/02979/CMAS) for changes to the 
permitted picking station and fines machinery was approved by Committee on 
20 October 2021. This was subject to conditions on the agreement of a Noise 
Management Plan and a commitment by the operator to set up a Liaison 
Panel meeting to improve the communication between operator and local 
residents. The Liaison Panel has now sat twice and much progress has been 
made in improving the lines of communication and addressing the issues of 
concern to the local residents. Councillor Glen is chairing this panel. 

Enforcement Actions 

9. In the period up to April 2022, there was 1 Planning Contravention Notice 
served, with all other matters either addressed through the planning system 
or remedied through negotiation. 

10. The following provides an update on the latest Notice and enforcement 
activities since they were previously reported to the committee. 

Table 1: Update on enforcement activities 

Site Update 

Yokesford Hill 
Estate, Yokesford 
Hill, Romsey  

Site monitoring determined that stockpile heights had 
increased substantially over the Covid lockdown 
period, and although the operator had contacted 
Officers discussed the submission of an application for 
a washing plant to address the issue, by improving the 
product and increasing available markets. An 
application has subsequently been approved 
(HCC/2021/0442 ) (under delegation) and work 
undertaken to address the height of the stockpile 
although further work is still required as detailed under 
the Planning Contravention Notice served. 

Page 132

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=21312
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=21720
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/20/02979/HCC
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/HCC/2021/0442


 

Waterbrook 
Industrial Estate, 
Alton 

The site was subject to a planning application to allow 
for restricted night-time activities including importation 
of road planings with a resolution to approve subject to 
a Legal Agreement on lorry routing (51471/007).  
The Legal Agreement has been signed and the 

planning permission issued. A Liaison Panel was also 

to be set up for the site to encourage greater 

interaction between the operator and local residents. 

However, the site then closed. A new owner 

subsequently acquired the site and recommenced 

operations. They indicated that they were keen to 

engage with the Liaison Panel and the first virtual 

meeting was held November 2021. A further meeting is 

to be arranged shortly. 

Due to the new owners taking over at a late stage, the 
commencement of the night time deliveries did not 
start. Consequently, an application has been submitted 
for a further trial period until 31 March 2023 
(HCC/2021/0759). This application is currently under 
consideration.  
Complaints continue to be received by the Council and 
the Environment Agency predominantly about noise, 
and investigations are underway to try and determine 
the source of the problem. 

Carousel Dairy 
(Basingstoke AD 
Plant), Manor 
Farm, Farleigh 
Wallop, 
Basingstoke 

An application to make the vehicle increases 
permanent, with other negotiated changes to 
conditions, was approved at the February 2019 
Committee meeting (18/03001/CMA). 

The ANPR cameras have been retained and access to 
the database for monitoring HGV movements secured 
so that any issues in the future can be investigated. 
There have been no subsequent complaints about 
HGVs to and from the site and amendments to the 
Traffic Management Plan, including some changes to 
road signage, have been agreed by the company and 
members of the Liaison Panel.  

There had been issues of odour nuisance to the 
nearest properties, which were reported to the 
Environment Agency with increasing frequency since 
Summer 2019. A new biofilter was installed, but, as 
there had been no discernible improvement in the 
situation, the Environment Agency (EA) issued an 
Enforcement Notice requiring measures to be 
undertaken to improve the odour control process. This 
led to a number of changes to processes and 
installation of new equipment, including an application 
to amend the location and configuration of a previously 
approved building to contain the screening equipment. 
The EA were satisfied that their Notice had been 
complied with and the works undertaken. Further 
works have continued with improved cooling systems, 

Page 133

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=20852
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/HCC/2021/0759
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=19739


 

and the latest results appear to indicate that the 
problem has largely been addressed. Monitoring is still 
ongoing with regular Liaison Panels, the last of which 
was newly constituted under the updated protocol. 

 

11. Further information on the full suite of enforcement powers available to the 
County Council as Minerals and Waste Planning Authority (including powers 
to service PCNs, BCNs and ENs) are included in the County’s Enforcement 
and Site Monitoring Plan.  

12. The following table provides information on the joint enforcement activities 
which have been undertaken with the Environment Agency, the Police and 
District Planning Authorities. 

Table 2: Update on joint enforcement activities with the Environment Agency, 
the Police and District Planning Authorities 

Site Joint working 
with  

Update 

Whitehouse 
Field, 
Goodworth 
Clatford 

Test Valley 
Borough Council, 
Environment 
Agency, 
Hampshire 
County Council 
Highways 

In late 1990s, planning permission was 
granted by Test Valley Borough Council 
(TVBC) for construction of an extension 
to the existing golf course. This involved 
the importation and tipping of inert 
materials as an engineering operation. 
This work continued for approximately 
10 years until the then operator left the 
site in 2010 and TVBC considered the 
development completed. Several years 
later the operator of Homestead Farm 
bought the land. He claimed that 
surveys of the site had shown that the 
development had not been fully 
completed and stated his intention to 
restart work.  

The authorities did not accept that this 
was authorised and have liaised closely 
to ensure that if and when work does 
start the appropriate enforcement action 
can be taken. Following legal advice 
from Counsel, TVBC decided to enforce 
against any work as a breach of the 
original permission, with the EA looking 
to prosecute for tipping without a 
Permit.  Hampshire County Council 
Highways were also involved as part of 
the site access is highway land 
historically used by locals as a small car 
park, and the landowner had been 
fencing and blocking it off. Hampshire 
County Council Highways have 
therefore taken legal action to secure 

Page 134

http://documents.hants.gov.uk/planning-strategic/HampshireCountyCouncilPlanningEnforcementandSiteMonitoringPlanJuly2016.pdf.
http://documents.hants.gov.uk/planning-strategic/HampshireCountyCouncilPlanningEnforcementandSiteMonitoringPlanJuly2016.pdf.


 

clearance of the fences and blockades 
and maintain access.  

TVBC served Enforcement Notices 
against preparatory works on site and 
the variation of the restoration plans 
showing increased levels, which was 
the subject of an Appeal Inquiry on 26 – 
28 November. A Decision was issued 
on 13 January 2020. The Decision 
dismissed the Appeal against the 
change in levels, although it did allow 
the Appeal against the preparatory 
works, and costs were awarded to 
TVBC. The landowner is now seeking a 
Permit from the EA to allow the 
completion of the golf course as 
originally approved and has Appealed to 
the Planning Inspectorate over the non-
determination of the application. 

This case is still ongoing. 

Shedfield 
Equestrian 
Centre 

Winchester City 
Council, 
Environment 
Agency 

Shedfield Equestrian Centre has been 
the subject of numerous complaints and 
concern from local councillors over the 
past few months. This site has multiple 
uses and, as such, involves both the 
City Council and the County Council, as 
well as the Environment Agency. The 
main source of complaints are the 
number of HGVs, car transporters, etc 
visiting the site, burning, importation of 
waste materials, working hours and 
unauthorised mobile homes/residential 
uses. Unfortunately, the situation is 
complicated by the fact that many of the 
uses on site are permitted. 

The County Council are involved as part 
of the site has a Certificate of Lawful 
Use (CLU) for inert waste recycling, 
which was won on Appeal against an 
Enforcement Notice served by 
Hampshire County Council in 2013. 
Unfortunately, the nature of CLUs is that 
they do not impose any enforceable 
conditions on the operation, so we have 
no control over number of HGVs 
visiting, the hours of operation or height 
of stockpiles. The only control is that 
there is a red lined plan limiting where 
the activity can take place. However, it 
turns out that the operator/landowner 

Page 135



 

has been screening material on a piece 
of land to the rear of the Equestrian 
Centre (which happens to be the former 
Raglington Farm landfill site; filled in the 
early 2000s and bought by the family a 
few years ago). They have also tipped 
material along the treeline forming a 
bank approx. 1 - 2 m. high. In addition, 
they have allowed another company to 
start a small waste transfer activity in 
another (unauthorised) unit at the back 
of the business park. All of these 
activities are unauthorised and have 
been addressed by remedial work and 
by the submission of planning 
applications to regularise the recapping 
of the former landfill site 
(HCC/2021/0615) and for the small 
waste transfer facility. The operation of 
the waste transfer station has been 
granted by a Permit by the Environment 
Agency. This application has 
subsequently been withdrawn for the re-
submission of more accurate drawings, 
which are still awaited. Another 
application is also due for a small 
extension to the CLU permission for 
offices and some materials bays. 

Redlands, 
Sherfield-on-
Loddon 

Environment 
Agency 

Following complaints of continuous 
stream of lorries using a narrow track to 
access a field adjacent to Redlands, 
Sherfield-on-Loddon contact was made 
with the Environment Agency’s (EA) 
Environmental Crime Team. Information 
from initial investigations was passed on 
with agreement that further contact 
would be made once site visit 
undertaken. However, on arriving at 
site, was met by the Police who had 
attended the site on totally separate 
investigation and removed the 
occupants. Accompanied access was 
allowed and it became apparent that 
100+ loads of inert waste and trommel 
fines (predominantly plastic and wood) 
had been tipped in the field. Upon 
discussion with the EA it appears that 
the names and details provided tie in 
with a larger case the EA are 
investigating of systematic illegal tipping 
by hauliers out of London on numerous 
sites to the west of London. This wider 

Page 136

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/HCC/2021/0615


 

investigation is ongoing, and the County 
Council will assist as necessary. 

Westwood, 
Botley Road, 
West End 

Eastleigh Borough 
Council 

The County Council were contacted in 
November 2021 by Eastleigh Borough 
Council about at site at Westwood, 
Botley Road where they had refused 
planning permission for the use of the 
yard for the recycling of upvc windows. 
They wanted HCC to take on the 
enforcement of the site as the operation 
was a waste activity. On inspection of 
the site it was apparent that the 
landowner wanted to make changes to 
their original application to make it more 
acceptable. Consequently, they were 
given time to submit an amended 
application, this time to the County 
Council, so that we could consider 
against the policies of the Hampshire 
Minerals and Waste Plan. Should 
enforcement subsequently become 
necessary we would then be enforcing 
our own policies. However, negotiations 
are now underway over the sale of the 
site, so any submission is on hold whilst 
the owner considers their options. 

Ropley Quarry Natural England, 
Hampshire Police 

Permission for chalk extraction at 
Ropley Quarry was initially granted in 
1948 under an old Interim Development 
Order. In the early 1990s landowners 
and operators of such IDOs were 
required to register them with the local 
Mineral Planning Authority. This 
process also allowed the MPA to 
impose a new set of up-to-date 
conditions on the permission. This 
resulted in a Reviewed permission 
being approved in 1994. However, the 
operator decided not to operate under 
these new conditions and the quarry 
was closed. 

In late 2016 , an application was 
submitted to vary the dates by which a 
number of schemes and details had to 
be submitted and approved 
(20209/009). This was approved in April 
2017. 

In November 2020 the various schemes 
and details were submitted and 
subsequently agreed in June 2021. 

Page 137

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/20209/009


 

In February 2022 work commenced on 
site to prepare it for the re-opening of 
the quarry. However, in the intervening 
years the site had been populated by 
dormice and a pair of peregrine falcons. 
Concern was raised about the impact of 
the site preparatory works on these 
protected species and the County 
Ecologist was consulted. The contractor 
was subsequently told to cease work 
until all the necessary approvals from 
Natural England had been received. 
The Police have also been involved as 
a possible case under the Wildlife Act. 

 

Site Monitoring 

Chargeable sites  

13.  Under the Town and Country Planning (Fees for Applications and deemed 
applications) (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006, as amended, the 
County Council is able to charge fees for the monitoring of quarries and 
landfill sites in the County.  Fees are charged for a set number of monitoring 
visits, the number of visits being dependent on the stage of operations at 
each site; whether operational, in aftercare or inactive. The number of visits is 
agreed with each operator and is in line with an assessment of each site 
made by the County Council.  The latest charges were set out in The Town 
and Country Planning (Fees for Applications, Deemed Applications, Requests 
and Site Visits) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2017.  Active sites are 
charged at £397 per visit for between four and eight visits per year.  Sites in 
aftercare are charged at £397 for one visit per year.  Inactive sites are 
charged £132 for one annual visit. 

14. There are now 22 active sites, 10 in aftercare and 7 dormant sites liable for 
chargeable visits.  

15. This work has been prioritised despite Covid-19 restrictions, with inspections 
for the 3rd and 4th quarters, bringing in approximately £15,500 in fees.  

Non-chargeable sites  

16. Non-chargeable sites include waste processing sites, wastewater and 
treatment works and metal recyclers. These vary from the large Energy 
Recovery Facilities (ERF) and Materials Recovery Facilities (MRF) to the 
smaller scale recycling and transfer facilities and updating existing 
wastewater treatment works. The larger developments attract much attention 
in their locality and require regular monitoring to ensure that the local amenity 
is not impacted, whereas the smaller, built developments require monitoring 
during construction and implementation, but once up and running need less 
regular attention and these sites only get further visits should complaints be 
received.  Matrix working arrangements have been made with Waste & 
Resource Management that their officers undertaking visits to waste sites 
operating under the County’s waste contract also look at planning issues to 

Page 138

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2006/994/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2006/994/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/1314/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/1314/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/1314/contents/made


 
provide greater coverage. Under the Covid restrictions, routine monitoring 
was limited, concentrating on sites with issues or causing complaints. 
Monitoring of waste sites covered by the County’s waste contract has also 
resumed, these sites having remained open during the pandemic as one of 
the essential sectors listed by Government. 

Liaison Panels 

17. Since the last update, Liaison Panel meetings have been held for: 

 A303 Recycling Facility, Longparish;  

 Kingsley Quarry, Nr Bordon; 

 Calf Lane, Odiham; 

 Forest Lodge Home Farm, Hythe; 

 Roke Manor, Nr Romsey; 

 Waterbrook Industrial Estate, Alton; and  

 Bunny Lane, Timsbury. 

18. The majority of panels now take place virtually, although some panels still 
have in person meetings.  

Development Management 

Relaxation of Planning Conditions due to Covid-19: 

19. As report in previous enforcement updated, the worldwide coronavirus 
pandemic has led to a number of recommendations from Government 
including the need for Local Planning Authorities to use their discretion on the 
enforcement of planning conditions which hinder the effective response to 
COVID-19. The Strategic Planning have had numerous enquiries as to our 
view to relaxing planning conditions during this period for both minerals, 
waste and Regulation 3 developments. A report was produced in response to 
each request made and was signed off by the Head of Strategic Planning 
under delegated powers. Local Members are informed on the relaxation. The 
periods for the relaxation of conditions have ended. The relaxation of 
conditions did not impact the authority’s ability to use its enforcement powers. 
They were also subject to review should any significant complaints be 
received.  

20. The below table provides an update on sites where an update is required. 

Table 3: Update on sites where covid relaxations were agreed 

Site Update 

A303 IBA Facility Temporary emergency use of adjacent land (formerly 
subject of the ‘Wheelabrator EfW’ proposal) for storage 
of excess IBA. Due to the existing site being almost filled 
to the increased levels as agreed above, the operator 
discussed the use of the adjacent site for a temporary 
period with both ourselves and the Environment Agency. 
Following submission of detailed information, the EA 

Page 139



 

agreed that the land could be used, subject to 12 
conditions (relating to operations) and the use ceasing 
on the 30 September 2020. Subsequent to this approval, 
the County agreed the temporary use of this land subject 
to a further 6 conditions, including setting a maximum 
stockpile height of 5m and a meeting to review the 
situation by the end of July. The operator was also 
required to inform the local Liaison Panel. Although only 
about a half of the capacity for storage was utilised, the 
market for IBAA in construction projects has still not 
recovered and the need for the emergency storage 
remains. A further temporary extension was therefore 
agreed until 31 March 2021 by both the County Council 
and the EA. This agreement was subject to the previous 
conditions and also on the recognition that there would 
be no future temporary extension of time. Should any 
further extension be necessary then a full planning 
application would be required so that the issue can be 
formally considered. An application (21/00812/CMAN) 
was submitted for permission to construct the needed 
concrete surfacing and drainage systems to allow the 
longer-term use of the land for storage of IBAA. 
However, this was withdrawn following consultation as it 
was then considered to be larger than actually needed. A 
further application (HCC/2021/0545) for a smaller area 
has now been submitted and is currently being 
considered. 

Warren Heath 
Secondary 
Aggregate 
Recycling Facility, 
Eversley 

Relaxation of conditions 15 (Restriction of number of 
lorry movements) of planning permission 
(13/00755/CMA) which restricts the number of lorry 
movements to the site to 42 per day until the public 
bridleway (Eversley 11) has been permanently diverted. 
After this, the number of movements can increase to 136 
per day. The bridleway diversion Appeal has been heard 
and the Inspector approved the diversion. The relaxation 
is now no longer necessary as the planning condition 
comes into effect. 

 

Planning Condition (Article 27) applications:  

25. Where conditions of new permissions require details to be submitted and 
approved for the proper implementation and control of the development, 
Article 27 applications are required. Under the Town and Country Planning 
(Fees for Applications and Deemed Applications, Requests and Site Visits) 
(England) Regulations 2012, a fee per submission is required for the 
discharge of any details submitted. This is now £116 per submission.  

26. During the period, Article 27 applications were received and approved or are 
being determined for 11 submissions (6 for Regulation 3 developments and 5 
County Matter), totalling £1,276. 

Page 140

https://planning.hants.gov.uk/ApplicationDetails.aspx?RecNo=21680
https://planning.hants.gov.uk/Planning/Display/HCC/2021/0545
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2920/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2920/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2920/contents/made


 
27. As detailed previously, following adoption of the Protocol for Dealing with 

Breaches in Planning Control relating to Development Undertaken by the 
County Council under Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning 
General Regulations 1992, enforcement updates now also include 
information on Article 27 applications for County Council developments and 
any breaches of planning control. 

 

Non-Material Amendments (NMAs): 

28. Non-Material Amendments (NMAs) are minor changes to the operation of 
authorised sites that can be agreed by an application for non-material 
amendment if the change has no substantial impact on the local amenity. 
Such an application requires a fee but does not involve general consultation 
and determination by Committee. 

29. Since the last update, Over the period 3 NMA applications were received: 

 Woodhouse Lane Phase 2 - Addition of reinforced grass maintenance 
& parking deterrents; 

 Chineham Energy Recovery Facility, Whitmarsh Lane, Chineham, 
Basingstoke, Hampshire RG24 8LL - Installation of 2no. new diesel 
fuel tanks; 

 Sonnet Court Bungalows, Selbourne Drive, Eastleigh - A change in the 
path material from concrete block paving to a low impact pathway 
geogrid paviour in the area highlighted on the revised plan. 

 

 

 
  

Page 141

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/1992/1492/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/1992/1492/contents/made


 
REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION: 

 
Links to the Strategic Plan 

 

Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic 
growth and prosperity: 

yes 

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent 
lives: 

yes 

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse 
environment: 

yes 

People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, 
inclusive communities: 

yes 

 
 
 

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents 
  
The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any 
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 
the Act.) 
 
Document Location 

None  

 

Page 142


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of previous meeting
	6 Grundon Sand and Gravel Ltd Frith End Sand Quarry Grooms Farm Lane Frith End Bordon
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	Sheets and Views
	Sheet1


	Appendix E1
	Sheets and Views
	Sheet1


	Appendix E2
	Sheets and Views
	Sheet1


	Appendix E3
	Sheets and Views
	Sheet1


	Appendix F
	Sheets and Views
	Restoration proposal
	OLE1



	Appendix G
	Sheets and Views
	Restoration proposal
	OLE1




	7 Blackbushes Road Realignment Works Hartfordbridge Flats Junction Hartley Wintney
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	Sheets and Views
	0101


	Appendix E
	Sheets and Views
	0102



	8 Monitoring and Enforcement Update

